
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Please ask for: Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support Officer (Cabinet)  
T: 01752 304867 E: nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk 

CABINET 
 
Date:    Tuesday 13 September 2011 
Time:   4.00 pm 
Venue: COUNCIL HOUSE, PLYMOUTH 
 
Members: 
Councillor  Mrs Pengelly, Chair 
Councillor  Fry, Vice Chair 
Councillors Ball, Bowyer, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Monahan, Ricketts and Wigens. 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 5-9-2011 

Public Document Pack



 
CABINET 
 

AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
  
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Cabinet Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Cabinet Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items 

on this agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 18) 
  
 To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 23 August 

2011. 
  
4. QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC    
  
 To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution. 

 
Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic Support 
Unit, Corporate Support Department, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre, Plymouth, 
PL1 2AA, or email to democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any questions must be 
received at least five clear working days before the date of the meeting. 

  
5. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration. 
  
REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY 
  
6. LOCALITIES AND NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING 

REVIEW   
(Pages 19 - 44) 

  
 Cabinet Member: Councillor Jordan 

CMT Lead Officer: Director for Community Services 
 
Councillor James (Chair of the Task and Finish Group and the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Board) has been invited to attend the meeting to present the 
recommendations of the Task and Finish Group, contained in the scrutiny report on 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working Review.  
 
A written report will be submitted on the scrutiny recommendations.    



 

  
7. UNACCOMPANIED ASYLUM SEEKING CHILDREN 

AND YOUNG PEOPLE IN CARE   
(Pages 45 - 72) 

  
 Cabinet Member: Councillor Sam Leaves 

CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 

Councillor Wildy (Chair of the Children and Young People’s Task and Finish Group) has 
been invited to attend the meeting to present the recommendations of the Task and 
Finish Group, contained in the scrutiny report on Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Young 
People in Care.  
 
Councillor James (Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board) has also been 
invited to attend.  
 
A written report will be submitted on the scrutiny recommendations, together with a 
proposed action plan to address the recommendations.    

  
CABINET MEMBERS: COUNCILLORS BOWYER, JORDAN, MICHAEL LEAVES, 
SAM LEAVES AND RICKETTS 
  
8. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF 27 JULY 2011   
(Pages 73 - 78) 

  
 CMT Lead Officers: Directors for Corporate Support, Community Services, Services for 

Children and Young People and Assistant Chief Executive 
 
A written report will be submitted in response to recommendations from the Overview 
and Scrutiny Management Board on 27 July 2011 relating to – 

• monthly budget updates; 
• the localism agenda; 
• school academy transfers;   
• the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy; and 
• Localities and Neighbourhood Working.     

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR MICHAEL LEAVES 
  
9. WASTE AND RECYCLING IMPROVEMENTS   (Pages 79 - 96) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Assistant Chief Executive 

 
A written report will be submitted on proposals to improve the recycling and waste 
collection performance for the Council.  See also agenda item 15 below.  

  
10. REFURBISHMENT OF ARMADA WAY TOILETS   SUPPLEMENT 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Assistant Chief Executive 

 
A written report will be submitted on proposals to refurbish the toilets at Armada Way.    



 

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR SAM LEAVES 
  
11. SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN CORPORATE POLICY   (Pages 97 - 108) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People 

 
A written report will be submitted on the proposed Safeguarding Children Corporate 
Policy, which combined with the associated procedures, will provide guidance to all 
elected members and employees who may come across safeguarding concerns within the 
context of their work for the Council. 

  
12. CHILD POVERTY ACTION PLAN   (Pages 109 - 116) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People   

 
Further to minute 43 of the City Council meeting on 25 July 2011 which gave approval to 
the motion on notice on child poverty, a written report will be submitted on tackling 
child poverty together with an action plan prepared by a multi-agency task group that 
covers activity across the whole Plymouth 2020 partnership.  

  
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR WIGENS 
  
13. LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND BID: 

SMART TICKETING   
(Pages 117 - 122) 

  
 CMT Lead Officer: Director for Development and Regeneration 

 
A written report will be submitted on a successful bid to the Department for Transport’s 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund to aid the transition to smart bus ticketing throughout 
the South West.   

  
14. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended by the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000. 

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed. 
  
  



 

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR MICHAEL LEAVES 
  
15. WASTE AND RECYCLING IMPROVEMENTS (E3)   (Pages 123 - 126) 
  
 CMT Lead Officer: Assistant Chief Executive 

 
Further to agenda item 9, a written report will be submitted on confidential details 
relating to the proposals. 

  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
����
�����
�
��������

��������
�

	
����
�����
�
��������
�

������	��
�
����������	
��	�
��
����	��	��
	������	
����������	����	���
	������	
�����������	�����	����
��	
�������	����
���	���	���
���	
	
����	��	���
�����
�		�����	�

�	 ���
!	"#
����$
%�	���&	����&
	 '��
����	!��	���(����
	
)�((���%�	�����
	�������
	 '��
����	!��	��&&�����	)
�$��
�%�	����	�������	 ������	'��
����	
!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������%�	�
�
�	��
�	 ���������	'��
����	!��	)�!
�	��&&�����
�%�	

�����&	��
	 ���������	'��
����	������
	���
��	���	"!!���
���
�%�	*�&
�	�������	 ���������	
'��
����	!��	������
�	)(���	���	+
����
%�	�������	,����(	 )
����	�������	�
�!��&���
	���	
�����
����(	��$��
�%�	���$
	�
����	 ���������	'��
����	!��	-����(���%�	�����	-�
$���	 ���������	
,
��	�!	���
�	
����
&
��%	-�&	�
����(
	 )(�����	��������	.!!��
�%�	
	
�(�����
�	!��	�/�
��
�	�����������	*������	
����
�	+
�$
�	���	)�&	+
�$
��	
	
-�
	&

����	�����
�	��	0	(&	���	!�����
�	��	1�02	(&�	
	
�����������	
�
�������
�����������
�����
�������
�����������
������	����������	���
�
��������������������
�
������������������������������������
�
�����	����������
���������	
������������������
�
���������
��������������
	

���� �������	����������	����	���
	
-�
�
	�
�
	��	�
����������	�!	���
�
��	��	���������
	����	��
	���
	�!	�������	!��&	
��/��
�	

&/
��	��	�
������	��	��
&�	���
�	������
������	��	����	&

�����	
	

���� ��� 	�����
	
���

�	����	��
	&����
�	�!	��
	&

����	�
��	��	30	*���	0233	��
	���!��&
�	��	�	����
��	
�
�����	
	

���� ! ��	����������	"��� #������
	
4��
	5�
������	�
�
	��/&���
�	!��&	
�	"��
	��	���������
	����	(������(�	32	�!	��
	
�������������	��	�
�	���	/
����			

	
6�	��
	�/�
��
	�!	
�	"��
�	��
	5�
������	���	��
	�
�(���
�	�
�
	��������
�	���	�����
�	
�
�(���
�	�����	/
	(��$��
�	��	��&�	
	
	
	
	
	
	

�

Agenda Item 3Page 1



!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

3	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)	
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
�	��

�
�	�#
�	��	!���
�	��	������	����$���	��	��
�	���	��&(��	����	(�������	
�
����������	,��	��
�	�	)��������	
�
�
��	��!!
�	!��&	���	���
�	����$��	���	���	
���!����	(�������	����
��>	��
��
	�
!��
	)��������	
�
�
���	

	

����������
-�
	�
���	�
!�������	�!	�	����$��	�((��
�	��	���	��(
�	�!	����$��?	��&
��	��	����$���	
��
�	��	(
�&��
��	�
���
�����	����&&�������	!��	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	���
�	���	(���	
��&
	
����
�	���	��	����$��	����&&�������	��
�	!��	�������	(��(��
��	)�	!��	��	��
	
���	��	����
��
��	�	(���7&�/��
	��&
�	�	����$��	�������	��&
�	�������	����$��	��	
@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	��&
	��
	���	��(�/�
	�!	��&���	������	��
	�
���	�
!�������	�!	�	
����$��	(��$��
�	��
�	�
����	��
	
�
&
��	�!	&�/������	
�/������	��	����	����
#��	&
���	
����	��
	����$��	&���	/
	��(�/�
	�!	/
���	&�$
�	��
�	���
&/�
�	!��&	��
	(���
	��	
�����
��	
)
�����	0;	 3%	�!	��
	����$��	)��
�	���	�������	�!	'
$
��(&
��	���	3;A2	 ��	
�&
��
�%	�
!��
�	�	����$��	���	
BC	���	��������
	�
����
�	��	���(�
�	!��	��&��	��/�������	�����	��	��(�/�
	�!	/
���	
&�$
�	!��&	��
	(���
	��	�����
�	 ��
��
�	/
���	���
��	��	/�	/
���	�����(���
�	��	
�	&����	$
����
	��	�����
�%	���	���	���
�	$
����
	��	�
����
�	��	���(�
�	/��	��
�	���	
������
	
	
 �%				���	�������	�������	�����	�����	��	!��	��
	��&
	/
���	��	�����	!��&���	(���	�!	�	
����
&�	��		
	
 �%				���	�
��	
	

	
!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

0	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
6!	����������	���������	
�
�
������
	�����
��	������	����	��$
	/

�	����
�	��	��
	
��������	����
��	��	��
	���
	���	/����	��	����
	��&���>	
	

Page 2




����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

1	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
6!	31	&
���	&��
	����	31�	����	��	��
	&�#�&�&	��&/
�	�!	����$���	����	�����	/
	
����
�	��	��
	���
>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

D	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	 3931�	 :2	 -�
	
���
	�+;	<*)	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
'�
�	���	�
�	�	/
���&���	����	���%�������%$&���*������	���	��
	�
�&	)��������
	
�
�
��	��	��
	��
�
	���
�	���
�	��
�
	����	(�����(�
	�((��
�>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
	
	

Page 3



!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

E	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
"#���	(������	������
	��
	���
	�����	�������
	����	
#���	�(��
	���	�

�
�	������	��
	
���
�	�(��
	���
�	�(	/�	��
	F�������G�	(�����	�!	�������	&��
	����	3	����$��	(
�	(����	
���	�
�	��	�$
����������	6!	��
	�$
�	��������	���	����
��
�	�����	��
�
	/
	�

�	!��	
��	����������	���	(���>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

A	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
,��	��
�	��
	��
�����	�!	��	
#���	(������	!�������	���	���!����	����	(�������	����
��	
���������	A>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 4



!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

<	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)	
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
6�	����	�
(��	��	&�	5�
�����	���	���	F�����������	����	�	��&/
�	�!	(����
�	�������
�	
����	
#���	�(��
	�����	���
$���
	��&
	�!	��
	
#������	����
��G	
���	���	���	���	��
�
	(����
�	��
	���	����	��
	����
�	��
>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

:	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	3931�		
:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�
	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
8��
�	�����	(�������	(�����	�6�0�0�	��
	(�/���	���	(���	��
	���
	���	/����	��	������	
��$
	/

�	�
(���
��	,��	��
�	���	5����!�	���	(��$�����	�
(���
&
��	(�/���	(������	
����	��	������	��((���	����
	!������	����������	(��$��
	���	(���	�(��
�	!��	���	�
�����>	
	

����������
-���	���	��
	���
�	�
���
�	5�
������	����
	����
�	�!	(����/�
	/�
���
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�����	����	�
5���
	!����
�	�
�
�����	-���	���	/

�	�
!
��
�	��	��
	��������	
��&(�����
	-
�&	���	����	��&&
��
	��	��$
����������	
6	����	(��$��
	!���	�����
�	�
�(���
�	��	����	���	���
�	5�
������	��	��
	
����
��	
�((��������	��
�	!����
�	
�5����
�	��$
	/

�	��&(�
�
��	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

Page 5



!
����$��
�$�
�

!
����$��
#
�

����������%��&��
�

�
�'�(��

;	 33730%	 
�	�	"��
	
	

����������	���	 8����	 3931�	 :2	 -�
	
���
	�+;	<*)	

�
!
�
��
	"+"�-.�)	=8")-6.4	!��	8����	3931�	:2	-�
	���
	�+;	<*)�	02��	*��
	
0233�	�
(��
�	��	/�	����������	����	���	���	�����!�	��
�
	(�����>	
	
6�	���	(�����	�!	�������	
#���	����$���	��	-�
	���
	���
	��	��$
	&���
�	/�	
�/���/���	(��
�����	���
���	(����
�	����	��
	
#(
���$
	��	�
&�$
>	
	

����������
H-�
	���
	��
�	���	(���	���	(���	��	���	(���
���
�	!��	&�������	I���
���	(����
�I�	
�����	�
	�
!
�	��	��	����������
�	
���&(&
����	.��	���

�	(���
���
	!��	&�������	
����������
�	
���&(&
���	��	(�/����
�	��	���	�
/���
	
���(�77����(��&�������$���7�
$��
�J��J�
J(���
���
��	�
	��
�	��
�
	(���
���
�	
��	�
&�$
	0	����$���	�����	�
�
	���
�����	(���
�	��	�
&(�������	$�����	(����
�	��	��
	
���$�
�	����$��	)��
	��	��
	���
	��	�
�
����	��	*������	0233�H	
	

�
���� �"���+�� �,��	�# ���������

	
-�
�
	�
�
	��	��
&�	�!	�����G�	���
��	/����
���	
	

���� ������������-�������	����	�����.������	��������"� �������
� �	�������� ��	������
	
-�
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	9		
		

 �%	 ��	�	(��(����	��	���
	&
����
�	��	����
��
	��
	�
$
�	�!	(�������	
�������	�$
�	����
�	��	&����(�
	����(�����	 ,
.%	��	�
�����	(����	
�!	��
	����?		
		

 /%	 ����������	����	��
	�
���������	�!	��	������
	D	'��
�����	 �D'%	�����	
�
����	��	��
	����������	�!	��
	(
�&���
�	�
$
��(&
��	������	!��	
�(
��!�
�	��(
�	�!	�
$
��(&
���	�
5������	(�������	(
�&������	��	/
	
������	!��&	��
	�����	(�������	���������?	
	

 �%	 ��$�����	����	��
	�(����	�!	�����	��	�D'	��	��$
	��
��
�	�������	�$
�	
,
.�	���	�
�
����	�������
�	�(��	��	��
	)�������/�
	
4
���/��������	'
$
��(&
��	����	'���&
��	������������	���	
�
�
�$
�	��((����	��������	��&
	���������	�
�
	�((��
�	��	��?	
		

 �%	
		

����������	����	��������	�D'�	�����	���	/
	�((��
�	�
����(
���$
���	
����������	�
����������	�����	���	��	����
$���	��
	����	�!	/
��
�	
/�����
�	��&&�����
�	���	�����	
����
	����	!����
�	��
��	�!	��
	
����	�����	���	
#�

�	�����!�������	���&!��	����
���������	�!	,
.�?	
	

 
%	 ��!��&���	��/��
�	

&/
��	����	��
�
	�
�
	���	��(
�	�!	���
�������	
��	�&&
����
	�D'	���	�	���9�&&
����
	�D'�		��	�&&
����
	�D'	

Page 6



�����	
#(��
	��
	�������	��	(��
�������	������
��/�
	!��������	�����	
!��&	�����$�����
�	�������
��?		
			

 !%	
		

����������	 ����	 ��
	 (��(��
�	 ���9�&&
����
	�D'	�����	 ��$
�	 ��
	
��
�	 �
��&&
��
�	 ��	 ��
	 ���(	 �
(���	 ���������	 
���
�	 ���	
@�

�/����	 ���	 ��
	����	�
���
�	 6�	�����	 ����	(��$��
	 ��������	 ��		
)���
����
�	 )���
�	 �
$
�
���	 �
����	 ���	 �
���������	 ,����
�	 ���	

����&
���	 ,���
�	 ��&(����	 "!!����	 +��(���	 ���	 +�����	 
����	
@����	���	"���	"���	

		
���

�	����	K	
		

 3%	 �	���9�&&
����
	������
	D	'��
�����	��	&��
�	��	�������	�����
�	�!	
��
	��	�����	�D	 ,���
�	��	
����(�
	.���(�����%	��	�
�	���	��	�
����	
��	��
	�((
���#	��	��
	�����
�	�
(����	(�������	��	������
	D 3%	�!	
-�
	-���	���	�������	��������	 @
�
���	�
�&���
�	'
$
��(&
��%	
.��
�	3;;E	 ��	�&
��
�%�	��	��&
	����	!���
	��	����
�	����	30	
&�����	�!�
�	�����
	�!	��
	����������	�!	(
�&���
�	�
$
��(&
��	
������	��	��$
�?	
		

 0%	 �!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	�
�$
	�����
	�������	���	����!�	��
	)
��
����	
�!	)���
	��	���������
	����	-�
	-���	���	������	��������	 @
�
���	
�
�&���
�	'
$
��(&
��%	.��
�	3;;E	 ��	�&
��
�%�	���	���
#	�	�!	
��
	F'
(���&
��	!��	��&&�����
�	���	+����	@�$
��&
��	
�
(���
&
��	�((
���#	'	��	'
(���&
��	�!	"�$����&
��	��������	
;7;E�	@
�
���	'
$
��(&
��	�������������	.��
�	3;;E	 ;<:	
233<E1320D%G�	4�$
&/
�	0232?	
		

 1%	
		

���������	��	�
�
���
�	��	��
	��/��
�	

&/
�	!��	���������	)����
���	
,������	���	"����&��	'
$
��(&
��	��	�
�
�&��
	��
��
�	��	
���!��&	��
	������
	D	'��
������	������	����	�������	���	
�
(�
�
��������	�
�
�$
�	������	��
	��#	�

�	������������	
(
�����	��	��	��������	!����
�	������������	������	&��
����	�����
�	��	
��
	'��
�����	/
	�((��(����
	��	�	�
����	�!	������������?	
	

 D%	
		

�!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	(�
(��
	��((������	(�������	�������
	��	
�&(��!�	
#������	(�����	��	�
������	��	�����
�	�!	��
	��	,���
�	��	

����(�
	.���(������	���������	�
�
�����	
$��
��
	����
����	���	
������������?	
	

 E%	 �!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	�
!
�	��
	�
(���	��	��������	��&&���

	!��	
��!��&�����?	
	

 A%	 �!!��
��	 ��
	 ��������
��	 ��	 ��
	 
$
��	 ����	 ��	 ������
	 D	 '��
�����	 ��	
���!��&
��	 ��	 �����	 ���	 �	 �
$�
�	 �!	 ��
	������
	 D	'��
�����G�	 ��
�	
���	
!!
��	!��	������
������	/�	��/��
��	30	&�����	�!�
�	�	'��
�����	
��&
�	����	!���
�	

	
	
	

Page 7



���� ,/��/�����	��0��������	�����
	
-�
	'��
�����	!��	��&&�����	)
�$��
�	���	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	
�����
�	�
(���	9		
		

 �%	 �
�����	���	�	��
��	�����
���	���
�����	��	&

�	��
	�������	���
��
�	
�

��	!��	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	���
�	��	��
	������	&
���&	���	����	
�
�&�	��	��&(��	����	��
	���&����	���
	)����
��	������	
��&&��&
���	���	��	
��/�
	��&(�����
	����	��
	���������	
@�$
��&
��G�	
&
�����	��������	(�����	!��	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	
���
�?		
		

 /%	 ����������	����	��
	��
���!�
�	�

�	���	!��	�((��#�&��
��	E2	(����
��	
��	�
�	���	��	��
	���&����	���
	)����
��	������	�)3<?	
	

 �%	
	

��	(��/�
&�	���	�����	��������
�	����	����������
�	
���&(&
���	
���	�
$
��(&
����	�����	���
	��	D2	���
�	������	0232�	��	��		

���&��
�	����
��	����	�!	�����	L022�222	!��	�
�����	����	��
&?	
		

 �%	
	

��$�����	����	��
	���������	@�$
��&
��	���	�������
�	LA2&	��	!���	
��
	(��$�����	�!	�
�	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	���
�	�������	��
	4�������	
�!!����/�
	,�&
�	���&
����	���	���&����	��&&�����	,�&
�	
���	��/&���
�	�	/��	��	�
$
��(	�	�������	���
	��/M
��	��	���

&
��	
����	��
	����	�������	��	�
$
��(	���	&����
	��?		
	

 
%	 ����������	����	�������	��
	���
	���
��&
��	����	���
����
��	�!!��
��	
���	��
���!�
�	����	��	����	�������	���
����(	��	������
�	����	
��/�������	������	)����	,�&��	��	��
	&���	�����/�
	��������	!��	�	
�������	���
?		
	

 !%	 ��!��&���	��/��
�	

&/
��	�����	!��������	
#�
���$
	
����
�	
�������������	����	�����	��&&�����
��	���	��	��
	�����	�!	
�
(�
�
��������	�
�
�$
��	��	���	(��(��
�	����	���	���
�	��	
�����	
�����	��M��
��	��	��
	)�	���
��#	��9����	������	/
	��((���
�	��	
(�����(�
�	��	&

�	��
	�������	���
��
�	�

�?	
	

 �%	 ����������	����	������
�	����	���	��
	���	���
�	�!!	��
	)�	���
��#	��	
(���	 
�����	����%�	�����	����	���
�	����	���
���	���	(�������	
(
�&������	��	����
	����	���	
�������	�����	�����	(��$��
	�	
��!!���
��	��&/
�	�!	(����
�	��	&

�	��
	��
���!�
�	�

�?		
	

 �%	 ��$�����	�����	����
5�
�����	���	���
�	���
�	(�
$������	����
��
��	��	
����
�	�

�
�	��	/
	(����
�?	
	

 �%	 ��
	�
������	���	�	�
�	�
������	/��	���	���	�((
��
�	��	��
	�������	
����	���	���	/

�	�
���	����	���
�	��
	(���
���
	!��	���
��	�
�	
�
��������	

		
	
	

Page 8



���

�	����	K	
		

 3%	 ��	(�����(�
�	��((���	��	��$
�	��
	��
���!�������	�!	���
�	��	
�����	
�����	)�	���
��#	��	(����	
�������	�����	"!!���	���	������
�	����	
!��	&

����	���&����G�	��
���!�
�	�

�	!��	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	���
�?	
		

 0%	 �!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	���
����
	�	�
��
����	(���
��	����	��
	
$�
�	��	�
�
�����	�	(�
!
��
�	/���
�	��	��5���
	�	�
��
	��	�
$
��(	��
	
���
	��	
�������	�����	"!!���	��	�	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	���
?	
		

 1%	
		

�!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	��/&��	�	(�������	�((��������	��	������
�	
�����	��/������	��	��
	��������	!��	�	�������	@�(��	���	-��$
��
�	
���
�	��/M
��	��	!������	/
���	�������
�	!��&	��
	���&����G�	
�!!����/�
	,�&
�	!������	/��?	
	

 D%	
		

�!!��
��	��
	 ��������
�	��	���
����
	 !����
�	���
��&
���	�!	�
��$
��	
�(�����	 !��	 ��
	 ���	 ���
�	 ��	 
�����	 �����	 )�	 ���
��#	 ��9(���	
 
�����	 ����%	 ���������	 ��
	 ������	 �!	 �((��(����
	 &
����
�	 ��	
�
���
	�
��$
��	�������	!������	/����	

	
�	�� 1���	������������������������������	�����������(���$�����

	
-�
	���(����
	
����
&
��	-
�&	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��	��
	!����	&���������	
�
(���	!��	0233730	���	���������	��
	(
�!��&���
	���	!�����
	&���������	(�������	�!	��
	
��������	��	��	��
	
��	�!	*��
	0233�			
		
���

�	����	K	
		

 3%	 ��
	$���������	��	��(����	�(
��	���	�
9(��!�����	��
	�((��$
�	��	
�
����
�	��	-�/�
	A	��	��
	�����
�	�
(���?	
		

 0%	
		

�((��$��	��	��$
�	��	��
	���
	����
	��&�����������	!

	����
��
	��	
LD�A2	(���	��-�	����	
!!
��	!��&	3	*������	0230?	
	

 1%	
		

�((��$��	��	��$
�	��	��
	/���
�	$��
&
���	��	�
����
�	��	�����
	;	�!	
��
	�����
�	�
(���?	
		

 D%	 ��$����	 ��	 ��
	 ��������
	 (�
&��&�	 ��
	 ����
�	 /���	 !��&	
�
(���&
����	/���
��	���	�
��	��	���(����
	��
&�	(
�����	��
	������	
�
$�
�	�!	�
�
�$
�	���	(��$�������	

	
1E�	 1���	������������������������������	���($%%������$���$����
�

�$
�(�2���
�

� ���

�	����	��
	����	�������	��	�
��&&
��
�	��	�((��$
	��
	�
�	��(����	���
&
�	!��	
��$
��&
��	��	�
����
�	��	-�/�
	E	�&�������	��	L0�:E3&	����������	��(����	�(
��	!��	
0233730	K	
	
	
�

Page 9



	 	 		
L222	 L222	 L222	 L222	 )��
&
�	
33730	 30731	 3173D	 3D73E	 	

0�31E	 9	 9	 9	 �������
	�!	�
(���
&
��	�
!��
	
$
����
�	
	

3D2	 9	 9	 9	 ��&���	,���	!��	'���/�
�	������
�	
	

E2	 <22	 9	 9	 ��(������
�	&����
����
	�����	��	
�
��	,�
	��
�	
	

3A2	 1;:	 9	 9	 )�����&	����������
	����	9	����
	3	
	

322	 3<A	 3�20;	 3�ED0	 ���&����	����
��	+����	)�������/�
	
-����(���	���
&
�	
	

:;	 9	 9	 9	 �����	�����
	�
�
������	��������	
	

AE	 9	 9	 9	 ,���������
	
����	8�
	@�&
�	
��
�	 
8@�%	���	����	,�/	
	

E2	 9	 9	 9	 4
�����	)��

�	 )���
����
%	����	
��
�	
	

31	 9	 9	 9	 ���!���	=�����	
	

3D	 9	 9	 9	 ����
��	�$
��
	-
����	������	
	

1E	 9	 9	 9	 �����!�
���	����
����	)����		
	

�345�	 �3�6.	 �3��7	 �35.�	 	$��2�$8���9��(*�%���8$&�
�::&$;�2�����(������	

	
	

�
�� � 	 ��������0������	�����
	
-�
	'��
�����	!��	���(����
	)�((���	���	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	
�����
�	�
(���	(��$�����	��	�(���
	��	��
	�(�����	�
�������	��
	!����
	�!	��
	��$��	�
���
	
!��������	��
	��!�	&���
����	�
�����	���
����
�	
����
�	����	�
���		
	
-�
	�
(���	������
�	��
	/���������	��	��
	����
�	������	��
	��$��	�
���
	���
�	�
����
�	��
	
����&(�����	����	���	/

�	&��
�	��
	�(�����	����	�
�
	�$����/�
	���	
$�����
�	����
	
�(�����	��	��$
	�	�
��&&
��
�	���	!�������	
	
-�
	���
�����	�!	��/��
�	

&/
��	���	�����	��	��
	�
(����
	���!��
�����	�
(���	�
!
��
�	
��	��	&����
	D1	/
����		
		
	
	
	

Page 10



���

�	����	9		
		

 3%	 �((��$��	��	��$
�	��	��
	�
��&&
��
�	�������	��	(��	��
	��$��	
�
���
	���	��	��	.*"8	(�����
&
���	����	�	$�
�	��	��
	�������	
������	�	�
��
/���	�!	�
���
�	�(��
	��	�	�
!��/���
�	/�������?	
		

 0%	 (����	��	.*"8�	��
	�!!��
��	����	�������
	��	
#(���
	��
	�((��������	
!��	!�

����	���(����?	
		

 1%	 ����	�
������	 ��	�
!
��
�	��	��
	.$
�$�
�	���	)�������	
����
&
��	
������	!��	��&&
���				

	
���� ��������	/�#�����	���

	
�����
�	��	&����
	3<	�!	��
	����	�������	 
�����	��	�����
	��	3	 33730%	9		����(�����	
/
�
!��%	��
�
	��
	(���!����	����
�	���	���
�	��	�������	��	�&&
����
	�����	�!	��
	���(
	
���	�����
	�!	����	����
�	��	���
��	���	�&(���������	��	����&�����	��
	�������	���	���
�	
(��$��
�	(����
��	���	�
(���	��	��
	��/��
�	������	��
	&�����	��
	'��
����	!��	��&&�����	
)
�$��
�	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	����������	����	9		
		

 �%	 ����(�����	/
�
!��	�����	/
	(���
�	���	����������	/�	023D	���	
����&����	�
�
	/
���	���
��
�	��	��
��	�$����/�����	��	����	���	!��	

�����
&
��	��	���
�	/
�
!���?		
		

 /%	 ��
	�����
	�����	
!!
��	�$
�	32�222	(
�(�
	��	��
	���&����	��
�	
���	�
���
��&
��	�
��
��	�
�
	/
�������	��	/
	�
��	����	-�
	(���
��	
���	��	��	
����	����
	���	��
	�&(���	��	����&����	���	��!!�����	��	
���
��	��	(�
�
��?	
		

 �%	
		

�	$���
��	�!	��������	���	�����	����	���	���
����	��	��((���	
����&����	�������	��
	����(�����	/
�
!��	�����
	(���
��?	
	

 �%	
		

��
	�������	��&&������
�	�
�$��
�	!��&	�	��&/
�	�!	$��������	
�
����	�������������	�����	������
�	��$��
	���	��((���	!��	����
	
�����	�������	��
	(���
��?		
	

 
%	 ��
	 �������	 ���	 ����	 ���
�������	 �	 �

��	 ���
��&
��	 ��	 ��!��&	
��&&���������	�!	��$��
	���	��((���	�
�$��
�	!��&	0230731	���	����	
�����	 ���
	 ����	 �������	 �

��	 ��������
�	 ����	 ����(�����	 /
�
!��	
�����
��	

		
���

�	����	9	
		

 3%	 ��
	����
��	(�������	����	�
����	��	��
	&��������	�!	����&����	!��&	
����(�����	/
�
!��	���
��
�	����	��((���	�
�$��
�	�$����/�
�	��	���
�?	
		

 0%	 �!!��
��	��
	���
�	 ��	�

(	 ��
	���������	���
�	�
$�
�	���	 ���
	 ����	
����	�������	��	�
�$��
	(��������		

	
	

Page 11



���� ��/�� 	"�������	�-�������� �	����#���	�������	�� �����
	
-�
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	����������	����	
9		
		

 �%	 !��������	�((��$���	��	
����	0233�	!��	��
	��/&������	�!	�	/��	!��	
!������	!��&	��
	'
(���&
��	!��	-����(���G�	+����	)�������/�
	
-����(���	����	!��	��
	���&����	����
��	)��
&
	�������	LA�1E;&�	
��
	'
(���&
��	�!	-����(���	���	��$��
�	����	��
	�������	���	/

�	
����
��!��	��	�
������	��
	LD�11	&������	�!	��(����	���	�
$
��
	!������	
������	!��&	��
	+����	)�������/�
	-����(���	����	/
��

�	0233730	
���	023D73E?	
		

 /%	 ��
	/�����
	�!	��
	!������	�������
�	�!	L2�<E&	!��&	��
	)
�����	32A	
���

&
��	!��	��
	
���
�	����	�
$
��(&
��	���	��	����������	�!	
L3�03&	!��&	��
	�������G�	+����	-����(���	����	��(����	������&&
	
6��
����
�	�����	/
��

�	0233730	���	023D73E?	
		

 �%	
		

���&����	����
��	�������
�	�!	�	(�����
	�!	�������	���	�������	
��!����������
	�&(��$
&
���	�����	��
	"���
��	���������	�������	��	
��
	���
�!����	���	��	'
$��(���	���	)���
����
?	
	

 �%	
		

�
����	���	�
$
��(&
��	����	��������
�	����	��
	�������	
��!����������
	�&(��$
&
���	���	(
��������
�	���$
�	(�������		
���	 (�����&&
�	 ��	 ��&&
��
	 !��&	.���/
�	 0233�	����	 �
��$
��	
������	0230731	�������	��	023D73E�	

		
���

�	����	K	
		

 3%	 ��
	�
(���	��	���
�?		
	

 0%	 ���&����	-����(���	���	,�������	�
$
��(	���	�
��$
�	��
	���&����	
����
��	���
&
	��	 ��
	/����	�!	 ��
	������
	�
�	���	 ��	 ��
	�!!��
�G�	
�����
�	�
(����		

	
 )

	����	&����
	1E�%	

	
���� ��/�� 	"���	/�������	���

	
-�
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��$�����	
��/��
�	

&/
��	����	9		
		

 �%	 ���&����	����	���(���	���	���
�	/�	)�����	,��/���	,�������	
+�&��
�	���	���	�
��	��	���	�
���
�	�
��
�	!��&	��
	����	�������	
!��	3E2	�
���	!��&	�(���	022D?	
	

 /%	 ���
�	��
	�
�&�	�!	��
	�
��
	���&����	����	���(���	���	
�����
�	��	
����
	��
	���(���	��	��
	
$
��	����	��	���	���	$��/�
	!��	���	������(�
	
���(��
�	�
!��
�	��	�	(�/���	���(���	(��$�����	(���
��
�	���	
�
�$��
�	��	�	�
�����	���	��&&
�����	/����	��	&
&/
��	�!	��
	(�/���?	

Page 12



 �%	
		

���&����	����	���(���	+�&��
�	�
�$
�	�	4��9���/�����	4����
	��	��
	
�������	��	0D	'
�
&/
�	0232	�����	��$
	30	&�����G	�����
	�!	
������
	�!	��
	���(���	���	��
	�������	�

�
�	��	�
�(���	��	��
	
4����
	��	����	��	(�������/�
�	/��	��	���	
$
��	��	���
�	����	��
	

#(���	�!	��
	4����
	�����	�����	/
	��	01	'
�
&/
�	0233?	
	

 �%	
		

��	���
�	��	��!��&	���	�
������	��	���	��	�
�(���	��	��
	4����
�	��
	
����	�������	���	��&&������
�	���

	(�
�
�	�!	����	9	
	
 �%	 ����	���&����	���&/
�	�!	��&&
��
�	��	
����&��	�����	�!	

���&����	����	���(���	���	�(�����	!��	���	!����
�	�����
�	���	/�	
�
��
�
�	,���$
�	����������	+�&��
�	 ��
	�����	���	��������
�	
��	��/��
�	

&/
��%?	
		

 ��%	 ��
	�����
��
	��	��&(���	��������	�!	���&����	����	���(���	
+�&��
��	�����
�	���	/�	���������	@����	-�������	8�	++�?	
		

 ���%	 ��!�	&���
�	�
�����	�!	(��
�����	���
���
�	���	�
�$��
�	�����	
�&���
�	������!�	 029�
��	������!�	����
�	����	��
	E29�
��	������!�	
��	��
	�)�	!�

�%	���	���
�����$
	���(���	�(
�������	�����
�	
���	/�	.��
��	��$��
��	+�&��
�?	
		

 
%	 ��
	�
������	���	�	�
�	�
������	/��	���	���	�((
��
�	��	��
	�������	
����	���	���	/

�	�
���	����	���
�	��
	(���
���
	!��	���
��	�
�	
�
��������	

	
-�
	���
�����	�!	��/��
�	

&/
��	���	�����	��	��
	�
(����
	���!��
�����	�
(���	�
!
��
�	
��	��	&����
	DE	/
����		
	
���

�	����	K	
		

 3%	 ��
	�������	���
(�	��
	4����
	�!	4��9���/������	���
�	0D	'
�
&/
�	
0232�	����	���&����	����	���(���	+�&��
�7)�����	,��/���	,�������	
+�&��
�	����	��	����
	���&����	����	���(���	!��	���	(�����(��	��
	�!	
(��$�����	(�/���	��&&
�����	���	�
�$��
�?	
		

 0%	 ��
	�������	
��
�	����	�����������	����	���&����	����	���(���	
+�&��
�7)�����	,��/���	,�������	+�&��
�	����	��
	��&	�!	�
������	
�������
�	��
	�!	��
	���(���	!��	�.)-	���	�
����	���	�
���
	��	�	
�
&(�����	/����	������	!����
	�(�����	��
	������
�
�?	
		

 1%	
		

��
	��
�	��$
�
�	/�	��
	'
���!���	���	)
����	��
�	������	����	��	
�&
��
�	��	��	��	
#����
	���&����	���(����	��	��
���!�
�	��	��
	
�
(����	���	��	�����(����
	����	�����
	��	�	�
$��
�	��
9)�/&������	
'��!�	�!	��
	��
�	������	����	!��	!����
�	������������?	
	

 D%	 �����	����	��&
	��	��
	���
	)����
��	�
$�
�	 ���&����	����%	��	
��/&���
�	!��	(�/���	
#�&��������	�!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	�������
	
��	�((��	��
	�������G�	����
��	(�������	(�����
�	���	�������
	!��	
���&����	���(����	����������	

Page 13



�	

	 ���(�
�	���
	)����
���	��
�	������	;	 0%	���	������	'�����&�	

)����
���	./M
���$
	3D	 '
��$
����	)�������/�
	-����(���%�	
������	�)0<	 )�((������	)����
���	6�!����������
	���(�����%	���	
������	�)0:	 +����	-����(���	������
�������%?	
	


	 	6��
��&	��������	)���
&
��	3A	 ���&����	���(���%?	
	

 E%	
		

�!!��
��	��
	��������
�	��	����	����	(����
��	��	�
$
��(	��
	���
	!��	
/
��
�	 ���	 &��
	 �
�����	 ����	 ����
���$���	 ���	 ��!����������
	
(��$�����?	 ��//����	 &�����
��	 ��	 ��
�
	 &���
��	 ���	 (�
(�����	 ��
	

$��
��
	 /��
	 ��	 ��!��&	 ��
	 '
(���&
��	 !��	 -����(���	 �!	 ��
	
�
5���
&
���	��	/
	������
�	��	��
	6--	!��	��
	�
�	@�
��	�
��
��	
!�������
�	

	
���� ��/�����������������,���0��<���

	
-�
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��	�	�
$�
�	�!	
��
	�����	�����
	(
�
������	��������	����	��
	(����
�	!��������	�	�
�
��	�����	���
	����	�	
!����	���������	/
��

�	�	(
�
������	���	�	�
�$�	�����	$
����
�		
		
-�
	�����&
	�!	��
	�
$�
��	��((���
�	/�	��
	(����
�	���	����	��
	��������	���
�!	���	
�������	�((��(����
���	/��	����	�	�
��
�	�!	&
����
�	��	�&(��$
	��
	
�$����&
��	������	
��
	���������	���	����
��
	���	F$���/�����G	�����	/
	���
����
��			
	
-�
	�����	����	�!	��
	(��(�����	���	L2�2:;&	���	��(����	!������	�����	�

�	��	/
	&��
	
�$����/�
	!��	����	����	��	/
	��&(�
�
�	��	��
	����
��	!��������	�
���	
	
���

�	����	��
	!��������	�����	��
	��������
�	��	��	����
&
�����	(���
�	&���
��	��	

�����
	��
	�
�����	���	$���/�����	�!	��
	��������	9	
		

 3%	 (��$��
	�	���!��
	��������	��	!���
�	(
�
�������	��	��
	��
�	/
��

�	
��
	����	�����	�
&������	��
	���������	-���	�����	/
	�
��$
�
�	/�	
�����������	�	/�!!	���!��
	!��	��
	�
����	�!	��
	N��	N���	
���
�	���
	�!	
��
	��������	K	������������	��
	��������?	
		

 0%	 ��������	��
	������	�!	��
	(��
�	��	���	��
���!�������	���	��������	!��	
��������?	
		

 1%	
		

�����
	��
	������
	(�$���	��	/����	�
�?	
	

 D%	
		

��������
	�
�����	��	(����
��	��	��
	(�$
&
��	��
��	
���
�	���
	�!	
�����	�����
	��	(��$��
	�	$�����	(����
�	�������	��
	��������	(����?	
	

 E%	 �
$�
�	��
	�����	��&����	��	�

�	�	�
�������	��	��
	����	��&
	���	
��������	�!	��
	��

�	&���	��	&��
	��
	��������	&��
	�((
�����	��	
��
��?	
	
	
	

Page 14



 A%	 �������	����	��
	'
(���&
��	!��	-����(���	��
	(��$�����	�!	�����	
����	�����	��	&��
	��
	��������	&��
	�((
�����	���	/
��
�	��!��&	
��
���	

	
 )

	����	&����
	1E�%	

	
���� ��0���	������������������	����#/��<�	�����0���������#���	/�

�������<��,��/����,�������=������������	����,�� ����
<"�����	�	�����
	
-�
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	9	
		

 �%	 ��$�����	��/��
�	

&/
��	����	��
	�
�
����	���(�
�	-����	+����	
-����(���	����	���	�	������	!����	��	
��/����	(
�(�
	��	���
	�(	
&��
	(���������	����$
	���$
�	��	(���	�!	�	�
�����
�	��!
����
	���	
�(
����	�(	�������	����
�	�������	(����	���	����	
���
�	/�	
���&����G�	@�

�	6�!����������
	'
��$
��	����?	
		

 /%	 ��	(��(�����	��	�
$��
	���	
#������	/�����	���	�
(���
	��
&	����	
$
������	�����	�
�
	�������
��	����	�
�(
��	��	�������	�������	
(����	���	�
��
�����	��������		6�	���	(��(��
�	����	/���	/�����	
�
�
	�&
��
�	��	�(
�	�(	��
	(����/�����	�!	��������	�������	��	
�
�����	(����	������	�
������	��	�
&�$���	��
	�

�	!��	
#�
���$
	
������
	���	��	����
��
	(��
��	����	��
	�$����/�
	��	�����
	
��������
���
	�������?	
		

 �%	
		

��
	(��(����	��	�
$��
	���	�
(���
	��
	
#������	/�����	�����	���	��	
���
�!	�!!
��	��
	�
������	�!	�������	��	��
	(�����	/��	��	�����	&��
	��	
(����/�
	!��	��
	�������	��	(
�&��	�������	��	�
�����	(����	�!	�

&
�	
�((��(����
	�!�
�	����	���
��&
��	���	������������	����	�
�
$���	
�������	�
(���&
����	����	

&/
��	���	(���	��
�	����(��		6�	����	
����������	�����	��	�����
�	�����	/
	�������
�	��	�&
��
�	��	�������
	
����	�������	���	(
�&���
�?		
	

 �%	
		

���
	 �((��$
�	 /�	 ��
	 ����	 ��������	 �	 /����	 �����	 /
	 (�
(��
��	
�
��
�	���	��$
����
��		�	��(�	�!	��
	/����	�����	��
�	/
	�
��	��	
�
(����	��	��
	�������	�!!��
�	!��	��	�
���	0:	����	!��	&
&/
��	�!	��
	
(�/���	��	$�
�	���	&��
	���	!��&��	�/M
�������	���������	��
	�
(����	
(
����	���	��
	������
������	�!	���	�/M
�������	��
	/����	�����	/
	
��/&���
�	 ��	 ��
	 )
��
����	 �!	 )���
	 !��	 ��&&�����
�	 ���	 +����	
@�$
��&
��	!��	���!��&������	-�
	)
��
����	�!	)���
	!�#
�	��
	���
	
��	�����	��
	/����	��&
�	����	
!!
���		

		
���

�	����	��
	����	�������	��	�
��&&
��
�	��	�
$��
	���	�
(���
	��
	/�����	�����	
�((��	��	��
	(����	��	)��
���
�	3	���	0	��	���
#	3	��	��
	�����
�	�
(����	����	��	�&
��
�	
$
�����	����
	�������	�(
��	�(	��
	(����/�����	�!	(
�&������	��!
	���	������
���
	�������	
��
�
	��	��	�

&
�	�((��(����
	!��������	������������	����	��
	�
�
$���	�������	
�
(���&
����	����	&
&/
��	���	��
�	����(��	
	
-�
	�������	!��	/���	/�����	����	/
	��������	�&
��
�	��	�
��	��	!������	K	

Page 15



	
H���$�����	����	��
	�������	�������
�	����	�������	��	(
�&���
�	��
�
	�������
�	��	��
	(���	/�	
&
���	�!	�	�����
�	���!��
	&��������	���
�����	����	!��	����
�	��	H�������	(
�&���
�H	�����	
��
�	����	/����	�����	���	/
	�

&
�	��	(����/��	��
	������	�!	����
�	��	�	&���
�	�����	��	
M���
�	���	��	
�����
�	��	����
	�	�������
	��	���
�	(���	��
���H	
		

���� �>���	�# ���������
	
���

�	����	���
�	)
�����	322 �% D%	�!	��
	+����	@�$
��&
��	����	3;<0�	��
	(�
��	���	
(�/���	/
	
#����
�	!��&	��
	&

����	!��	��
	!��������	��
&�	�!	/����
��	��	��
	�������	����	
��
�	��$��$
	��
	���
��	���������
	�!	
#
&(�	��!��&�����	��	�
!��
�	��	(������(�	1	�!	����	3	
�!	)��
���
	30�	�!	��
	����	��	�&
��
�	/�	��
	��

��&	�!	6�!��&�����	���	0222�	
	

���� � 	 ��������0������	�����
	
����	�
!
�
��
	��	&����
	1A	�/�$
�	��
	'��
�����	!��	���(����
	)�((���	���	'
$
��(&
��	
���	�
�
�
������	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��	��
	!����
	�!	��
	��$��	�
���
�	���������	
���!��
�����	/���������	��!��&������		
	

���� �� �	���,� �#��������	/���	�������
	
-�
	'��
����	!��	��&&�����	)
�$��
�	��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��	
����	"����&/
	
(��(
���	�(������	��	�
��&&
��
�	/�	��
	
����	"����&/
	*����	��&&���

	�!	00	*���	
0233	 &����
	3D	�
!
��%�		-�
	�
��&&
��������	����	�
5���
�	��
	�((��$��	�!	��������	
��������			
			
���

�	����	K	
	

 3%	 �((��$��	��	��$
�	��	��
	�
�
��
	�!	�����
��&/
	������
�	��/M
��	��	
��	���
(��/�
	(���
	/
���	�
�
�$
��	����	��	/
	���

�	/�	��
	M����	
������	��	������������	����	��
	�
�
$���	��/��
�	

&/
��	���	��
	
'��
�����	�!	������
	�!	��
	��������
��	���������
�?	
		

 0%	 ��
	����������	����	�
�����	��	��
	���
�!�����	��	!����	�!	��
	
(��(
����	��	������
�	��	&�#�&��
	�
�
�(��?	
		

 1%	
		

���	��(����	�
�
�(�	!��&	�����
��&/
	������
	��	����9!
��
�	!��	
��$
��&
��	����	��
	(����	��	�
�
���
	!����
�	�
$
��
	��$����?	����	
/
���	�	�(
����	���
	���	���	��	/
	�

�	��	�
�����	�	(�
�
�
��?	
	

 D%	
		

��
	��(����	��	��
�	��	&�#�&��
	��
	�
$
��
	��$����	���	����&
	
�
�
������	�((��������
�	��	��
	(����	��
	
#���	(��M
���	��	/
	
�
���
�	��	��
	/����	�!	����$�����	/����
��	(�����	���	��
	�$
����	
/����
��	(���	!��	��
	(���?	
	

 E%	 ��
	!���	/����
��	���
�	��	/������	��	��
	M����	��&&���

	���	��/��
�	
!��	������
������	��	����	��	(����/�
	��	
����
	��
	��$����	�
5���
�	
��	��
	0233730	!��������	�
��	���	/
	����
$
��	

	
	

Page 16



	
�	�� ��/�� 	"���	/�������	���

	
����	�
!
�
��
	��	&����
	1;	�/�$
�	��
	'��
����	!��	'
$
��(&
��	���	�
�
�
������	
��/&���
�	�	�����
�	�
(���	��	���&����	����	���(����	���������	���!��
�����	/���������	
��!��&������		
	�
	
	
	
	
	

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



� ��

�
���������	�
�����

� �

�������� � � � ���������	
���

������������
�������
������


����������� ��������
�

�����
 
 
 
 ��
���������
����


��������
������� 
 
 ����������
 �����


�
��
������� � � !�������
"��
��������#
�������	


�������� 
���
$�$����%
���������	
&""����


��������
 
 
 
 '��(
��)*�
��+��*

� � � � �,����(����-�������.��#�����-���-��


����� � � � 
 $


 �!�����"����
 
 
 
�
 


�����
 /



�
#$�����%��
�����!�� 



'��
������������
�"
�
�������#
�������
�����
��	
������
�#
�������
��
�	�

0������#
����%
���
����������
��
 ���
����-

'��
�������
������
��
������
�������#

�������%
���
#���
��
"���
��	
������������-



'��
&�������
1
�������#
$���������
2����
	��
��
�
'�	�
���
0���	�
3����
��

����#
���
���	
������-

'��
3����
���
��
 ��#
����
���
��	
"������	
���
	��
���
��
�

������-

'��	�
"������	
����
���	������
�#
���
$���������
2����
��
�)
 ��#
����-




'��	
������
����	
��������������	
��
�������
���	���
"���
���
������-











���&�������'���()**�+�()*,�



�������#
�������
����	
��
����
���#
���
�������
���������	%
��
����������(

����������	�
�����
4
���������
5�#�����
���
�����������
������
��
���
������
���

����
�����6
�
���������
�������
�
4
������
��������
������	
��
������
���7�����#
���	6

����
���
����������
�
4
�������
��������
��
��8���	�
��	�����	
��
����"��

����������	%
���������
�""������#
�������
����	"������
���
	������
�������#
���

	������
�����������	%
���
���
	������
��
��	�����	-

5��"�������
��
��	�������
��
�		��	
���	��
��
�������������
�������	
�	
�
�����
�

���"�������
���������-












��&'�������"�����
�-�����������������'��'�����-���"��������&'�������"�����

���'�-��.��������/������/������-
'��-



��������������	
��
���	
������
���
��
���
"���
������
�8�	����
������	-


Agenda Item 6Page 19



� ��





��������&'�������"����������!�
����!/����'�����-�
����!/���"0�

���.��������-�#1��'��!/���%��"��!���-���������!�����"���



9�
:7�������	
/�����
9		�		����
"��
�������#
�������
�	
�����
�������-







��������-�����"�2����"��"�������������-�-��������



'���
��������������	
�%
�%
+%
*%
)%
;%
��%
��%
�+
���
�*
�"
���
&�������
1
�������#

$���������
2����
��
���������	
���

������������
�������
���
������
	��<���
��

���
�������	
��
	������
�
�"
���	
������-



'���
��������������	
�%
=%>%��
���
��
�"
���
&�������
1
�������#
$���������

2����
��
���������	
���

������������
�������%
	��<���
��
���
�������	
��

	������
�
�"
���	
������%
���
�����������
��
"���
�������-



���	��	(
���
��������������	
������
���
��������
���������
��
���
$���������

2����
���
���
���	������
�
	��	����
��#
"������-




�'�������%���&����"����"�-���-���-����"��"�������������-�-��������




��
��
��	����
��
���
������	���	
�"
���
&�������
1
�������#
$���������

2����
�����
������
���
��������
������"���
�#
���
������%
"���
��
�����
"���
���

�����		
���
��
�
��		��
����������#
��
�������
�����������	-






3��0.����-�&�&��"�


&�������
1
�������#
$���������
2����
'�	�
���
0���	�
3����
������%
 ��#
����(

?���������	
���

������������
�������
������@



������
��
�������%
�>
 �����#
����(
?�������#
�������@








�.���������


0��
 ���

��
���
����
����
�

���
 	
�
���


A�
 
 ����

5���



 /'
 
 �����

5���





&����������
�$'
$�����(
5����
9��#%
9		�	����
!�������%
��"��
����������	







Page 20



� ��

���������	
���

������������
�������
������



������
�#
!�������
"��
��������#
�������	
��
�������%
��
���������

����



*4)� �����-�������


�-�
 '��
������������
�"
�
�������#
�������
�����
��	
������
�#
�������
��
�	�


0������#
����%
���
����������
��
 ���
����-

'��
�������
������
��
������

�������#
�������%
���
#���
��
"���
��	
������������-




�-�
 '��
&�������
1
�������#
$���������
2����
	��
��
�
'�	�
���
0���	�
3����


��
����#
���
���	
������-

'��
!�������
�"
��������#
�������	
��������
��

��������
������
����
��"��������
��
�		�	�
���
3����-

'��
3����
���
��

 ��#
����
���
��	
"������	
���
	��
���
��
�
������-

'��	�
"������	
����

���	������
�#
���
&�������
1
�������#
$���������
2����
��
�)
 ��#
����-





�-�
 '��
�����	�
�"
���	
������
�	
��
����
��������������	
��
�������
���	���


"���
���
������-



(4)� ���-��."�


�-�
 '��
������
�#
���
&�������
1
�������#
$���������
2����
���������
����(


•� '��
�������
���
��	
�������	@
��	���
"��
���
���#
�	
��	�
	�����
�#
�

�����������
�"
���
���������	
���

������������
�������

�����������	
��������#
��
�����%
���
"���		���
��

������������

�������-




•� �������#
'���	
	�����
��
��	���������%
���
���
����
�"
	���������


������������
����	��
&""����	
B
�&	C
���
����
����������	
��

��������
�#
�
�������
������
$���������
'���
B�$'C
������%
���
"��

����
����-




•� 2�	�
��������
��������	
���
������
��
	����
�8��������
�"
	����		"��


������������
����������%
�������������
������	%
�������

�����		�	%
���
�������
����
?������@
�		��	-




•� 
�&
����	
	�����
��
��������
��
��	���
���
�����
	��""
���
���������
��

�����
���
������	
�"
���
����%
���
��
	�����
��	�
��	���
����
�""����	

�������
���
����		��#
����������
���
�""���
	������-




•� A�����
���
��������#
������	�����	
	�����
��
������
�������
��
���

�����		-




•� 
������������
���������	
	�����
��
���������
��
"��
������
����	%
���

���	�
���
���������	
�	��
"��
����
���
��"��������
����������
���

����#	�	
�����	�	
��
"�����-



•� '��	�
����	��
�����������	
	�����
��
	�����
����
�������	
�������

5�#�����
����-



•� '��
���	��������
	�����
��
�������
��
��"����
�������������#

�����������	-




•� 9
"������
������
	�����
��
�������
���
��
 ��#
����%
��
�������
��	�

��"��������-


Page 21



� ��



54)� ��"&��"�������������-�����"�


�-�
 '��
�����������
��	���	�	
��
���
&�������
1
�������#
$���������


2����@	
��������������	
���
��������
�����-





����������	�	�
���
������
�������	
���������������������
������
�����
��
�������������
�

���
���
������
�������
�����


����&�
B����
����������
�#
���������
A��	���
��
�������#
�������������	

��
��������
��
��
�����
�	
?
������������
$���������@C-



�������������
��������
���	����	�
�������������������
������
�������
�����
�

���
�
��������
�
��
�� !"!���������
�����������
�#�����
��

������
��������$��
%
���
�&����
�
����
���'%&�(���������
��������
����
�
������
��)��������
�
����*�)�����
������
������
��)����

�	
��������		�
����
���
�����������
������
�
������
�������
����#���
��
�����
�����������
��
���������������
�

�����
��


����&�%
	��<���
��
�$'
$�����	@
����
�����
��
	������
���
�����

�&	

���
���
�������
�����
����-

�
���+
���	
�����
�	
��������

��
������
������
������

������

���
�
�����������
�
�	
����
���������

�����������
������
�������������,����

�������
)���
�
������
��%&���
��

��)������-�
)����	
�������*���	�
�
����������������
����
�������
�����������������

���
�
����


����&�%
���
���	
��
�������
"��8������#
����
�������	
��
�����
<����


������������
�������	
��
��
����
�����
B���#C
�"
������
������#



�����
�
��
�������
����������
��

����������
�������
�����	���������

��
�����
�
������
������

������


����&�


�
����
������
�������������,����

�'��,(�
��
����������
�

-�
)
�����
���

������
�������
����������-���������������
��
�����������
�.��#�%	
�������
��������

���
�����������������
���

�
���������
���

��
������������
-
��	�
�������-������
�)�


�
�

�
�#�����
������

�������,���������������
���
�
��
�)��������
���,$��	

������
��.
���-
�*������

���

�������
���&
��

������		
�����#���,$��������
�
����
�
�����

���������
���

��������
�
��
�������
�
�����*�
���

�����������������������
�
�
)�
��	
��
���
*������������
����
���		�
������-������
�������������
�������
�
��
#�


����&�


�
����
-��
���

���
�
������������
�����
��
�����/�������� ! !�	�
��

���	�
���*����.
��������


�
����
�	�������
�������
�
�
�����

�
-��������
����

���
���
������
���
���������

���
���#�


����&�


Page 22



� 
�



���������������

	
�������
������
������
�����*�����������	���������������
�
���

���
�����
���

��������
��
�
���
���
�
���������������	���
#������	
�����
�
��������
�������
������
���	
�����
�	
����������
��
������
�������
�����
�
����&��


�����

-�
)�������

���
�������
�������

���������������
��,-

-�
)�����
%�
������/��
��������

	�
���������
�������
�,-

-�
)�����%�
������&����
�
���
+��
��)����

�	
��������
�
��
�����������������
���
����

��������������������
�
�
�����������������		�
������
������
�����)�
�����


����&�%
���
�������
����
���

�
�����
�%����)�0
����������
���
����+��
�����
��

�	�������������
�
���
���������
�
������
������
-
�����

����������
��	���
�)�����
���
�������
���
��


����&�%
	��<���
��
A�����
���
���������
2����
�����������	
�����

���"�����-



�� �/������

�	������	���
�������	����
�	
�	��
��������
�������
���
�����������
�
�-

-�
)�

	�
��B	��
9������8
9
���
0�����
�
��������
��
���	
������C-�
�
����&�




�����
������
�����/
����
���

�

-�
)
�������	���
��������
�)������
��������������


����
�����������������

-�
)�


����&�


�
������

-�
)�������

���
��������������������
�������
������
������
�����
)�
����*�)����

����
�������������������
�������

���������������
��,-

-�
)�
����%�
������/��
��


����&�%
���
�������
����
�;



������
���������������
��	���
�����

��
���

-��
���
��

����������

�
����������������

���
�
������
��
������
������������
���


����&�



������

-�
)������
�
��

���
�
���������

�
���������������������������1
��	����
2���� !" #��


����&�%
�������
��
�	
	����	���
���
������
�	
����
�����
��
�����
�
"���
��

�����	
�"
��������������
�����
���
���
�����������	-



��
�&����
�
���+��
�������

��
��
�����������
�

�����
��

�����
����
��
3��


-�
)*���
��������������

����
����
����
�������������
��)�
������
�)

����)�����
��
����������
�

��
�
�#�

Page 23



� ��



����&�




,4)� ����'�"���"�


+-�

 '��
��������������	
��
���	
������
�������
�
��	�����
��#
"������
"��



������������
�������
��
5�#�����%
���	�	����
����
���
3���������@	

������	�
������-




+-�
 '��
������@	
"������	
�����	�
���
���������	
�"
�������
��
�������������


�����
����
��
������
����������	
���
��
���������
<����
�������
�������

	������	
���
����������	
��
������
�		��	-

9	
�8������%
����
���
����"��
�"

�8��������%
	���
������	
��
���
�������
�����
���
�����	��-

'��	�
�������

������	
��
	���

������������
���������	
��
"��
����
����
���������	%

��	������������
�"
�������#
'���	%
���
�
	�����������
����
"��
���
�������@	

������
$���������
'���-

'��	
��������
����
"������
����
��

�������������	
���
���
����
�"
���
��������#
���
��������#
	�����	
��
���

�����		%
���
�������
���
���������
�"

������������
�������
��
5�#�����-


Page 24



� ��

�&&��-�$��������'�.��-�6��.��������-�����-����"��������7������8��-"�
��-�	�7���
�&������&�������"�



�9�!
 :D/�'/
3

:/3A2&E�A&&!�

 
:�
&�
9$:
!:!



:/3A2&E�A&&!��9�6�3�	�:/�
'A&�:
5�/
�/59��F�E
�A9
3:!

/

�/3A'
5�/
'


2��	����
 ���������
BG����
:����������C

!����"���
BG����
$���
H���C

$������
BG����
:����������C

���������



*4���������-�8�"��2����7���''�
�
�-
���������




�������
 :""���
BG����
:""���
1
���	��C

A�����#
1
$��������
BG����
5�������C

A�����
�������

$����#
1
3��������
BG����
�������%
!����

���
������
1
$����
3����C


*4���.�������&����2�

�������-�
�
(4�
��'�!


!��������
 !��������

I�#���

$�����
'���

�����
BG����
�����C


�-
!��������



�-
I�#���



�-
$�����
'���




!����
 $����#
1
3��������
BG����
�������%
:""���

1
���	��
���
������
1
$����
3����C


*4�;�������0���-����%��"��!�

:""���
1
���	��
 :""���
BG����
�������C

���	��
1
�����


$����#
1
3��������
BG����
�������%
!����

���
������
1
$����
3����C


�-
:""���







(4�	�&"���2�	�����



:����������
 ���������
BG����
2��	����C

:����������

$������
BG����
2��	����C


�-
:����������



(4�
���-���2�8�-�!�
�

A��
 2�����
5���
1
5���#���		
BG����
5�������C

A��


����
5��	����

I���	
'�������
1
��	���
$���
BG����
��

2�����8C


*4�������-�����!���""�


(4�6��������"&������-�8�"����

�''�

A����������
 :���	�����

A����������


�-
:���	�����



�-
A����������




$���
H���
 !����"���
BG����
2��	����C

:	�����

3�������

�������
1
$���	����


*4�#"��%��/�;'����'��2�
��������-�#�"��


�-
�������
1
$���	����




5�������
 2�����
5���
1
5���#���		
BG����
A��C

A�����#
1
$��������
BG����
�������C

5�������


*4�3���������0�
�
(4���%���''�2�����'�!


Page 25



� ��

�9�!
 :D/�'/
3

:/3A2&E�A&&!�

 
:�
&�
9$:
!:!


:/3A2&E�A&&!��9�6�3�	�:/�
'A&�:
5�/
�/59��F�E
�A9
3:!

/

�/3A'
5�/
'


5�#�����

�����������


�����������
BG
����
5�#�����
��
$��#C

5�#�����
��
$������
BG
����
5�#�����
:���
���

5�#�����
��
$��#C

F�����	����
BG
����
5�#�����
:���C


*4����--'�7��-�

5�#�����
:���
 5�#�����
��
$������
BG
����
5�#�����

�����������
���
5�#�����
��
$��#C

F�����	����
BG
����
5�#�����
�����������C


*4�
��
���������-����'�&"�����
�



5�#�����
��

$��#


���������
1

������

�����������
BG����
5�#�����
�����������C

5�#�����
��
$������
BG
����
5�#�����

�����������
���
5�#�����
:���C

����"���


*4���'�����0/�6�7�����2�
��-.�7�!�


�-
����"���


5�#�	����

!��	����


:�������
1
!��	����

3��	�����

5�#�	����
BG����
5�#�	����
���"���C




*4�#'�������2����"�����


�-
3��	�����


5�#�	����

���"���


5�#�	����
BG����
5�#�	����
!��	����C

'���������%
A���
1
&��	���


*4��'!�"���0�


�-
'���������%
A���
1
&��	���


�������#
 �������#

'�������
0�����

��������


�-
�������#



�-
'�������
0�����



�-
��������




��
2�����8
 2����
2�����

I���@	
'�������
1
��	���
$���
BG����
A��C

��
2�����8


�-
2����
2�����



(4�
��3�-���$�2� ��.<"�
���������
�

��
5����
1
'��

�����"����


���#
������

��������	�


�-
���#
������



�-
��������	�




�����
 0���

�����
BG����
!��������C


�-
0���



�-
�����




������
1

$����
3����


:�	�
:��

$����
3����

$����#
1
3��������
BG����
�������%
!����

���
:""���
1
���	��C


�-
$����
3����



�-
:�	�
:��




G

������������	
��������#
�������
�#
����
����
���
����






�
�
�
�

Page 26



�
�
�

0�
��

��

�

(
5
��

��
	�

�

��

,�
���

��
�




��

��
��

��
��

��
	�
�

�

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny  
Management Board 
 
Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood 
Working 
 
July 2011 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Localities and Neighbourhood Working Review 
July 2011 
 
Plymouth City Council 
 

Page 29



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   2 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
Contents 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 Foreword 
 

3 

2 Scrutiny Approach 
 

5 

3 Findings and recommendations 
 
 

6 

4 Summary of recommendations 
 

12 

A1 Schedule of witnesses 
 

13 

A2 Background papers and written evidence 
 

15 

 
 

Page 30



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   3 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
1.  Foreword 
 
  
1.1 Every Council faces challenges in finding ways to enable residents to influence and 

challenge the way that all services are delivered, and to enable Councillors to make 
the most of their role in understanding and championing the issues that matter most 
to their communities.  Plymouth is no exception.  Despite the progress that we have 
made over the years and the clear commitment of both political parties to getting it 
right, our citizens are telling us that there is still more to do. 

 
1.2 Back in 2009, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board took part in a 

significant review of what we then called Locality Working.  It is worth restating 
what our original objectives were, as they remain as important now as they were 
then. They were to: 

 
• Enable residents to influence and challenge service delivery 
• Make services provided by different agencies and Council departments more 

‘joined up’ 
• Improve Councillor involvement 
• Reduce inequalities between communities 
• Focus money and staff more effectively 
• Improve the sharing and use of information 
• Monitor service provision more effectively 
• Meet agreed local and national targets 

 
1.3 As a result of our recommendations, the Council decided to replace its eight Area 

Committees in February 2010, introducing new arrangements based on engagement 
with communities in 43 Neighbourhoods, with multi-agency teams operating in six 
Localities.  At the time, we promised to review the new arrangements after a year 
to check whether our original objectives were being met.   

 
1.4 During the last year, the Council and its partners have renewed the city’s vision, to 

be one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront cities, where an outstanding 
quality of life is enjoyed by everyone. It has focused its over-riding priorities to four 
– promoting growth, raising aspiration, tackling inequality and providing value for 
communities.  To deliver against these priorities it is now even more important that 
our objectives for neighbourhood working are fulfilled.  In addition, following the 
change of government, the Localities Bill, which is likely to become law at the end of 
2011, will give more power and influence to communities at neighbourhood level; 
we will therefore have to be sure that our neighbourhood arrangements are robust 
enough to deliver these new responsibilities when they are given to us. 

 
1.5 This report sets out our findings following the review, and makes recommendations 

that we hope will further improve the Council and its partners’ approach to 
understanding and responding to the needs of our communities across the city. 

 
1.6 The findings and recommendations of this report represent the shared views of the 

Task and Finish group. 

Page 31



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   4 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
1.7 I would like to extend my thanks to members of the Task and Finish group for their 

commitment in conducting this scrutiny review, and to the officers who supported 
us.  I would also like to thank Pete Aley, the Council’s Assistant Director for Safer 
Communities and Nick McMahon, our Localities Officer, for their continued 
commitment and support to us in this work.   

 
1.8 Finally, my thanks go to the witnesses who took time to attend and contribute to 

the review, representing the views of Council officers, Members, partner agencies 
and, most importantly, our communities. 

 
 
 
 

Page 32



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   5 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
2.  Scrutiny Approach 

 
2.1 Given the wide scope of this review, the Scrutiny Management Board decided in 

March 2011 that the membership of the Task and Finish Group should be drawn 
from its own members rather than that of an individual scrutiny panel.  The Task and 
Finish Group comprised the following members: 

 
Cllr David James (Chair) 
Cllr Sue McDonald 
Cllr David Stark 
Cllr Jack Thompson 
Cllr Nicky Wildy 

 
2.2 The Project Initiation Document for the review specified evaluation criteria agreed 

by the Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel against which the 
original objectives set out in the Forward above could be considered, and set out 
suggested issues where recommendations could be made, all of which have been 
included in the recommendations contained within this report. 

 
2.3 A full list of the written evidence considered by the Panel is appended to this report, 

and included: 
 

• The original Localities Working scrutiny review report from November 2009 
• A detailed report to the Task and Finish Group in the name of the Cllr Glen 

Jordan, Cabinet Member with responsibility for Localities.  The report gave 
an overview of progress against original objectives, a summary of 
performance against the specified evaluation criteria, and the results of 
surveys into the views of Councillors and Staff.  

• The report drew a number of conclusions for consideration by the Task and 
Finish Group, all of which have been addressed in the recommendations of 
this report. 

• A number of other documents were available to the Task and Finish Group, 
and were used during the sessions to aid questioning of the witnesses and in 
debate.  These included summaries of all neighbourhood meetings that had 
taken place, directories of locality and neighbourhood personnel, maps with 
existing and proposed boundaries and survey base data. 

 
2.4 The Task and Finish Group met over two days, on 11 and 12 July 2011.  During 

these sessions, 17 witnesses attended, from most stakeholder groups from the 
statutory and community sectors and members of the public, presenting their 
perspective on the impact of the revised locality arrangements, and responding to 
questions asked by Members. 

 
2.5 Finally, the Task and Finish Group considered and debated the issues raised by the 

evidence submitted and the contributions of the witnesses. The findings and 
recommendations of this report represent the outcome of that debate. 

Page 33



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   6 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
 
3.  Summary of findings 

  
 
3.1 Neighbourhood Working 
 
3.1.1 There was a consensus among members of the Task and Finish Group that 

development of the arrangements that have been in place since 2010, with a focus 
on neighbourhood working, would better serve the Council and its partners’ vision 
for the city than a return to previous, Area Committee arrangements. 

 
3.1.2 Survey results submitted as evidence showed that an overwhelming majority of the 

public and of Council staff surveyed, and a significant majority of Councillors and 
Police staff were satisfied or very satisfied with neighbourhood meetings, albeit from 
a relatively small sample of opinion. 
 

3.1.3 All witnesses suggested areas where work at neighbourhood level could be 
improved, and the outcome of these suggestions has informed the recommendations 
of this report.  However no witnesses, even those who had major concerns about 
the way that their neighbourhood and locality arrangements were being delivered 
requested a return to Area Committee arrangements. 

 
R1  Locality and Neighbourhood Working should be renamed Neighbourhood 

Working 
 
 
3.2 Locality Teams 
 
3.2.1 Members felt that the role originally envisaged for ‘virtual’ multi-agency Locality 

teams in dealing with issues that could not be resolved at neighbourhood level could 
be achieved more effectively in different ways. Locality based arrangements for 
service delivery however, such as those for children and young people’s services and 
health should continue to develop. 

 
3.2.2 Evidence submitted suggested that there is a lack of clarity and transparency about 

the membership, accountability and activities of Locality Teams.  Neighbourhood 
Liaison Officers described difficulties in communicating with them, and in getting 
issues resolved when they were raised.  It also seemed clear that far fewer issues 
had been raised by neighbourhoods for resolution at Locality level than had been 
envisaged.   

Page 34



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   7 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
3.2.3 Locality Managers themselves did not feel that Locality Teams had made a significant 

contribution to identifying and resolving complex, multi-agency issues.  Members 
heard that issues that had been dealt with through Locality Teams, such as the Public 
Place Order in Mutley and Greenbank, and promotion of the ‘Peer Assist’ stop 
smoking campaign in schools could probably have been implemented through other 
means.  The benefits described of senior manager support for the delivery of 
solutions to problems raised at neighbourhood level, and the informal learning 
opportunities for managers could be delivered through the proposal to allocate an 
officer from the Council’s senior management team to each Ward to support 
Councillors in their neighbourhoods. 
 

3.2.4 The Task and Finish Group felt that it is important to differentiate, however 
between ‘virtual’ Locality Teams put in place as part of the Localities and 
Neighbourhood working arrangements, and the place-based multi-agency service 
delivery teams based on localities being implemented by Children and Young 
People’s Services and health agencies, Adult Social Care and others, which are 
aiming to deliver more localised and better aligned services. 

 
R2  Locality Teams as set up as part of Locality and Neighbourhood Working 

arrangements in February 2010 should be discontinued.  A member of the 
Council’s Senior Management Team (SMT) should be nominated for each Ward 
within the city, with designated duties with respect to support for Ward 
Councillors and Neighbourhood Working. The Lead Ward Councillor decision 
role should be rescinded 
 

 
 
3.3 Neighbourhood Meetings 
 
3.3.1 The Task and Finish group concluded that if the characteristics of the most 

successful neighbourhood meeting arrangements were replicated more consistently 
across the city, the neighbourhood working model could deliver better against the 
original objectives set. 

  
3.3.2 A large number of examples of good practice were given by witnesses of effective 

ways of advertising, promoting and chairing neighbourhood meetings which 
maximised attendance and effectively identified local priorities, and promoted 
community confidence in statutory agencies’ effectiveness in responding to them.  
Unfortunately, other examples were given of neighbourhood meetings where this 
was not the case.  The Task and Finish Group felt that more should be done in 
promoting good practise, and ensuring that it was applied consistently across all 
neighbourhoods. 

 
R3  Best practice protocols regarding neighbourhood meeting arrangements should be 

produced and shared amongst Neighbourhood Liaison Officers and newly 
designated SMT members with a view to promoting, implementing and monitoring 
consistent high quality arrangements 

 

Page 35



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   8 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
3.4 Support for Councillors 
 
3.4.1 Members felt that greater recognition is needed of the pivotal role that Councillors 

play in supporting and championing the neighbourhood agenda.  This should be 
reflected in the support arrangements available to them in undertaking their 
community advocate role in neighbourhoods. 

 
3.4.2 The suggestion that members of the Council’s senior management team should be 

formally allocated the responsibility for support of Councillors in each Ward in the 
city in their Neighbourhood work was supported.  It was also suggested that 
Councillor should feature on publicity associated with Neighbourhood meetings. 

 
R4  The role and identity of members should be included in publicity regarding 

neighbourhood meetings 
 
 
3.5 Neighbourhood Liaison Officers 

 
3.5.1 Members felt that significant attention needs to be given to ensuring that all 

Neighbourhood Liaison Officers are able to perform as well as the best do currently 
 
3.5.2 The Task and Finish Group heard evidence of some extremely effective 

Neighbourhood Liaison Officers (NLO), who had supported Councillors, ensured 
meetings met with objectives and had played an active role in problem solving.  
There were, however, other examples given where this was not the case, and the 
resulting negative impact on the neighbourhood meeting was significant. Features of 
effective NLOs appeared to include the right professional background, access to 
appropriate support arrangements within their teams, and the appropriate priority 
being given to the role within their overall work responsibilities.  Members did not 
feel that the ‘voluntary’ description given to the role does justice to its significant 
contribution to effective neighbourhood working. 

 
R5  Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (NLO) roles should be reviewed to ensure that 

skill sets of individuals match the demands of the job.  Specific training needs 
analysis should be carried out to ensure training and development is available 
where needed.  Line managers of NLOs should include the role within the NLO’s 
personal objectives, and seek feedback from Members at appraisal.  NLOs and 
their line managers should ensure that the role is integral to, rather than in 
addition to their work programme, and that adequate support is available to assist 
them in the role. 

 
 
3.6 Stakeholder understanding of Neighbourhood Working arrangements 

 
3.6.1 Members observed that more work needs to be done to ensure that there is a 

broad understanding by all stakeholders of the structure, support and leadership 
arrangements for neighbourhood working. 

 

Page 36



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   9 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

3.6.2 It was notable that few of the witnesses, and not all of the members of the Task and 
Finish Group had a clear understanding of the structure, leadership and 
accountabilities within the Locality and Neighbourhood working arrangements.  A 
clear need was identified to address this issue following the review. 

 
R6  Revised arrangements should be commended to Plymouth 2020 partnership and, 

subject to agreement be publicised and briefed to relevant stakeholders from all 
agencies and to residents. 

 
 
3.7 Police support for Neighbourhood Working 
 
3.7.1 The continuing commitment of the Police to neighbourhood working was 

commended by members, but it was agreed that both the Council and Police have 
more to do in fully aligning the two agencies’ approach to neighbourhood working. 

 
3.7.2 The police received a high degree of positive feedback on their contribution to 

effective neighbourhood working, and Members felt that it was useful that Police 
principles for effective neighbourhood working were reiterated: 

 
• Promoting community access to services 
• Promoting community influence over services 
• Supporting joint interventions 
• Ensuring accountability 

 
3.7.3 The issue of improving learning from repeat problems experienced in 

neighbourhoods was raised, as was the importance of joint working not just at 
neighbourhood meetings, but outside them. 
 

3.7.4 During police evidence, an example was given of Neighbourhoods containing large 
institutions, such as Derriford Hospital, which were not represented at the 
meetings. 

 
R7  Analysis of ‘repeat issues’ in Neighbourhoods, and of complaints should be 

undertaken to ensure that the necessary learning is taking place.  This practice 
should be included in best practice protocols for Neighbourhood Working 

 
 
3.8 Community and Voluntary Sector support for Neighbourhood Working 

 
3.8.1 The community and voluntary sector was recognised as having a major role to play 

in supporting neighbourhood working, but Members felt there is more to do in 
clarifying how ‘community anchor’ organisations work alongside elected Members in 
supporting neighbourhood working 

 
3.8.2 There was some evidence submitted that the sharing of issues, priorities and 

intelligence between community organisations and neighbourhood staff could be 
improved. 

 

Page 37



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   10 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

R8  A review is undertaken by the Customers and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel and a report submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Board with respect to the role of community infrastructure and community 
anchor organisations in supporting neighbourhood working 

 
 
3.9 Health agencies and Neighbourhood Working 
 
3.9.1 Members recognised that, with major legislative changes affecting health agencies, 

further work is needed to identify how health agencies, including providers, 
commissioners and public health professionals operate at neighbourhood level 

 
3.9.2 As Health legislation is implemented, the links between new and existing health 

agencies and neighbourhoods need to be identified and included in engagement 
structures where appropriate. 

 
R9  The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board takes responsibility for ensuring that 

neighbourhood level interaction takes place with key health agencies 
 

 
 
3.10 Proposed Neighbourhood boundary Changes 
 
3.10.1 The Task and Finish Group heard that concerns had been raised that Locality and 

Neighbourhood boundaries are not co-terminous with Ward boundaries, making 
Councillor involvement difficult.  Some minor anomalies had been addressed to 
better fit in with Ward boundaries, but a broader proposal was set out in the 
Overview Report, reducing the number of Neighbourhoods from 43 to 39.  The 
proposed arrangements would make all neighbourhoods co-terminous with Wards. 
Members were told that informal discussions suggested that such changes would be 
supported by Ward Councillors and the Police, Health agencies and data analysists 
have indicated that they are willing to work with or adjust to these boundaries. 
 

3.10.2 It is acknowledged that there is a resource implication in updating profiles to reflect 
revised boundaries. 
 

R10  Plans are put in place to adopt the proposed boundary changes set out in the 
overview report. 
 

 
 
3.11 Neighbourhood Profiles 
 
3.11 1 Members felt that neighbourhood profiles have proved beneficial in providing 

relevant data to inform priority setting and decision making, but need to be kept up 
to date, and to include qualitative information about people’s views as well as 
quantitative data about performance and conditions.  They should also be adjusted 
to reflect proposed boundary changes, and the format should be consistent. 
 

Page 38



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   11 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

R11  Neighbourhood Profiles are reviewed, updated and made consistent  in line with 
the findings and recommendations of this review 
 

 
 
3.12 Communication Methods 
3.12.1 A review of methods of communicating with the public about meetings, and of 

seeking and responding to the views of people who don’t normally attend meetings 
is needed. 

 
3.12.2 Several examples of good practise were given during evidence, but a lack of 

consistency in good practise was evidence.  Several witnesses also raised the 
potential of use of electronic social media to communicate more widely. 

 
R12  A review is undertaken of communication methods around neighbourhood 

working, with recommendations back to the Customers and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
 
3.13 Constitutional Arrangements 
 
3.13.1 The Council’s constitution should reflect the formal role of neighbourhood working 

in our democratic arrangements 
 
3.13.2 Given the importance of neighbourhoods in demonstrating the Council’s 

accountability to neighbourhoods, the member and officer accountability 
arrangements should be formalised in the Constitution. 

 
R13  The Constitution be updated to reflect revised member and officer accountability 

arrangements for Neighbourhoods and Wards 
 
 
3.14 Review 
 
3.14.1 The revised arrangements that we have proposed should be the subject of 

continuing review. 
  
3.14.2 Given the proposed revisions in approach, and the fact that new localism legislation 

is likely to be law within the next year, another formal review should take place in 
July 2012. 

 
R14 A review of these arrangements is carried out as a Task and Finish Group in July 

2012 
 

R15 The cost of localities working, including officer time, be recorded. 
 

 
 

Page 39



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   12 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
4. Recommendations 

  
 
R1 Locality and Neighbourhood Working should be renamed Neighbourhood Working 
R2 Locality Teams as set up as part of Locality and Neighbourhood Working 

arrangements in February 2010 should be discontinued. A member of the Council’s 
Senior Management Team (SMT) should be nominated for each Ward within the 
city, with designated duties with respect to support for Ward Councillors and 
Neighbourhood Working. The Lead Ward Councillor decision should be rescinded 

R3 Best practice protocols regarding neighbourhood meeting arrangements should be 
produced and shared amongst Neighbourhood Liaison Officers and newly designated 
SMT members with a view to promoting, implementing and monitoring consistent 
high quality arrangements 

R4 The role and identity of members should be included in publicity regarding 
neighbourhood meetings 

R5 Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (NLO) roles should be reviewed to ensure that skill 
sets of individuals match the demands of the job.  Specific training needs analysis 
should be carried out to ensure training and development is available where needed.  
Line managers of NLOs should include the role within the NLO’s personal 
objectives, and seek feedback from Members at appraisal.  NLO’s and their line 
managers should ensure that the role is integral to, rather than in addition to their 
work programme, and that adequate support is available to assist them in the role. 

R6 Revised arrangements should be commended to Plymouth 2020 partnership and, 
subject to agreement be publicised and briefed to relevant stakeholders from all 
agencies and to residents. 

R7 Analysis of repeat issues in Neighbourhoods, and of complaints should be 
undertaken to ensure that the necessary learning is taking place.  This practice 
should be included in best practice protocols for Neighbourhood Working 

R8 A review is undertaken by the Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel and a report submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board with 
respect to the role of community infrastructure and community anchor 
organisations in supporting neighbourhood working 

R9 The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board takes responsibility for ensuring that 
neighbourhood level interaction takes place with key health agencies 

R10 Plans are put in place to adopt the proposed boundary changes set out in the 
overview report. 

R11 Neighbourhood Profiles are reviewed and updated in line with the findings and 
recommendations of this review 

R12 A review is undertaken of communication methods around neighbourhood working, 
with recommendations back to the Customers and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 

R13 The Constitution be updated to reflect revised member and officer accountability 
arrangements for Neighbourhoods and Wards 

R14 A review of these arrangements is carried out as a Task and Finish Group in July 
2012 

R15 The cost of localities working, including officer time, be recorded. 

Page 40



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   13 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
A1 Schedule of Witnesses 

  
 

 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working 

 
Task and Finish Group – Witness Schedule 

 
11 and 12 July 2011 

 
Monday 11 July 2011 
 
 
 

Time  Witness 
 
2.30 pm 

  
Cllr Jordan, Cabinet Member 
 

2.50 pm  Mark Rich, Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (Mutley/Greenbank) 
 

3.10 pm  Jo Atkey, Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (Southway) 
 

   
   
3.40 pm  Ruth Walls, Third Sector Consortium 

 
4.00 pm  Dave Brown, Devonport Neighbourhood Board Chair 

 
4.20 pm  Nigel Pluckrose, NHS Plymouth 

 
Tuesday 12 July 2011 
 
 

Time 
 

 Witness 

9.30 am  Gill Peel, Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (Morice Town) 
 

9.50 am  John Emery, Plymstock Resident 
 

10.10 am  Phil Mitchell, Locality Manager (North West) 
 

10.30 am  Pat Patel, Tamarview Community Centre 
 

   
   
1.30 pm  Chief Superintendent Andy Bickley 

 
1.50 pm  PCSO Sarah Wilkins (Derriford Neighbourhood Team) 

Page 41



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   14 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

Time 
 

 Witness 

 
2.10 pm  JP Sanders, Locality Manager (South East) 

 
2.30 pm  Russ Moody, Stop Smoking Service Manager, and Dan Preece, 

Public Protection 
   
3.15 pm  Claire Oatway, Children’s Services / Local Strategic Partnership 

and Maggie Carter, Children’s Services 
 

3.40 pm  Peter Flukes, Wolseley Trust 
 

4.00 pm  Sarah Hopkins, Neighbourhood Liaison Officer (Ford), and Paul 
Squire, Ford Resident 
 

 
   

 

Page 42



Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working   15 

Plymouth City Council Overview & Scrutiny Management Board July 2011 

 
A2  Background Papers and Written evidence 
 
 
Project Initiation Document 
 
2009 Locality Working Task & Finish Report 
 
Localities and Neighbourhood Working Overview Report 
 
List of Witnesses 
 
Morice Town Newsletter 
 
Morice Town Progress Report - 20.06.2011 
 
Witness Submission - Debbie Burton 
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

   
CITY OF PLYMOUTH 

  
Subject: Unaccompanied Asylum seeking children and young people in 

Care 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    13 September 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Sam Leaves  

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young People 
 
Author: Richard Porter 

 Service Manager, 16+ Service 

Contact:    Tel: 01752 308886 
    E mail: richard.porter@plymouth.gov.uk 
     

Ref:     

Key Decision: No 
 
Part: I    
 
Executive Summary:  
The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Panel, through a Task and Finish Group, 
undertook a review of unaccompanied asylum seeking young people in care during February 2011.  
 
The panel report is attached (Appendix A) and included the following recommendations:  
 

1. A protocol must be established for facilitating the participation of groups of young people and 
adults in member-led meetings to aid communication, e.g. more use should be made of the 
corporate parenting leaflet 

 
2. PCC should more widely disseminate the existing policy and procedure to all sections of the 

children’s workforce and store these documents in a way that facilitates ready access 
 

3. A review is conducted of the range of services for unaccompanied asylum seeking children, 
including services provided by Youth Services, those funded by the Social Inclusion Unit and 
any services provided by partners. 

 
4. The Director of Children’s Services should establish closer working arrangements between 

children’s social care and other elements of the children’s workforce that work with 
unaccompanied asylum seeking children to meet the needs of unaccompanied asylum seeking 
children 

 
5. The Director of Children’s Services should improve training and understanding of 

unaccompanied asylum seeking children and asylum seekers and refugees issues for staff 
working with these groups 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 45



 

 2

6. The Director of Children’s Services should clarify and make explicit professional boundaries 
between individual workers and unaccompanied asylum seeking children. This should be 
monitored through supervision 

 
7. A report should be prepared on how professionals across the Children & Young People’s 

Trust work together to support the health and wellbeing of unaccompanied asylum seeking 
children, including where there are concerns. 

 
8. The Corporate Parenting Group should regularly monitor outcomes for unaccompanied 

asylum seeking children. 
 
 
It is recommended that the report’s recommendations are accepted. 
 
An Action plan has been developed in order to take forward these recommendations (Appendix B) 
 
Recommendation 2: That the action plan be endorsed  
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014  
   
Unaccompanied asylum seeking young people in care have issues that cut across a number of Council 
and Plymouth2020 partnership priorities, especially Inequalities. The recommendations contained 
within this report should be taken into account by the Council and all agencies when making 
decisions with regard to the future delivery and development of services to this group of young 
people. 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Services should be reviewed to ensure cost effectiveness and where appropriate universal services 
such as health and youth provision should be encouraged to do more to support this vulnerable 
group. 
 
Current budget plans do not include additional monies for expansion of Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeking Children services and it is expected that the improvements recommended are achieved 
within existing resources.  
 
However, many of the recommendations are practical and can be achieved through better 
information sharing, partnership working and a more customer focussed approach to practice. 
 
There are no direct implications for IT or land. 
   
 
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion 
 
Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children have often entered the UK from countries actively involved 
in conflict and have fled violence or oppression.  They have left their family and community networks 
and may have travelled for several months before arriving and making an application seeking asylum in 
the UK. 
 

Page 46



 

 3

The policy in the United Kingdom is to provide discretionary leave to remain for this group of 
children and young people and local authorities are required to care for them under the Children Act 
1989.   
 
The basis of work with this group of children and young people is that for the majority to return to 
their home country at 18, or as soon after that as is deemed safe for them to return and that only a 
few will be granted permanent leave to remain in the United Kingdom. 
  
The recommendations included here will ensure that Plymouth’s children’s workforce provide 
support for this group of children and young people whilst they living in the UK and that services are 
provided to help them to develop and grow.  
 

 
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
Recommendation 1:  That the report’s recommendations are accepted. 
 
Recommendation 2:  That the action plan (Appendix b) is implemented and that the Corporate 

Parenting group receive regular reports on this area of work 
 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
The recommendations could be rejected, but the area of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children 
identification and support has had cross party support in the past. The recommendations have a 
sound factual basis and every effort should be made to continue to improve services, albeit within 
limited financial resources. 

 
Background papers:   
 

 
Sign off:   
 
Fin SRA

/ChS
034
9/2.
9.11 
 

Leg 1274
5/PF. 
 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member Mairead MacNeil 
 

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



� � �

�����������	
���
�����		�����
������	���	�
������	�
��������	
��	��
��	��������	��������	
��	���
����	�
���	�
��	
��	
������	���
�	�������

�

�
�
�

APPENDIX A

Page 49



� � �

�
�
�
�
�
���������
	
�������	 �����	 �
��	�
� ��	
	
!	 "�����
�����	 	 	 #	
	
$	 ���
����	%����
��	 	 	 #	
	
#	 &��	"��
��	 	 	 '	
	
'	 (�������	)�
��	 	 	 *	
	
*	 �����
����	 	 	 +	
	
,	 -��������
�����	 	 	 +	
	
	
	 %������.	!	/		���0���	"����
����	1��
����	 	 	 !!	
	
	 %������.	$	/	 ������	��	2�
�����
����	%���
�	�������	 !#	
� � ��������	 	

Page 50



� � �

��� �������������
	
���	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	��������	
��	���
����	�
���	���
�������	�
�����	���
����	��	
���	��
���	
��	���� ����	�4	��������	
��	��
��	������	������	
��	��
�����	��	���	����5	���	�
���	
���
�������	���	���
��	�4	��������	��������	 �	
�������	�
�����	4���	���	��
����6	)�
���6	
������6	�������	
��	��������	
��	���	7��
��
��	
��	����
����	������5	���	���
����	�
���	
���	
���������	���	���
��	�4	�
����������	�
��	
�	���	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	��
��6	
�����
��	�
4��

�����	��������	8�
��	
��	�����
��	$9$9	:���	�����	���
�5	
	
���	����	��	
�����
��	����	�
��	
��	4�����	���
�	
����	4���	
	������
��	�
�������	���
�	
�������	�����	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	������	�
�	����
����5		"�	
�
�	�����������	 �	���	���
�	��
�	���������	�
�	���	 �	��	��
��	��	����	���	�����	�4	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��5		���	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	
��������	
��	���
����	�
���	��������	
	�
��	
��	4�����	���
�	��	�� �

��	��	��
�	��������	
4���	�44�����	
��	����	������	�
��
�����	���	4�������	�4	��
�	������	
��	�
���	
���������
�����	4��	������������5	
	
���	�
���	��
��	����	��	��
��	���	�44�����	4��	�����	������ 
�����	��	���	����
�
����	4��	���	
�������	
��	��	�����	������
����	��	��������	�
�������5	
	
��� �������������� �!�
�
���	��������	
��	���
����	;
�
������	8�
��	
�������	��	���������6	��	$'	����� ��	$9!96	
���	���
 ��������	�4	
	�
��	
��	������	���
�	��	������	2�
�����
����	%���
�	�������	��
��	
������	��	�
��	����	��� ������	��	 �	��
��	4���	���	��������	
��	��
��	������	��������	

��	���
����	�
���	
��	������
��	�
�������	���
�5	
	
�
��	
��	������	� 0�������	
	
���	���
�	�
�	
����	��	������	/	
	

•� 
�����	��	��
�
����5	
•� 
�������
����5	
•� ���	�������	�4	
��	
����������5	

	
;�� ������	
�
���	�
��	
��	������	���
�	�
�	
	�����	�
���	��� ������	����������	���	4��������	
��
��������	<		

	
•� ��
�������	:����	=��
��>	
•� ��
�������	;��	��������	=7���	��
��>	
•� ��
�������	;��	8�����	=��
��	�4	������
��	�
�������	���
�>	
•� ��
�������	;��	���������	
•� ��
�������	�
���	

	
���	���	�
������	�4	���	������6	���	�
��	
��	������	���
�	�
�	�
�������	 �	/	
	

•� ��
���	�
��
�6	)�
�	�4	�������<	���4���
���	
��	?

����6	1���	�4	��������	
4��	��������	
��	��
��	������		

•� %����
	8�
����6	1�����
���	�
�����	�44����		

Page 51



� � �

	
	
;����������	
	
���	�
��	
��	������	���
�	��������	����	��	��������	��������	
��	��
�	4���	���������	<		

	
•� #	�� �

��	$9!9	

	
;�� ���	�4	���	�
��	
��	������	���
�	
����	��@	
	
•� -�����	
�����	��	��
�
����	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��5	
•� -�����	���	
�������
����	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��5	
•� -�����	���	�������	�4	
��	
����������	
�����
���	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	

��
��	������	��	�
��5	
	

���	:���	�����
���	-�A
���	=�"1>	��	
��
����	
�	%������.	!5	
	
8
�����
��	��4���
����	
�
���	�
��	
��	������	���
�	��
��	���������
�����	4���	/	

	
•�	 �
���	��
�4���6	������	��
��	�
�����	:�����	
•�	 ;
��	8������6		)�
�	�4	�������	��������	
��	��
��	������	��	�
��		
•�	 ;
���
�	;
�����6	%�����
��	1�������	��������3�	����
�	�
��	

	
���	4��������	�44�����	����	
���	��	
�����
���@	
	

•�-���
��	������6	!,B	�������	;
�
���6	��������3�	����
�	�
��	
•�;
��
���	C����6	��
�	D�
���	/	���������	������	��
��	������	
•�E��	;
�����6	(�
�
����	����
��
��	=��������	��	�
��>	

	
8
�����
��	�
����
�	��������	��	���	���
�	����
���@	
	

•� ����
�	�
��	"�����
��	�4	(.��������	/	����	��
�����	��	����
�	�
��	4��	��4
����	

��	
���
�	�������	

•� �����3�	-�������	��	��
�����	8�����	�
������	
��	�
�����	4��	
2�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	

•� ������	��	2�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
•� 2�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	;
���	%�����	������
��	

	
"��� ����������� �����#�$��%��&�������
	

•� %�	
�
��	���
�	�
�	��	4
��	���������	��	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�F	��� ���	
����	���	
�
��	�4	����	
��	
����	��	4��� 
��	��
�	�
�	���	������
����	
���������
����	�4	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������F	

•� ���	�
���<
�����	������	
��	������
���	�
�	 ���	���������	��	
�����	
��	�
�����	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������5	�����	����	��������	��
�	����	��
44	
���
��	����	���	4
���	
�
��	�4	���	������
���F	

•� ��������	��������	��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	%�-	����
��	
���������	������	��
��	������	����	���	���������	��	�����	��������	��������F	

Page 52



� � �

	
	
	

•� ���	������
��	����	�
�	��
�	
��	
����������	
��	�����
���	���������	������	!9	�
��	

��	���������	���
��	
��	����	������	��	�
����	
�	
���
�	��
��5		%���
��	�
�	 �	
���
���	�
�	��	
	��
��	������3�	���	����
���
����	
��	
�
��
 �����	�4	�
��������	
��������F	

•� �����	��	
	������	������	
��	������
��	��	��
��	��	���
��	��
�	�����	
�
�����
����	

���
�	�������	��������	
��	��������	��	�
��	����	
��	�
�������	��	�����	�4	
��
�
����	
��	
�������
����5	2�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	�
��	
	�
���	
�4	������.	�����	
��	����	�
��	
	�
� ��	�4	���4������
��	�
��������	����	
�	
��	
���	����5	���	�
���	����	���������	��
�	���4������
��	�
�����	��������3�	����
�	
�
��	���	���	�
��	
	4
��	
������
�����	�4	���	��������	�44����	��	��
��	������	
��	
���	��	�
����	��������	
 �
�	
	��
��	������3�	���� ����5	

	
'��� 	&�������!� ���
	
8
�����
��	
	
%�	��
���	
�	���	�
����	�4	���	���
����6	����	�
��	
��	������	���
�	�
�	��������	4��������	

	������
��	�
�������	���
�	�������	����	��	���� ��	$9!95	%�	��
�	�������6	��� ���	
����	���������	��	��
�	
 �
�	
�	
��
����	�
��	�4	���������	��	���	
�
�����
����	
���
�	
�������	��������	����	���
���5		
	
1
����	���	�
��	
��	4�����	������	��	�������	��
�	���	���
�	����������	���	�����	�4	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
�	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	����	��	4
��	

�
���	
��	����	���	�
�	 ���	��������	��	�
��5	�����	���4������
��	
��	��
��������	�������	

�	���	�������	���	���	����	��
�	���	���
�	�
�	
�	�����	
��	���
�	
��	����
���
�	���	
�������	���
���	����	����	��������	��
����	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	
��������5	����	����	����
���	 ��

��	��	���	����
����	����	���
���	�
�����	��������	
��	
��
��	������5	���	�4	���	
�
���	���3�	������	
�	���	�������	�
�	
 �
�	��	 �	��������6	

��	��	�
�	4���	��
�	������	����	���
����	��	 ��
�4	�4	�����
�
��	
��	4������5	2�4���
�
����6	
���	���
�	�
�	���	������
���	
�	
�	�����	
��	���
�6	
��	��	
�������	����	�
����
 ��	
 ��

��	�4	���	���
��	�
�	��	���	��������	������
����	�4	
	�����	4�����5	
	
;
��	8������	�
�	
����	�������	���	����	���	���
�	����	���	��
��	������	��	�
��	
�	���	
����	�4	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	
��	���	��
���	��
�	���	�
�	
��
���	���	���
�	�
�	

��	�
�	���	
�
��	��
�	���	���
�	����	
�
���	
����	
4���	���	�������5	;
���
�	;
�����	�
�	
��	���������	��
�	���	���
�	����	
�
���	
�	���	����	�4	���	�������5	
	
����	��� ��
����	�4	4
�����	��
�������	���	
��
�
��	
��	���������
��������	�4	���	��������	
�
����	
�	���	������
��	�
�������	�������5		
	
����%%��� �����
�
���������(�%����)����� )(��!���$���$ ��(�� ���#��!��� ������ ������$�#�������$�
����#�����(�� ��� ��(������%�%)��*(���%�����#����� �����%%���� ����+��#�
%���������!��(��)��% ����$��!�������� ���� ������#�(� $(���
	
	
	

Page 53



� � �

	
	
	
2�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	������	
��	������
��	
��	����4����	�����������	
	
���	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	������	
��	�
��������	������
��	����	�

�����	
��	1���� ��	$99+5	����	�
���<
�����	������	���������	���	��
���6	��
�
����	
��	

�������
����	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	��4�����	�
����
�	 ���	
��
�����5	���	������	�
�	������	�44	 �	;
���
�	;
�����6	���	%�����
��	1�������	4��	
��������3�	����
�	�
��	
��	��	
�
��
 ��	4��	
�����	 �	��������3�	����
�	�������5	)������6	��	
��������	��	��	���	���
�	��
�	
��	��� ���	�4	���	��������3�	����4����	�
��	
�����	��	���	
������	��	����	���	�������5	
	
���	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	������	
��	������
��	
��	������	��	���	������	

��	
��	
������ ��	��	
�����	����	
�����5	"�	�
�	���	���
�	���	���	������	
��	������
��	�
�	
 ���	�

�����	 
�	���	�
���	��
��	��
�	�����	��
��	��� 
 ��	�
��	 ���	
�
������	�
�����	

�	�����	�4	����	�445	"�	�
�	
��
���	��
�	��
44	���	
��	
�������	��������	����	4
������	
44�����	
���
��	����	
 �
�	���	������	
��	������
��5	:���	�.������	�������	�
����
�
�	
���4������
�	���
��	����	
 �
�	���	�������	������	�
�
����	����	�
�������	��
�	���	��
��	
�������	��
���3�	����5	
	
����%%��� ����,�
	
�����!��(��%����-���(�������%�� ����!���.�����#���(���� ���������������� ((�
����������$��!���!�(����/��-��0$����� ����������!��������%�������� �- ���! ��
$ ��(�� ������ ��� ������
	
�����
�	�
�����	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
	
���	�
���	
����	�44�����	
 �
�	���	�
�����	��
�	�
�	�
�������	��������	��	
�
�����
����	

���
�	�������	��������	
��	���	��
�����	��������	��	�������	��	�
�����	�����	��
��	
������5	
	

•� �
���	��
�4���	������ ��	���	�
�����	��������	��	
	�
���	�4	��
��	������	
��	
��
��	
�
���	4���	���	���������	������	��
��	������5		

•� %����
��	���	����3�	������
���	�
��	�
����
�
�	���������	
��	�.��������	�4	�������	
����	
���
�	������	
��	��4
���	���
�	���	���	�
��	�.�������	�.��������	�4	�������	
����	��
��	������	
��	
������	�����	����������5		

•� �
���	�
����	�������	
 �
�	
	���������	��.��	�.��������	4��	��
��	������	�������	

���
�	�����	���	�
�����	�4	���	
��	
���������	��
��	��
�	����	�������

��	
�������	�.�������	�������	
��	�����	��
��	
�
���	���3�5	

•� �
���	��������	��
�	����	��
��	������	���	�����	����	����
��	����	�
��	 ���	����	
����	������	
4���5	)������	���	�����������	��
�	���	������
����	�������	�
�	�

��	
��������	��	�������

��	
44�����	
��	��	�����	����	���
�5	���	�����	�4	����	�
��	
��	
4�����	���
�	�
�	�������	�������	��	���	
���������	
��	�
�����	��������	��	

�
�����
����	��������	���	
��	����� ��	��	�������	�
�����	
�	
	�����	��	�
��5	

•� �
���	��������	��
�	���	�
�	�������	�������	����	���	��
��	������	���	�
�	������	
��������	
 �
�	���	�����	�4		�
�����	����	����	���������	

�
�
�

Page 54



� � �

�
�
�

•� ;
��	8������	��������	��
�	��
��	������	���	
��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	
��������	
��	�
�������	 �	
	�����
���	����
�	������	���	����	�����	��
�	���	��
��	
������3�	�����	
��	 ����	���	
��	���	�
�	
	��
�
����	�
��	��	���
�
���	�����	���	
�����5		���	����
�	������	��	�.������	��	 
���	
	���
��������	����	��
�	��
��	������5	

•� ;
��	��������	��
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	�4���	�
��	������.	
�����	
��	����	��A
���	
	�
���	�4	��������	��	����	�����	�����5	"�	��	�.������	��
�	
��	
���4������
��	��
�	
��	�������	����	
	�
���	��
��	������6	����
����	4�����	�
����6	
���
��	����	
�	
	��
�	
��	���
��	�������	4��� 
��	����	�����	
��	��������	
 �
�	

	�����3�	���� ����5	

•� ;
��	
���	��������	��
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	�
��	
�����	��	

����
���	��
	
�	�����������	
����
��	�������	��	���
��	��
�	��������	�
�	 �	�
����	
��
	
�	�����������	��
����	�4	������5		

•� :���	
����	�����4��
���	
 �
�	���	���	��
��	������3�	��������	;
��	����	���	�
��	
�������	
��	��
���	��
�	�����	����	
�������
�	4
�����	��
�	�
�	���	 ���	���������	��	
���	�
���	

	
����%%��� �����
�
����&��-���������������$��!��� �#���$����&�����$����� ���%� ����� ��(�%�
���0��#��!�(����+����(����#����&��������&�����)��
���!����&����+��!����$������)��
�!������ (����(����������� ��� ������&��������&�����)��� ��������
�
1!��
���������$��!�(����/�����&������!��(����� )(��!��(�����-��0��#�
 �� �#�%�����)��-�����!�(����/������ (�� ��� �����!����(�%������$��!��
�!�(����/��-��0$������! ��-��0�-��!��� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#��!�(��������
%�����!���������$��� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#��!�(�����
�
1!��
���������$��!�(����/�����&������!��(���%���&���� ����#� ���������� ����#�
�$��� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#��!�(����� ������(�%����0���� �����$�#����
�������$����� $$�-��0��#�-��!��!����#������
�
1!��
���������$��!�(����/�����&������!��(���( ��$�� ���% 0���.�(��������$������ (�
)���� �����)��-��������&��� (�-��0���� ����� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#�
�!�(������1!����!��(��)��%����������!���#!������&������
�
����������!��(��)������ �������!�-����$������ (�� �������!���!�(����/��1�����
-��0���#��!���������������!��!� (�!� ���-�(()���#��$��� ���%� ����� ��(�%�
���0��#��!�(����+����(����#�-!�����!���� �������������
	
%��	%����������	
	
���	�
���	
����	�44�����	
 �
�	���	�������	�4	
��	
����������	
��	�����������	�4	���	������	
�4	����	��	�
���	��	����
��	
�	
��	
���������5	
	

•� �
���	��
�4���	��������	��
�	
�	
��	
���������	�
�	�
��	
�	��	���	��
��	��	
��������5	

	
	

Page 55



� � �

	
	
	

•� ;
��	8������	
��	;
���
�	;
�����	��������	��
�	
��	
����������	
��	����
����	 �	
���	2&	8�����	%�����5	��
�	
���������	����������	�������	���	�������

�	��	
�����
���	
�	
	��
��	������	��	
�	
�	
�
��5	%�	
	��
��	������6	���	�������

�	��	
��������	��	�
�����	
�	
	�����	��	�
��5	���������	
�	����	�����	
�	�������

�	�
�	
������	��	
���
�	
�
����	���	��������	
��	����	��4���	��������3�	����
�	�
��5	

•� ;
��	������ ��	���6	�����	
�	
���
�	��	�
��6	
�	
��	
���������	����	 �	���������	
������	!9	�
��5	���	�������	4������	���	;�����	%��	%���������	�������	
��	
�
����
�	 ���	��
�����5	

•� ;
���
�	
��	;
��	��
���	��
�	���������	
�	�������

�3�	
��	�
�	 �	��44��
��	��	
���������	�����	�������	
��	
 ����5	1��
����
����	��	��������	4���	���	8�����	
%�����	
��	�������	����	�
��	����	
���
��	
	�
���	�4	��������	��	����	�������	���	
��4���
����	���������	��	����� ��6	4��	�.
����	�������
�	�����������6	������
�	

���
�
���6	����� ��	�����	
��	�
���	���
����
����5		

•� ;
��	
�������	��
�	���������	
	��
��	������3�	����
�	��
���	�
�	 �	
	��
���	��	
����	����	���	�������6	4��	�.
����	���	�������

�	�
�	4���	��	��

�
�����	 �	�����	
�
��	�.��������	��
�	���	
��	
���������	�
�	��	 �	������
����	�
�������5		

•� 8���	;
��	
��	;
���
�	
�����������	��
�	����	��	
	�
 0������	
��	�� 
��	
���������	
	

%�����	��	��
�
����	
	
���	�
���	����	����������	��	���	
����
��	�
���	��	�
��������	���	��
�
����
�	�����	�4	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������5	
	

•� ;
��	��
���	��
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	��
����	
�	��������	��	
�
��	
��	
�	�
��	�
��	
�����	��	
	�����
����	��
�	���	����	��
���	����	��������6	����
�	
�������	
��	�������	��	���
��	��
�	��
�
����	�
�����	��	
�������
��	4��	���	�����	
�4	���	��
��	������5	"�	
�������6	����	����	�
��	
�����	��	���	����

�	������	
)�
���
����5	

	
����%%��� �����
�
1!��� ��(�-����� ���$�����! ���!����(���� �����������������!��� �� �- ��)���#�
 ��(�����
�
1!�������� ���� ������#��������!��(����#�( �(��%������������%���$���
�� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#��!�(������
	
%�����	��	
�������
����	
	
���	�
���	
����	�44�����	��	������ �	���	���	
�������
����	�����	�4	��
��	������	����	
���	

	
•� "�	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	�������6	�����	����	�
���������	��
�	


�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	����	���	������������	�44����	�
��
 ��	

�������
����	
��	����	���
�
���	��
���	��	 ��	
��	 ��
�4
��	
�������
����	4��	
����	�������	�4	����5	

	

Page 56



� � �

•� ;
���
�	;
�����	������ ��	��
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	�4���	��	
�����	���	��	�
��	�����	����	����	����	����	����
��	����	��������3�	����
�	�
��5	
���
����
���	����	�
�	��
�	��	
	 ��	
��	 ��
�4
��	4��	
	��
���	�4	�
��	�����	
�	

���������	��	���������5			

•� ;
���
�	��
���	��
�	����	���	��
��	������	��	
�
��3�	��
�
�	��	
�����	���	�����
���	
����
�	������	����	������	���	 ���	�
��
��	�4	�
��	
��	����	����	�
����	����	A
�����5	
��
����	
��	���
��	����	 �	

���
���
���	��
���	����	4�����	�
����	
�	�������	��	��	
�����������	������	 
�	���	�
��
��	�4	�
��	����	 �	�
��4
���	��������	
��
��	���	
��
��	������3�	�����5	

	
����%%��� �����
�
1!��� ��(�-����� ���$�����! ���!����(���� �����������������!��� �� �- ��)���#�
 ��(�����
�
1!�������� ���� ������#��������!��(����#�( �(��%������������%���$���
�� ���%� ����� ��(�%����0��#��!�(������
�
	
2��� ����(������
	
����
��6	���	�
���	����	�
���4���	��
�	���	������	
��	������
���	��	�
�����	
�
�����
����	

���
�	�������	��������	����	��	��
��	
��	����	 ����	
������5	���	�������	4��	
��	

���������6	�����4��
���	��	��������	��	
���
��6	4������	�
����
�	 ���	��
�����5	
	
���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	�
�	���	�������� �����	��	�������	�
������	4��	
��	��������	
��	�
��5	����	���
�	���
��	
��
��	�������� �����	4��	���	�������	����������	
��	������	�4	
����	��	����	
��
5	
	
3��� ����%%��� ������
	
%	��������	�
��	 �	���
 ������	4��	4
�����
����	���	�
������
����	�4	���
��	�4	��
��	������	

��	
�
���	��	��� ��<���	��������	��	
��	����
���
����6	��	����	
��	���
��	 �	�
��	�4	
���	������
��	�
�������	��
4���	
	
���	���
��	����	������	��������
��	���	�.������	������	
��	������
��	��	
��	��������	�4	���	
��������3�	����4����	
��	�����	�����	���
�����	��	
	�
�	��
�	4
�����
���	��
��	
�����	
	
%	������	��	����
����	�4	���	�
���	�4	��������	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������6	
����
����	��������	��������	 �	��
��	��������6	�����	4
����	 �	���	����
�	"���
����	2���	
��	

��	��������	��������	 �	�
������5	
	
���	1�������	�4	��������3�	��������	���
��	���
 ����	������	�������	
��
��������	 ������	
��������3�	����
�	�
��	
��	�����	��������	�4	���	��������3�	����4����	��
�	����	����	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	��	����	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	
�������	��������	
	
���	1�������	�4	��������3�	��������	���
��	�������	��
�����	
��	
������
�����	�4	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	
���
�	�������	
��	��4
����	���
��	4��	��
44	
�������	����	�����	���
��	
	

Page 57



� � �

���	1�������	�4	��������3�	��������	���
��	��
��4�	
��	�
��	�.������	���4������
�	 �
��
����	
 ������	�������

�	�������	
��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������5	����	���
��	 �	
���������	����
��	�
���������	
	
%	������	���
��	 �	����
���	��	���	���4������
��	
�����	���	��������	G	��
��	������3�	
��
��	����	��������	��	�
�����	���	��
���	
��	���� ����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	
��������6	����
����	�����	�����	
��	��������5	
	
���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	���
��	���
�
���	�������	�
������	4��	
�
�����
����	

���
�	�������	��������5	
�
	

Page 58



� � �

�
%������.	!	

�
	
	
	
	
	

��4�����$������������5��0����#� %%�����%�
�

6� 1��(���$�5��0�
���#� %%�����%�
�

�
2�
�����
����	%���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��	

�� ��������)(��
��������
7�8�
�
�
��

8������	D
���6	1�������	�4	��������	4��	��������	
��	
��
��	������	

"� ��������)(���$$�����
�
1�(�������
�

;
��	8������6		)�
�	�4	�������	��������	
��	��
��	
������	��	�
��	
	
	

'� ��(�& ���� )�����
��%)��7�8�

��
�������	;��	:
�����6	�
 ����	;�� ��	4��	��������	

��	��
��	������	

	
2� �)9����&��� •� -�����	
�����	��	��
�
����	4��	
�
�����
����	


���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��5	
•� -�����	���	
�������
����	4��	
�
�����
����	


���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��5	
•� -�����	���	�������	�4	
��	
����������	
�����
���	

4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	
�
��5	

	
3� 5!��-�((�)���$��:�

�
�

2�
�����
����	%���
�	�������	��
��	������	��	�
��	
	
	

;� ������� �$����!�����#�
1������7����� )(�8�
�

�
4��

�����	���
�	4��	������	
4���	��������	
�	������4���	

�	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	�������	�4	$9	
���� ��	$9!95	
		
	

<� 5! ��-�((�! ������$�
-�����/������!���
��&��-:�
�

���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	
������	��	�
��	����	���	 �	
��������5		����� �����	�4	4
�����	
��	��
�
����	�
��	�4	�
��5	

=� 5! �� ���-��#���#����
��:�

�
��	
��	4�����	���
�	��	�
��	��
��	����	���	�
�5	

6>� ?�-� ���-��#���#����
�����:�7-��������+������
&�����+�) �0#������
��$��% ���������8�

"���������	����	���	���������	
��	 
�����
��	����
���	
��	����
��	 ���	��
�����	4���	�����	

���������5	

Page 59



� � �

	
	
	
	
	
	
66� 5! ��-��-��/������ ���	�
��	
��	4�����	���
�	����	���	����	
�	������
����	

���
��	4
���	 �	���	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��
��	
������	��	�
��5	

	
6�� 1�%�� )(��@�����


 ����
��	 �	�������5	

�
6"� ���0�������!���

���9������������� ��&���
A��( ���

�H%	
	

6'� ��(�& ����&��&��-�
 ������������� ��(�A�
��%)���!����$�1 �0�
 ���B����!�������7���
)����������)������
)�$������)%����������
��C�

��������	
��	��
��	������	��������	
��	���
����	�
���5	

62� 5!����-�((��!��
�������#�:��5!��-�((�
% 0���!��$�� (�
���������

��������	
��	���
����	;
�
������	8�
��5	

63� ����������7�� $$��#+�
���� ��!+��.�����+�
������&������ ��������8�

��
44���	4���	���	1�����
���	�
�����	�44����6	D�
�	
�44����	
��	)�
�	�4	�������	��������	
��	��
��	������	
��	�
��5		������	�44�����	4��	����
���5	

6;� ����!���� ����$� �
�� �������
��������)�(��������!��
� ��(:�

���	

6=� �!��(�� �����!���
� ��(�)����&�(&������
�!�����&��-:���$����-!��
 ���-!�:�

��	

�>� 5�((��!��� �0� ���
$����!�#�����)���$���
$��%���*�����#� ���
������7�8�������!��
� ��(��

����	��� ���	�4	���	������
��	�
�������	���
�	����	
 �	�������	��	0���	���	�
��	
��	4�����	���
�5	

	
	
	

Page 60



� � �

�
�

%������.	$	
�
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	
�
�
�� $$�����#� �� ����������$��!����(��������%����%������������!��� �������#��!��
%����������������-!��!����(�� ���� �,�
	
�@I����
�	��������I1��
����
����I��������	
��	������
���I��������3�	����
�	�
��	������	
1���I	
������		
	
	

�

�����������	
����
��
�	�
���
�

����	��������������	��
��������������	������	 ���

�
�	�����	��!����	� ������"������

���#�������������
�

$����	���	��
����
�

Page 61



� � �

	
���� (�� �������%��������� ������	
1��(�� 2%��	

���%������������ ���

�����������

��	�������	������	��4���
����	��	���	
��	�4	�����
����	
%����������	

���!��7�8A	�����7�8� �
�����	�
��� 
��	/	������	
��	��
�����	;
�
���	
(����	;���<�
�
�	/	����
�	:�����	

	��������)�� ;
���
�	;
�����	
%�����
��	1�������	
����
�	�
��															

	������%����
 ��� 	
!	;
���	$9!9	

��)(�� �����
 ��� 	
!	;
���	$9!9	

��&��-�
 ��� !J	1���� ��	$9!!	
D�)�1��(���$��������
��������)(��$�����&��-�

)�
�	�4	�������	
��������	��	���	����
����	

1 �#������������ ����
�	�
��	��
��	
�����( ���������� (���������@		 7�
		

:������@		 ���@	=9!K*$>	
��$�������� •� "�����
����	%��	!+K!6	�������	#=$>	

•� 2�����	�
�����	����������	
��	��������	���
����	��	
���	��
�
�	�4	��4
����=�����
	����������>	!+*!		

•� %���
�	
��	"�����
����	=���
�����	�4	��
��
���6	
���5>	%��	$99'	�
��	$6	#6	'	��	*	�4	�����
��	#	

�
�����������
���%���� �H%	
���� ���
�� �(��
��(���� ����( ����#�1� %�

�����@		 ������	
��	��
�����	�44����	
:���	
������@			 1��
������	4��	��������	��������	
	 :������	)�
��	
	 �����
��	
	 �D,		*2�	
	 	 	 	
���@						 =9!K*$>	#9K##*	
(�
��@						 ������G��
�����L�����
��5���5
�	

�
�

�������	�
���
������	����

	
E�������
��%)���


�� �(���
�5�5	2��
���	
��	4
��	������	


 ��� ���!����$�
�! �#��

�


������������$�
�! �#��� ����� ����$���

�! �#��
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

Page 62



� � �
Page 63



� � �

	

��������	

	

6�	 C �0#������ 6;	

���	 �� ������� �����(����B� %�-��0� 6<	

"��	 ��(������ (� 6=	

'�	 ��(�����)9����&��� �>	

2�	 ���#� %%���� ������ �>	

3�	 �%�(�%��� ����� �������������� (���� �#�%����� �>	

Page 64



� � �

� !K

6�� C �0#������
	
!5!	 2�
�����
����	��	���
�
���	��������	
�����	��	���	2�����	&������	4���	
	����	

�
�����	�4	��
������	�4	������	��	%��
6	%4���
6	���	������	2����6	
��	(
����5	
��
�������	�����
��	��
�	���	�
0�����	
�����	4���	��
������	�.����������	
����	
���4����	��	�����
�	����������	4���	��������	���
��	��	�������
�	���������5		

	
!5$	 	 :����	��	�����
�	
�
�����
����	��	���
�
���	��������	�
��	�����
�	������
����
�	

����������	�����	��	�����	�4	
�
���6	��	����	��
������	�����	
��	
�������
�	4
�����	
��
�	��
��	��������	��	4
�	���
���	����	�4	������
����
�	����������	��
�	
�
���5	�����	
�����4��	������
����	4��	�.
����	�
�	����
��	4�����	������������	
�	
	�����	�������6	
���	4�
�	�4	�����	��
44������	
��	4��
��	����
�������!5		

	
!5#	 	 ;
��	�4	���	��
�������	���
�	

���������	
��	������	4
��	��	���������	����	A

����	

�
��	
��	��������	4��	����	���
�	
��	�����
�	��	�����	���
����	��	�����	��������5	
)������	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	��	�
��	����	��44�����	
��	
�
����
�
�	�����5	;���	����	�����	���	�
��	������	��	����	��������3�	��������	����	
����	
��6	��	
���
��6	��������
 ��	�����	��
�	�����	��������	��	��
��	������5	
%�������
���6	����	�����
���	��	���	�����	���	�
��	������	4��	���	�
��	��
����	
�	
�����	��������	=
 
��	��	�������>6	
��	�����	����	4��	�
��	
��	�
�����	4���	���
�	


���������	�����
���	
�����	4���	���
�
����	4���	�����	4
����5	���	������
��	
�
�
��	=4��	����>	�4	�����	��
�	��	���	2�����	&������	
��	���	�����	����	�����	
����	�4	����	����	��	 �	����
���	4��	���
��	��	�����	��
������	�4	������	
���	
�

���	����	����	��
��������	���
��	��	��
�����	4��	�����	�
��$5	��	�
��	�
�����	
����	������.6	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	����������	
��	
	�������	
���
�	����	����	��44�����	�.���������	
��	������	�4	����5		

	
!5'	 	 ���	����������3�	��������	��	�
��	�����
��	
	�������
�	
��
	4��	
���
�<�������	

4��������	���	"�����
����	
��	%���
�	%��	!+++6	�
�	����	
�	�����
��	��	���	
�������
����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	��	���	����	��	���	�
��	
�����	��
��5	;
��	����	�
��	
������	��	����	��
����	
�
�����
����	
��H��	
��
��4�����	 �	
������	���
�	

�������6	��	
��	������	4�
��	�
�������	���	�������	
�4	�����
��5	

	
!5*	 	 ��	�
��6	���
��	
	����	�
���	�4	��������	
��	 ����	��������	��	
�
�����
����	


���
�	�������	��������6	�����	��������	
��	���	��
����	��	��������	������	
	
�������������6	�
���	
�����	
����
��5	1������	���	�.�������	�4	
	��
��	����	
���
�	�4	���4������
��	���������	��	�������	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	
�������	��������6	
	��������
�	�
��	�4	
������
�����	
 �
�	�����	�����	�
�	
�����
����	����	���0������	���������	�4	��������5		

	
!5,	 	 �
���������6	���	�
��	�4	��
��4��
����	
��	���
�����	�
��
���	�4	���	���	

������
����	��
�
�	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
44����	���	��
�
����	
��������	��
�	�
�	 �	��������6	������
���	��	���	����	!,	��
�	���	�
���6	�
�	
4
�����
���	
�	�����������	��	�����	�������	�
�
����	�
��	 ���	������������	��	
�������	���	����	
�������
��	�
�����	��	����	���	�����	�4	����	������	�
����
 ��	
���
�	�4	��
��	������5		

�

�������������������������������������������������
!	"�4���
����	�
���	4���	�����
����������������6	C	8�
 �
	
��	�	�����6	���	$99,	
$	������
�����		�����	����������������	���������������
��������������
�����
�����36	
����
��
����	�
���	C
�	$99K6	)���	�44����

Page 65



� � �

� !J

���� �� ������� �����(����B� %�-��0�
�
��6	 	 
�$��������
	
	 	 ���	�44���
�	��4�������#	�4	
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�<�������	�����	��@	
	

	 =�>		 %�	�������

�	���	��	
����	!J	
��	
�������	4��	
���
�	��	���H���	���	�����F	

��	��	

	 =��>		 ���
�
���	4���	 ���	�
�����	
��	���	 ����	�
���	4��	 �	
�	
�
��	���	 �	
�
�	��	�
����	�
�	�������� �����	��	��	��5	

�
���� � ���(�%����(�� �����
	 	
$5!5!		 2����	���	-
���	�
��	
����	�������	#=$>	�4	���	"�����
����	%��	!+K!6	
�	
���
�	


�����
��	��	
	������	���	�
���	
	��A
���	��	 �	����������	
�	
	��4
���	
����	���	
!+*!	2�����	�
�����	����������	
��	��������	���
����	��	���	��
�
�	�4	��4
����'6	

���	�����	
�	���	M�����
	����������36	��	���	 
���	��
�	��	��
��	 �	�����
��	��	
���	2�����	&������3�	� ���
�����	
����	���	�����
	����������	4��	���	��	 �	
�������	4���	��	��A
����	��	��
��	���	2�����	&������5		

	
$5!5$		 2����	
�	
���
�	
�����
����	�
�	 ���	����������	 �	���	������
��	�4	��
��	��	���	

������
��	�4	��
��	�
�	���
��	
	�����4��
��	
����	�
��	$6	#6	'	��	*	�4	�����
��	#	��	
���	%���
�	
��	"�����
����	=���
�����	�4	��
��
���6	���5>	%��	$99'	��	
�����	����	
 �	�
���	��	��A
���	���	���
��
��	�4	���	
���
�	
�����
��	��	���	������
���	4���	
���	2�����	&������*5	

	
��"� � �!�(����/������6=<=� ����>>'�
	
$5#5!		 ���	�������
�	�����	�4	������
����	
�����������	���	���������	�4	��
�
����	��������	

4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	��	���	��������	%��	!+J+	
��	$99'5	
1��������	��	���	������
����	��
�
�	�4	
	�����	�������	
���
�6	
�	
�
�����
����	
�����	
����	���	
��	�4	!J	���	��	����� ��	��	
�����	
��	�������	��������6	��	
�������@	

	
•� %��	
�������	�������	����	��������6	��
��	������	
��	�����	4
������	
��	��	�
��	


��	��
���
 ��	��
�
���	��	���
��	��
�	���	�����	�4	�
��	��	��������3�	���4
��	

��	���������6	
��		

•� :����	�����	
��	��������	
 �
�	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	���4
��6	
��	

�������	
��	��	�
��	
��	
�������
��	
������	��	
������	�����	��������6	�������	
��	
�����	���
�	��������	
��	������
���	��	�
���������	����	�����	
�������	

	
$5#5$	 -�4
���	
��	%���
�	�������	��������3�	���0�����������	$9	=!>	�4	���	��������	%��	
	 !+J+	�������	
	���
�	
���
��A
����
�	�
��	��	���
�	

���������	��@� ���!
���
� ���������	
�������������
���
�������"
	�
��	��
�������"�����������	��	����	����#�
���
� ���������	
�������������	���$%�

�������������������������������������������������
#	2&	8�����	%�����	
'	-�4
���	��4����	
�	
	������	���	�����	��	
	����<4�
����	4�
�	�4	 ����	������
���	4��	
��
����	�4	�
��6	��������6	�
����
����6	��� ������	�4	
	�
����
�
�	����
�	���
�6	��	�������
�	
�������6	��	�
�����	���	��
����	�4	���	�
����
����6	
��	��	
�
 ��	��	��6	�����	��	�
��	4�
�6	��	

��������	��	
�
��	������4	�4	���	����������	�4	��
�	��
����53	2�����	�
�����	)���	
������������	4��	-�4
����6	!+*!5	
*	-�4	����@HH���5���5�����44���5���5
�H�
�
��������H������
�����
���H�
��!!	�

Page 66



� � �

� !+

� &�'�	�����(�
�������������"������������	����������
(
�
	�������
�)�
� &('�� �
��(�
������	������!
���(�����(�������)����

&�'�� 	����������"�������(�������
��������
��(�
������!��	���&"��	���������	�
��������	��*���������"��	�!���������'���������!
�
����
��"
	����
	�(���
���������	
����������+,�

	 	
	 ����	��	
��	�4	�����	����������	����	���
���	 �	���	��	���	�
��	�4	
	�����	���	


������	��	���	2�����	&������	
����6	
��	��	�����4���	����
���	���	����	

�������
��	�������	�4	���	��������	%��	
����	�����	
	���
�	

�������	���
��	
�������	�
�����5	��
�	�������	$9	��	���	����	
�������
��	��
��	4��	���	�
�����	�4	

�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	�
�	�
��	���
�	 �	�
��
���	���
��	��	���
�	


���������	��	$99#	 �	���	1��
������	�4	)�
���5	

	
$5#5#	 ��
�
����	����������	
����	�����	
�������
����	
��	�
�����	4��	
�
�����
����	


���
�	�������	��������	�
�	 �	��������5	�����	���	-
��
������0
�������	��	��	
���
 ������	��
�	�������	!K	�4	���	��������	%��	���
��	������
������� �	
���	��	
����	���	
�������
����	
��	�
�����	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	
��������	/	��	�
����
�
�	���	!,B	
��	���
�5	���	������
����	����	�������	����"����	

��	�4	�������	!K	��	�������	
�������
����	��	��������5	�������	!K	�4	���	
��������	%��	���
���	����
����	��	���	���������	�4	��������	4��	��������	��	����	
��	
�����	4
������5	 .�����"���	�	���!
������������	
������������	
���/0�"
��������	�
��"���	����������
����������
���	��(�����������	���"
	��	��
�����
�
��+	=D%�	=$99#>	
!#>	

	
$5#5#	 :����	
�������
��6	4
�����	�
�����	�
�	 �	
�������	
����	�������	$#	
��	�������	

$'	�4	���	��������	%��	!+J+	=
�	
������	 �	���	��������	=D�
����	�
��>	%��	
$999>5	

	
��'	 	 ��� (���&��� ����
	 	
$5'5!		 ����	������	�
�	 ���	�������	 �	���	���
 ��������	�4	���	�����
��	��������	
��	

��
��	������3�	��
��	��
�	 �����	��������	
��	��������	4��	��������	
��	��
��	
������	��	���	�����
��	
��
5	���	�����������	�4	���	��
��	��	
����������	 �	���	
��������	%��	$99'	�
��	��	������
��6	
��	��	4��
�	��	���������	�
������	4��	
��	
��������	
��	��
��	������5	"�	
���	����������	��
�	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	
��������6	�������	��������	��	����	��	������	
4���	��������6	�
����	�����	 ��	
�	
�
��	
�	�����	��
��	������	��	���	�����.�	�4	�������	�
��	
��	
��	�4	���	4���	
�
������	�4	���	(����	�����	;
�����3	4�
������,5		

	 	
$5'5$		 ����	������	��������	������ 
���	��	�����
�	���	�
������	
��	�����������	�
��	�
�	

��	���	�����
��	%���
�	�������	
��	-�4
���	���
����K6	��	���
����	��	���������	
	
�������
���	�
���<
�����	��������	��	���	�����	�4	
���
�	�������	
��	��4
����5	
����	���
����	
��������	
	�����4��	�
��	�4	���	�A

����	� 0�������	��	���	������
��	
��
�	$99+<$9!$	��
�	
���	��	�������	����
�	����
����	
��	����
����	��������5��

�
"��� ��(������ (�
	

�������������������������������������������������
,	14(�	$99'	<	���	4���	(����	�����	;
�����	�
������	
��@	8�	��
����6	��
�	�
4�6	(�0��	
��	
������6	;
��	
	��������	������ 
����	

��	%������	��������	����< ����5	
K	�����
��	%���
�	�������	
��	-�4
���	���
����	$99'�

Page 67



� � �

� $9

	 ��	�������	���	��������	����	 ����	
��	�
4��

�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	
�������	��������	
��	��
��	������6	������	��	�����
��6	
��	��	������ 
��	���
���	
����������	����
����	��������	����
��	������
����	
��	
	��
���	�����	�4	
 ��������	
������	������	�4	��44�����	 
�����
���	=-�4@	�"�	'	%����
�����>5	

	
'�� ��(�����)9����&���
�
'5!	 ��	�������	���	���
�����	4�
������	4��	�������

��	
��	�����4��	��������	��	����	

������	��	���	�����������	
��	��������	�4	
	�������������6	�
���	
�����	�������	
�
���
�6	�����	�����	���	�����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������6	
����	
���	

������	�4	���	�����
��	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	��
��5	

	
'5$	 	 ��	�������	���	����
�	����
����	�4	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������5		

�

	
2�� ���#� %%���� ������
��
*5!		 	 ��<�����
���	�����������	�4	�
���<
�����	������
���	��
�	
��	���
����	��	����	

	 ��
�����5		
	
*5$�	 	 ����
��
����	����	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
��	�����	���	

��
���������	��	���	�����������6	������	
��	���������
����	�4	�����
��	������	

��	������
���5	

	
*5#�	 1����������	�4	
	�
���<
�����	�
��	�
���
�5		
	
	*5'	 	 "�����4��
����	
��	���
 ��������	�4	�����	����	����������
��	��������	4���	������	

���	���
��
��	
��	����
����	������6	
�	����	
�	�����	��
�
����	

�������H���
�������	�
��	
�	���	8�����	%�����6	������6	
�
��	��������6	��
����	

��	���	1��
������	4��	:���	
��	��������6	
������	������5	

	
3�� �%�(�%��� ����� �������������� (���� �#�%�����
	
,5!	 2�����	�����4��
���	�����������	��	���	������
���	���
����6	����	������	����	 �	

�����������	����
��	���	���
 ������	���
��
���	
��	�������	
��
��������	������	
���	���
���
�����	������	���	��������	
��	��
��	������3�	��
��5		

	
,5$	 %��

�	�
���<������	������	�������	4��	
�
�����
����	
���
�	�������	��������	
	
	
	
�

Page 68



� �
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	


��
�


�
�
�
��
	
	
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
	
�

� �
��
��
��
�	

�
��
�

�

��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
�

��
��

�
��
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
�

�	

�
��	
��
��
��
��
	�
�
�

��
��	



�	
���
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�

��
��

�
���
�

��
�

��
��

�

�
�

 
�	
��
��
��
	�
�!�

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
 �

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
!�

��
�

��
"�

"
��
�	
�	
�	
���
�

��
��
��

�
��
��

��
��
�	
��

��
��
���
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	

�
	�
��
�	
��

�
	�
�

�	
�

��
��
	�
��
��

�
��
��
��

��

��
��
��
�#
��
��

�
��
��

�

��
	�
��
��
�	
�
�
�

��
��
�	

$
��
!�
!�

�
	�
��
�

��

�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
��
	�
��
��
�

�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��
��
��

%
��
��
���
�

��
	�
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�	

�
�
	�
��
��
�

�

��
��

�
�

��
��
�
���
��
��
�

&
	�
�

��
��
��
��
�	
��

'%
	�
��
�
��

(
�

� %
	�
��
��
	�
���
��
	�
��
��
��

�

��
��
��
��
)
�

��
��
$�*
+,
�

��
��
��
��

� �

-�
�*

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
./
**
�

�
"
��
�	
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
	�

�
�

��
	�
��
��
���
��
��
�	
��
�

#�
��
�
�

�	
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��



��
�

��
��
��
��

�0
�
�
�

��
�	
���
��
�

��
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
��
���


�
��
�	



�	
���
��
��
��
��
��

1

�
�
	�
��
	�
��
��

�
�


�
	�
��
��
�

��
�	
��
�
�

�

��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
�


�

%
�#
��
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�

��

��
	�
��
��
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�


�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�	
�
�
�

��
��
�	

$
��
��
��
��


�

	

��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
��
���
�

�
	�

�
���
��
��
���
		
�
��
��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
��
��
��

1

�

�
��

�
�2
��

��
�

$�

�	

�
��

�

�
�3
��
��
��

�

��
	�

��
��
�

��
�	
��
�
�

��
��	

�

-�
��
��

��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�	
��
�

��
�

��
�
��
	�
��
�

�

��
��
�	



�

��
��
��
��
)
�

��
��
$�*
+,
�

��
��
��
��

�

-�
�*

�
�"
��
�

��
./
**
�

��
��
���
��
	


�
��
��

��
���
��

1

�
�
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
�

��
�
���
��
��
���
��
��
��
	

��

�
�

	�
��
	�
��
��

�
�

��

��
	�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

��
�	
�

4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��

�
�

$�
"
��
��
��
�
��

��
	

��
��
��
�	
���
��
��
�

��
�	
��


�
��
��
�

��	
��
4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��

$
��

��
��
�

��

�
��
��
�

�

��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
�

$��
�	

�
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�5

��
�

�	

�
4

�
��
�

��

�

��

�
��
��
�

��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

�

�
��
��
�6
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�

�	
�
��
��
��
�

�
	�
�
�


�	

�

�
�

)
�

��
��
$��
��
��
��

�
�	
��

�
��
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
�

-�
�*

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
./
**
�

"
��
��
�	
��

��
��
��

�
�
���
�

��
��
��
���
��
��
�	
�

��
���

�
	�
��

�
��
���
��
��

�
��
	�
��

	�
��
��
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
!��
"

�
��
��

�
�

�


�
��
��
��
�

��

�
���
��
$��
���
�

��
��
��
��



��
��
��
	�
��
�

��
�

��

�
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
���
��
��
	�
�

�	
�
�
�


�	

�

�
��

�

��
6�
��
��
�

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
B

Page 69



� �
�

%�
�
��
�7
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��

1

�
��
��
��
�

�


�
	�
��
��

�
��
��

��
��
	

��
��
	�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��
�

�

��
��
�
��

�
��
���
��

1

�

	
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
�	
��
��
��
��
�
�

�

�	
���
��
��
��
��
��

1

�

�
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
���
�

�

��
�	
�
��

�
��
��

�
��
�
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�

�	
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
	�
�4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�

"

�
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�

�

80
��

�
��
�7
��
��
�	
��
��
�

)
�

��
��
�

���
��
�
���
	�

��
��
�


�
�

��

�
	�
���
��

��

�


�
��
��
��

�
��

�
�

��

�
�

��
��
��
��
)
�

��
��
$�*
+,
�

��
��
��
��

-�
�9
*

� ��
��
��
�
��
��
./
**
�

� � � � � �

"
�

��
��
��
�

��
�

��

�
�

��

	�
��
��
�

��
�

�	
���
��

�

��
	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��

�
�

��

�	
�

��
��
	�
��
��

�
�
��
���

�

�

��

�
��

�
�

��

�
�	
��

	�
��
��
��
�

��
�

�

�	

�
��
��
��	

�
�	
��
	�
��

�
���
��
��

�
��
	�
��

&�
�
��
�7
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��

1

�
��
��
��
�

�


�
	�
��
���
��
	�
��
��
��

�

�
��

�
�

�

��
�

��

�
�

��
	�
�4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��
�

��
��
�

��

�
�

��
��
��
�

��


�
�

��	
��

�
��
���
	�
��

�
��
���
�

��
�

��
��
	�
�

�

80
��

�
��
�7
��
��
�	
��
��
�

)
�

��
��
�

���
��
�
���
���
�

�	
�
�
�


�	

�
��
��

�

�
��
	�

�


�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��

1

�
2
	�
��
	�
��
�

��

�
��
��
	�
��

�

��
�

��

�
�

��
	�
��
��
�


�
��

�
	�
��
��

�
��
	�
��
�

��

	�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
)
�

��
��
��	
��

��
	�
�


�	

�
��

��
��
�	
��
�

�$�
�
��
��
��

1

�

�	
��
��
��
��
��

-�
��
��
	�
��
�.
/*
*�

� �
��

�
�


�
��
��
��
���
�

��
��
�


�
��
���
��
��
	�
�
�

��
�

��

��
��

�

�
��
�	
��
��
�
��

��
��
���
	�
��

�
��
���
��
��

�
�

��
���
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
��

�

��
�

��

�
�

��
	�
��
��
�


�
��

�
�

��
�


��

�
��
��
�

4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�

��
��
��

��
��

�
�	
�

��
�!
�

��
��
���
��
��
��
��
�	
��



�


�

��
��

�
��

�
��
�
�
��
	�
��
	�
�

��
���
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�


�
�	
�

�
��
��
��
�

���
��
��

�
��

�

�
'�

�
��
�7
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��

1

�
��
��
��
�

�


�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�0
��
��
���

��
	�
�


�	

�
���
	�

�
��
��

�
��
��
��

�

�

��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
�

��

�
�4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�

"

�
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

!
��
��

�

�
	�
��
��
��

�
	

��	
��
��
��
�	
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
	

�

� � �

"
���
��
��
���

�
�
��
��
��

1

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�
��
�

��
�
�

��
��
	�
��
��
��
�

	�
���
��
�	



$��
��
	�
��
�

��
��
��

�

$��

�
��
��	



$��

�
�

�	
�
�
�

��
��
�	



�

��
��
��
��
)
�

��
��
��	
��

��
	�
�


�	

�
��

��
��
�	
��
�

�$�
�
��
��
��

1

�

�	
��
��
��
��
��

� � � � � � � � � �

-�
��
��

��

	
��
��
	�
��
�

�

��

	�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��

�	
�
�
�

��
��
�	



��
��
*

� �

��
��
��
��
��
./
**
�

� �

�
	�

�
��

��

��
��
�	

�

��
	�
��
�
�
��

� �

�
	�

�
��

�

��
��
��

�	

�


�



�	



�

��
��
���
��
��
��
�

��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
��

�
	


��
���
���

!�

� ��
��
��
�
�
	

��

�
��
�	
�

�


�
��
�

��
���
��
��
��
���
���

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
	


��
���
���

�
��

Page 70



� �
�

(�
"
��
��
	�
��

�
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	

�
�	
�
�

��
	�
�


�	

�
�
�
��
�	



��
��
��
��
��
��

�
:
�

�
	�

�
��
�	
��
�1

�
�
��

�
��
	�
��
�	
��
��
��
��
	�


�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

�
�	
��

4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�

�
��
��
��

$
��

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
���
��
��
��
��

�	

�
��



!�

%
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�	
��	
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��


�
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
���
���
�

���
��

�

��
��
�

��

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
�	
��
�

��
�
��
��
��
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�


�
��
��
�	
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
�

��
	�
�

�	
�
�
�


�	

�

�
��

�
	�
�
�


�	

�

�
�

)
�

��
��
$��
��
��
��

�
�	
��

�
��
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
�

-�
�*

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
./
**
�

� %
�

��
��

�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��

9*

�
�7
��
��
��
��
./
**
�

� %
�#
�	
�
�
�


�	

�

�
�

�
	�
��
��
	�
�
�

��
���
	�
�

*

� �"
��
���
./
*.
���
��
�6
��
��
��

"
���
��
��
	�
��
�	
��

�
��
��
��

��
��
�	
��
�

�

��

�
�

�	
�
�
�


�	

�

�
��
��
��
���
�

�
���
��
��
��
�

���
��
��
�

��

��
��
��
��
	

��

)�
�
��
��
	�
�	
��
��
��
��
�

��

��
 
�	
��
�

�	
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�
	

��	
��
	�
��
	�
�

��	
��

4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�

�
��
��
��

!
�

�
���
��
�

��
	�
��
��
��
�
���
�

��
��
�
	�
�	
��
��
��
��
�

��

��

��
	�
��
	

��
��
��
��
�

��
	�
��
�

��
�	
��
��
��
�	

�
�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
�

��
��
��
�$
��
!�
!�

�
��
�

��
��
�

�	
��

4

�
��
	�
��

�
��
�"

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��
��
��

$
��

�
��
��
	�

�
��
�

�	
��	
��
��

$
�

�
��
�

��
��
��
���
��
	�
�

��
�	
�
�
	�
��
�	

$
�

"
��
�


�
�	
��
��
��
��	

$
�

"
��
�


�
�	
�3
��
���
�


�
��
��
�

�

3
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
$�

�
��
��
��

�
�

��
�	
�

��

��
	�
��
��

��
��
��

-�
�*

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
./
**
�

)
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
	�
��
��
�


�
�
��
�

�	
���
	�

�
�

��
	�
��
��

�
��
��
��


�
�

�

��
��

�
��
��
�
$��
��

�
��
�

��

��
��
��
	�
��
	�
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
�

��

�
��
	�
��
�	
�

	�
���
��

�
�

��
	�
��
��

��
�

��
�

��
���
�

��

�
	


��
���
���

�
�	
�
��
�

�

��
�
�
��
	�
��

� �

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Management Board Recommendations of 

27 July 2011  

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    13 September 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillors Bowyer, Jordan, Sam Leaves, Michael Leaves and 
Ricketts 

CMT Member: Directors for Corporate Support, Community Services and 

Services for Children and Young People, and Assistant Chief 

Executive 

Author: Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support Officer (Cabinet) 

Contact:    Tel: 01752 304867 
    E mail: nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.uk   
  

Ref: 

Key Decision:   No  

Part: I   
 
Executive Summary: 
  
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board at its meeting on 27 July 2011 made 
recommendations to Cabinet on - 

• monthly budget updates; 
• the localism agenda; 
• school academy transfers;   
• the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy; and 
• Localities and Neighbourhood Working. 

 
The recommendations and officers’ comments on the proposals are set out in the report and in the  
case of Localities and Neighbourhood working, in a separate report.  
          
Corporate Plan 2011 – 2014: 
 
Budget monitoring is fundamentally linked to delivering the priorities within Council’s 
corporate plan. Allocating limited resources to key priorities will maximise the benefits to the 
residents of Plymouth. 
 
The localism agenda, as proposed in the Localism Bill, includes provisions relating to community 
empowerment, planning and housing, and meets the priority to provide value for communities by 
increasing engagement with the community.    
 
School academies are linked to the priority to provide value for communities and to become more 
efficient and join up with partners and local residents to deliver services in new and better ways. 
 
The Sex Establishment Licensing Policy is linked to the priority to deliver growth.  
 

Agenda Item 8Page 73



 

 
 
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Robust and accurate financial monitoring underpins the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. The 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Forecast is updated regularly based on on-going monitoring 
information. 
Schools opting out of the Council’s services due to transferring to Academy status will have an 
impact on our ability to provide cost-effective services to those schools remaining, with fewer 
schools to absorb our overhead costs.  
 
The implications of the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy will be addressed by the officer’s report on 
the policy document which will be considered by Cabinet on the 15 November 2011’ 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 
The reducing revenue and capital resources across the public sector has been identified as a key risk 
within our Strategic Risk register. Equality Impact Assessments have been undertaken on the delivery 
plans that underpin the 2011 12 budget. 
The implications of the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy will be addressed by the officer’s report on 
the policy document which will be considered by Cabinet on the 15 November 2011’ 
 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
That - 
 
(1) the OSMB continue to receive the full quarterly Performance and Finance Monitoring Reports 

and extracts from the report will be submitted to City Council meetings; 
 
(2) Cabinet supports the need for Member briefings and seminars on new legislation and will 

instruct officers to take this work forward jointly between OSMB and relevant Portfolio 
Holders starting with a Member seminar of the Localism Bill. 

 
(3) the OSMB recommendation on school academy transfers is noted and that Cabinet requests a 

financial report, outlining the risks of schools not buying into council services, as part of the 
budget report. 

 
(4) the OSMB is advised that the officer report on the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 

document, to be considered by Cabinet on 15 November 2011, will address the 
recommendations of the scrutiny panel. 

 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
In considering the budget variations for the year, Directors will identify any potential risks to 
delivering the current year budget plus future years. These will be monitored as part of the 
corporate reporting process. 
Increasing cost base will be monitored and future provision of the services will have to be 
considered. 
These will be addressed by the officer report on the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy document 
which will be considered by Cabinet on the 15 November 2011 

Page 74



 

 
 
Background papers: 
Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board of 27 July 2011.  
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin DJN

111
2.01
0 
 

Leg 1267
8/D
VS. 
 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member: Tim Howes 
 

 

Page 75



 

1.0 Recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board of 27 July 
2011 

 
1.1 At the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board’s (OSMB) meeting held on 27 July, 2011, a 

number of recommendations were approved for submission to Cabinet concerning –  
 

• monthly budget updates; 
• the localism agenda; 
• school academy transfers;  
• Sex Establishment Licensing Policy; and 
• Localities and Neighbourhood Working.  

 
2.0 Monthly Budget Updates 
 
2.1 Members of the Board referred to the delay in producing the Joint Finance and Performance 

and it was recommended that Cabinet arrange provision of monthly budget updates to the 
OSMB. 

 
2.2 It is not possible to publish the full report to OSMB before it has been approved by Cabinet, 

and it has been noted that, with the timings of meetings, the Board are then reviewing out of 
date reports. 
 

2.3  Quarterly monitoring through Cabinet and Scrutiny is still considered appropriate. Officers 
are considering carefully how the production of the quarterly report can be sped up, both 
from a performance information and budget monitoring perspective. Scrutiny has the 
opportunity to identify areas of concern from the quarterly report which can be reviewed 
more thoroughly via the scrutiny panels. An extract of each quarterly monitoring report will 
be provided to the next full council meeting for information and as a matter of course from 
now on. 
 

3.0 Localism Agenda 
 
3.1 The Board agreed its work programme as submitted, subject to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board taking the lead in driving localism agenda through the Council and inviting 
all Members to a Localism Bill Seminar. 

3.2 Cabinet support and agree the need for a focus on the Localism Bill and other emerging 
legislation. Cabinet welcomes the commitment from OSMB to give this work a focus and time 
within their agendas working alongside Cabinet, Portfolio Holders and Officers. Cabinet 
specifically supports the need for Member briefings and seminars on new legislation and will 
instruct officers to take this work forward jointly between OSMB and relevant Portfolio 
Holders starting with a Member Seminar of the Localism Bill. 

 

4.0 School Academy Transfers 

4.1 Following consideration by the Support Services Overview and Scrutiny Panel of staff and 
service provision following the transfer of local authority schools to academies, the Board 
recommended that Cabinet undertake urgent discussions with Cornwall Council, Devon 
County Council and Torbay Council to minimise the difficulties that the exodus of local 
authority maintained schools to become Academies is causing Plymouth and its neighbouring 
authorities. 

 
4.2 The Council has set up a corporate impact group that considers the impact of school 

transferring from the maintained sector. This group is chaired by Colin Moore Assistant 

Page 76



 

Director for Lifelong Learning. The recommendation of the OSMB is noted and it is reported 
that discussions and dialogue between authorities is ongoing.  Joint ventures offering services 
to schools between authorities are developing opportunities that are being considered. The 
market for Academies is clearly growing and it is important for the right services to be 
established that can compete in this market. 

 
4.3 A financial report outlining the risks of schools not buying into council services will be 

compiled as part of the quarterly monitoring report to Cabinet. 
 

5.0 Sex Establishment Licensing Policy  

5.1 In respect of the Customers and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s consideration 
of the Sex Establishment Licensing Policy, the OSMB agreed – 

(1) the adoption of Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982: 

 
(2) the content of the draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy with the inclusion of the 

following – 
• (hours of opening) to include ‘Good Friday’ on a similar basis to Sundays; 
• (notification) that residents, chairs of school governors, religious establishments 

within a specific distance from the proposed sex establishment, as well as the 
relevant Ward Councillors, are notified of any application by individual letters. 

 
5.2  The recommendations from the overview and scrutiny panel on the 18 July 2011 will be 

addressed in the officer’s report on the policy document, which will be considered by Cabinet 
on 15 November 2011. 
 

6.0 Localities and Neighbourhood Working Review 

6.1 The recommendations of the OSMB, following the Task and Finish Group on Localities and 
Neighbourhood Working, are addressed in a separate report on this agenda.    

 
 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject:    Waste and Recycling Improvements 

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    13 September 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Michael Leaves 

CMT Member: Assistant Chief Executive 

Author: Peter Honeywell Transformational Change Programme Manager 

Contact:    Tel:  01752 305603 
    e-mail: peter.honeywell@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:    IG/JD Waste Paper 

Key Decision: Yes   
 
Part: 1   
 
Executive Summary:  
 
This paper makes a series of recommendations to improve the recycling and waste collection 
performance for the Council.  The most significant change proposed is to collect glass within the 
existing green bins for all customers in the city.  This change is estimated to add 4% to the recycling 
rate and is consistent with our obligations in securing the waste PFI and our contract with MVV.  The 
paper also proposes the introduction of a pilot glass recycling scheme for one of the existing 
collections rounds (round 6) by September 2012, in order to allow the Council to learn how best to 
provide the service.   
 
Additional changes are also proposed to the garden waste collection service.  This scheme will be 
extended to include November 2011 as a trial to determine the tonnage of garden waste collected at 
this time of year.  The scheme will also be expanded to cover the remaining properties in the city 
with gardens by April 2012.  Hereafter all new properties with gardens in the city will also receive 
this service. 
 
The paper also recommends some changes to the way vehicles supporting the service are paid for, so 
that the overall costs can be reduced and the service reliability can be maintained. 
 
Additionally the paper recommends a review of the depots used by the Council across the city once 
the Energy from Waste planning decision is made.  At this point it may be possible to re align 
resources providing services to the city and realise a capital receipt from any space freed up.  
 
Finally the paper proposes the establishment of a programme to deliver these changes overseen by an 
Executive Group, including Member representation, with appropriate delegated authority. 
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   
 
The recommendations made in this report compliment existing initiatives such as Energy from Waste 
to provide comprehensive, innovative and efficient waste collection and disposal for the city.  The 
ambition of these changes is consistent with the City and Council priority to raise aspiration and 
supports the priority to provide value for the communities.   
 

Agenda Item 9Page 79



The key performance metrics this work will support are the recycling rate, with an estimated 
increase overall of nearly 4.5%.  In addition this work will maintain the currently high customer 
satisfaction levels (72% report being highly or fairly satisfied) with the waste collection service.      
          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
Subject to approval this paper commits resources to the delivery of a pilot for glass recycling and 
implementing the garden waste extension and expansion.  A summary of the additional (not currently 
budgeted) costs associated with these changes is shown below (the cost of glass recycling is 
considered commercially sensitive and is therefore included under Part 2): 
 

FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14
Rev Capital Rev Capital Rev Capital

Garden Waste Expansion £83,000 £84,000 £84,000

Totals £83,000 £84,000 £84,000

 
 
Costs included under Part 2 is by virtue of Categories 3(a) and (d) of paragraph 10.4 of Part 5 of 
Plymouth City Council's Constitution. 
 
The successful implementation of this scheme will add to the financial pressures the Council are 
facing, with an on-going budget pressure of £84k each year.  This will have implications in terms of 
additional delivery plans which will need to be developed to off-set these extra costs in order to keep 
the Council's budget in balance. These additional plans will be considered at CMT and reported back 
in the next Joint Performance and Finance Report for quarter ending September 2011. 
 
The expansion of the garden waste collection service will require an increase of approximately 1.25 
of an FTE and result in an increase in payroll costs of around £37k in FY 11/12 and the extension of 
the season will add just less than 1.25 FTE which is worth £37k on payroll costs in FY 12/13.  The 
glass pilot will not require any additional FTE. 
 
Expenditure and other resource implications associated with the strategic MRF replacement project, 
vehicles, depots and toilets will all be requested to Cabinet in reports.  These decisions are not being 
delegated to the programme boards until the financial implications are defined. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 

• Community Safety (due regard to preventing crime and disorder)  
 
Section 17 Crime & Disorder Act  
Any glass recycling option should be operationally designed and established to protect against 
the risk of being a contributory factor in local anti-social behaviour or any other form of 
crime and disorder. As part of the proposed option for glass being commingled with existing 
recycling arrangements this appears to represent a positive action under Section 17. Perhaps 
as an additional safety measure, consideration could be given to glass being wrapped in 
recyclable paper before being place in the bin.  However, any kerbside scheme involving the 
storage of glass in open boxes overnight ready for collection would appear to represent a 
significant and obvious crime and disorder risk.  

 

There do not appear to be any negative impact under Section 17 re the proposed Garden 
Waste Expansion. 

Page 80



• Health and Safety  

Noise issues for operatives and customers are not anticipated to be higher than the current 
recycling collection; however assessments should be completed as part of the pilot. 

There are no indications that manual handling injuries will significantly increase as a result of 
the proposals in this paper.  However, this will need to be confirmed through the monitoring 
of all reported accidents from the pilot. 

• Risk Management  

The proposals made in this paper mitigate risk 68 - “Failure to reach recycling targets and divert 
waste from landfill (Link to PFI initiative and LATS penalties)” - on the Corporate risk register.  
Whilst there will be project levels risks emerge through the delivery of the work proposed in 
this paper none of these risks are anticipated to be as substantial as risk 68. 

• Equality, Diversion and Community Cohesion  

These changes should not be used as a basis to reduce assisted bin collection for people with 
disabilities and older people, people with learning disabilities or other mental health issues. 

Consideration will need to be given to the wide and varied communication methods to ensure 
that all members of the community are reached eg promotion in different languages, 
communication in large print, etc. 

  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
1/. Endorse the plans to deliver a kerb side glass recycling service across the city by April 2014.  This 
action is recommended to ensure PCC has a way of meeting it’s obligations to Defra for the PFI 
credits supporting the Energy from Waste plant and the detail of which is subject to soft market 
testing. 
2/. Note that officers will conduct a soft market testing for the options around a replacement MRF.  
3/. Approve the plans to deliver a pilot operation for kerb side glass collection by September 2012.  
This action is required in order to ensure the Council trials the service and uses the learning to fine 
tune the service delivery prior to a broader roll out across the city. 
4/. Approve the plans to extend garden waste collection on a trial basis for November 2011 and 
extend the service coverage for the remaining 19,500 properties in the city by April 2012 that have 
gardens.  These actions will help raise the recycling rate further and ensure consistent coverage of 
the service across the city. 
5/. Approve the Programme Governance Terms of Reference (Appendix 3) and delegation of 
authority as set out at Appendix 3 paragraph 4.3 to the officer who is the Chair of the Executive 
Group to allow the programme to progress at the required pace in order to meet the timetable 
outlined in this paper.  This action will establish a programme governance consistent with the Leisure 
Management Boards and Adult Social Care. 
6/. Note that the Executive Group for the programme will commission and deliver a communication 
plan for customers and media to support the implementation of these changes. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
Options appraisals included in appendix 1 and 2. 
 
Background papers:   
None 
 
Sign off:   
Fin DJN 

1112.
008 

Leg 12747/
ALT HR  Corp 

Prop 
CT IT  Strat 

Proc 
JK/SP
U/253/
0811 

Originating SMT Member : Jayne Donovan 
 

Page 81



1.0 Background and Drivers 
1.1 This paper addresses 5 drivers for change that are impacting on Environmental Services waste and 
recycling service.  The drivers are: 

• The cost of waste collection and levels of recycling performance1compared against other unitary 
authorities 

• The absence of a strategic approach to vehicle replacement  
• The requirement to deliver a plan for kerb side glass collection without introducing additional 

containers 
• The ageing materials recycling facility (MRF) and the provision of a replacement  
• The choice of depot and infrastructure location required to support the delivery of Environmental 

services  
The recommendations made in the paper address each of these drivers whilst also fitting in with the Energy 
from Waste (EfW) plans and ensuring that any pilot phasing fits in with strategic decisions.   
 
2.0 Introduction 
2.1 Waste collection is one of the most visible and important services provided by the council as far as 
customers are concerned.  Since the challenges over re zoning were overcome we have achieved 99.9% 
reliability of collection and have been rewarded in customer satisfaction surveys with 72% of customer 
reporting they were either very or fairly satisfied by the service in the 2009 interim place survey.  This was the 
(equal) highest level of satisfaction of all the services provided by the Council, but compares less favourably to 
the full place survey in 2008 when the average for met/unitary authorities was 77%. 
 
2.2 It is also a service that is subject to significant change and volatility driven by economics, penalty regimes, 
ongoing legislation changes and growing public awareness of waste issues. These factors have resulted in the 
service, like others across the Council, facing a mix of pressures: 

• Increasing demand from more properties and increasing customer expectation for recycling 
• Increasing costs for key supplies, such as fuel and vehicle maintenance 
• Competitive pressures from the market for the more lucrative elements of the service 
• Greater pressure on budgets following the public sector budget reductions 

 
2.3 This paper is intended to provide recommendations to deal with a number of the challenges that have been 
faced in recent years by the service.   
 
2.4 The dates presented in the following sections are based on the assumption that decisions are made in 
September to provide direction on each of the options and thereafter financial and other operational approvals 
are made on a timely basis. 
   
3.0 Glass Recycling – Strategic Solution 
3.1 As a city we have a stated intention within the PFI business case to introduce a kerb side collection for 
glass in order to improve our recycling. This business case was approved by Defra prior to them confirming 
their financial PFI credit support for the PFI Energy from Waste project which is conditioned such that any 
material changes from the business case must be reported and approved by Defra. Therefore unless 
alternative arrangements are submitted and subsequently approved by Defra, this commitment requires us to 
have a kerb side glass scheme in place by the time the EfW solution is operational. The PFI waste contract 
with MVV also assumes glass will be removed from Plymouth's residual waste stream and any changes to this 
contractual assumption would have to be negotiated.  Looking at different practices in waste collection there 
are four fundamental options potentially available to any authority seeking to provide kerb side glass recycling 
for its customers.  These are: 

• Recycling sorted at a MRF and collected from a single container.  The MRF could be a new glass 
capable facility built in the city or the recyclables could be transported, potentially some distance, to 
such a facility. 

• A separate glass collection service i.e. glass collected in an additional separate container from the rest 
of the co mingled recyclables 

• Customer sorting using separate containers for each different recyclable commodity i.e. glass in one, 
paper in another, plastics in another, cans in another etc. 

                                                
1 Recycling includes: garden waste, existing green bin collection and the bring banks 

Page 82



• Operatives manually sorting from a single container at kerb side  

3.2 A summary table of the options considered including the pros and cons of each is included as appendix 1 
to this report.  The recommendation to Cabinet is to build on the existing strategy of collecting recyclable 
materials in the single green bin already provided to customers.  In order to proceed with this strategy officers 
will need to undertake a soft market testing exercise to discuss with potential providers what options exist for 
a MRF that Plymouth can use and capture sufficient information from this work to develop a business case to 
support the procurement required.  The anticipated date by which this solution is likely to be operational is 
April 2014. 

 

4.0 Glass Recycling – Pilot  
4.1 The move to a strategic glass recycling solution will require the Council to deliver and learn from a pilot 
before implementing the full scale solution.  A pilot will allow us to test participation levels, the quantity and 
quality of glass recycled per household, effects on existing bottle banks and establish any operational issues 
(such as increased noise and health and safety) as well as costs.  Piloting options in waste collection is 
necessary as it allows authorities to try a change on a small scale, learn from this and then build up the service 
to full scale. 
 
4.2 The pilot for glass recycling will require the Council to transfer the recycled commodities (including glass) 
from the customer homes involved in the pilot to a MRF capable of sorting glass as well as the other 
commodities included in our green bins.  Operationally this can only really be achieved through the pilot 
covering an existing round in the city.  The round recommended for the pilot is round 6 as this round serves a 
population demographically similar to the population of Plymouth as a whole (allowing results to be 
meaningfully projected from the pilot to a city wide roll out).  Appendix 2 provides additional detail on the 
properties covered by round 6.  The round also features 6 bring banks for glass against which it will be 
possible to assess the impact of kerb side collection against the tonnage collected at these sites.   
 
4.3 The plan to deliver the pilot will allow us to start learning about the service from September 2012.  The 
pilot will run for a maximum of 12 months after which time it will be evaluated and potentially deployed to 
other rounds as part of the build up to full strategic operations. 

 
5.0 Garden Waste Expansion 
5.1 The current fortnightly kerbside garden waste collection service is offered to approximately 86,300 
properties in the city and runs from 1st April – 31st October (7 months).  There are currently approximately 
114,000 properties in Plymouth, leaving 27,700 properties not on the scheme.  The majority of these 
properties have little or no gardens.  However around 2,500 properties have gardens that would benefit from 
a garden waste service (Honicknowle, Ham, Eggbuckland and Compton).  Another set of properties are 
predominantly in the south west of the city (Devonport, Stoke, Keyham, Stonehouse) and these have limited 
outside space.  In total this would add another 19,500 properties to the service but there are pockets of 
houses within these areas with gardens.  The balance of 8,200 properties are flats in high rise and other 
properties with no garden. 
 
5.2 A summary table of the options considered including the pros and cons of each is included as appendix 2 
to this report.  The recommendations to Cabinet are: A) to trial the season extension for garden waste 
collection to include November this year.  The results of the trial will be reviewed and any future decisions on 
garden waste seasonal extension will be taken on the basis of this data.  B). to expand the provision of garden 
waste collection to the 19,500 remaining properties in Plymouth with any form of garden.  This 
recommendation also confirms that future developments in Plymouth of homes with gardens will automatically 
qualify for the service. 
 
5.3 The costs for this expansion, included in the Implications for the MTFP section of this report are greater in 
FY 12/13 than FY 13/14 due to the one off set up costs such as the purchase of additional bags for the garden 
waste, their delivery to customers and customer communications explaining the changes.  These set up costs 
are estimated at £35k. 
 
 
 
 

Page 83



6.0 Communications and Awareness 
6.1 Managing communications with customers throughout these changes will be vital to their successful 
implementation and customer satisfaction through the period of change.  A communication plan will be 
established by the project teams working to deliver the changes and overseen by the Communications Officer 
as part of their role on the Programme Board. 
 
6.2 Raising customer awareness of recycling is also vital to deliver the targets set for the proposed projects.  
Environmental Services will be working with partner agencies in the city to source volunteers and champions 
to re-enforce awareness and support people through the changes in their behaviours that will deliver our 
targets. 
 
7.0 Vehicle Replacement  
7.1 Since the waste fleet investment in 2007, when 29 new refuse collection vehicles (RCVs) were bought an 
ongoing capital programme has not been funded to maintain the fleet at the right age and condition to support 
the service.  This has resulted in replacement vehicles being bought in on short term arrangements at so called 
“spot hire” rates.  These rates are an uneconomic way to purchase vehicles required for long term use and 
some of the RCVs on spot hire have been contracted to us for 2 years.   
 
7.2 The project to deliver these new vehicles will invest in the replacement of these vehicles either with 
purchased or a leasing arrangement, both of which will significantly reduce the life time ownership cost for 
these vehicles.   This project will report status and take direction from the programme governance described 
in section 8.  Note: this procurement is being linked in with the category management project so as to 
maximise the opportunity to deliver savings from it.  
 
8.0 Depot Strategy 
8.1 Recharges for depot space at Prince Rock have been suggested as one of the possible causes of the service 
costs being higher than comparative authorities.  In fact the recharges borne by Environmental Services 
account for 2.7% of the gross budget and therefore make very little difference to the overall service cost.  
Having said this an adjustment of £250k was made to the recharges levied on Environmental Services in FY 
2010/11 which reduced this burden and will also be applied in future years.   
 
8.2 The Prince Rock site is shared by Environmental Services and Plymouth Community Homes (PCH).  PCH 
have a lease agreement with the Council for their use of the site which has a break clause they could exercise 
in November 2013 and the lease agreement expires in November 2014.   
 
8.3 The reduction in recharges and the break clause on PCH’s lease suggest that there is no urgency to making 
decisions over the depot location for the service.  However, once the decision on the EfW plant is clear other 
sites in the city could become available and at that point analysis should be undertaken to determine where to 
locate the service depots (Prince Rock, Outland Road and Fort Austin) used by Council services across the 
city.  Until the EfW decision is made the depots for each of the services currently used by the Council will 
remain where they are. 
 
9.0 Governance 
9.1 The programme of work required in order to deliver the recommendations outlined above is significant 
and complex, involving a number of linked projects and some high impact improvements to services for 
customers.  The links to other projects also extend to areas like the work on realising budget delivery plans 
for bowling greens, toilets and play spaces as well.  It is proposed that an Executive Group is established to 
oversee all this work.  The group will initially comprise the following members: 

• Chair: Carole Burgoyne Director of Community Services  
• Member: Cllr M. Leaves (Portfolio Holder for Community Services - Street Scene, Waste and 

Sustainability) 
• Member: Cllr I. Bowyer (Portfolio Holder for Finance, Property and People).  

 The terms of reference for the programme are appended to this report as appendix 3. 
 
9.2 The Chair of the Executive Group will require delegated authority from Cabinet and the relevant Cabinet 
Member Cllr M. Leaves (Portfolio Holder for Community Services) to make all necessary executive decisions 
to achieve the recommendations in this report with the exception of the following executive decisions (which 
will be retained by Cabinet or be decided in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation for Executive 
Functions in force from time to time): 

Page 84



• Approval of the report into strategic glass recycling following the soft market testing 
• Award of contract for the strategic glass recycling solution 
• Award of contract for any vehicles required to maintain service levels and reduce maintenance spend 

in waste collection 
• Approval of the depot strategy  
• Award of contract for toilet refurbishment and optionally maintenance 

This delegated authority shall be exercised in accordance with Plymouth City Council’s Constitution, Standing 
Orders and Financial Regulations. 

Page 85



Appendix 1 – Strategic glass collection options 
Option Pros Cons  Recommendation 

Co-mingled 
recycling to be 
collected in a 
single container 
and sorted at a 
MRF 

No additional container to 
provide to customers 

Responsibility for sorting 
taken away from 
customers 

Cost efficient for 
collection service 

Timescale to deliver new MRF This option avoids 
disruption to the 
customer and is 
completely aligned 
with the existing 
service delivery.  
This is the preferred 
option 

Glass collected 
from kerb side 
in separate 
container   

Quicker to implement 
than building a MRF 

Prices for all commodities 
should be higher due to 
less contamination 

Customers have to separate glass out 
and store it in an additional container 

Collection inefficiencies as this 
solution would mean that 4 vehicles 
would collect from most houses in the 
city 

Noise could be an issue for customers 
on early rounds 

Retain as an option 
to be considered 
against the results of 
the market testing 
on the preferred 
option 

Customer sorts 
recycling into 
separate 
containers for 
each commodity 

Prices for all commodities 
should be higher due to 
less contamination 

Expected to be very unpopular with 
customers 

Customers have to separate all 
recyclables and store them in separate 
containers 

Customers would have to find space 
for additional containers 

Collection inefficiencies as vehicles 
become full when any one of the 
commodity bays become full 

Noise could be an issue for customers 
on early rounds 

Discount as an 
option.  No further 
action 

Operatives sort 
recycling at kerb 
side from co-
mingled 
container 

Customers don’t have to 
sort and store multiple 
containers 

Existing green wheelie bins would 
need replacing, (with multiple 
additional containers likely to be 
required to provide equivalent 
capacity) 

Noise could be an issue for customers 
on early rounds containers 

Collection inefficiency as operatives 
have to sort commodities at the kerb 
side 

Potential for major traffic disruption in 
narrow streets as vehicles wait on 
operatives 

Discount as an 
option.  No further 
action 

Do nothing No additional cost 

No changes for customers 

Would require other plans to be 
developed to meet our recycling 
commitments to Defra and MVV 

Fails to address a priority for 
Plymouth residents 

Ruled out as an 
option as it fails to 
respond to 
important 
challenges 

 

Page 86



Appendix 2 – Round 6 property breakdown 
 

Ward 
Total 

collected 
Number 
in Ward % 

Budshead 4029 5666 71.1% 
Southway 2847 5379 52.9% 
Honicknowle 2524 6090 41.4% 
St Budeaux 2089 5777 36.2% 
Ham 1801 5858 30.7% 
Peverell 694 5824 11.9% 
Eggbuckland 609 5787 10.5% 
Devonport 65 6938 0.9% 

TOTAL 14658   

 

Page 87



Appendix 3 – Garden waste expansion options 

 
 

Option Go Live Pros Cons Costs Recommendation 
Expand 
garden waste 
from 86,600 
to 19,500  
additional 
homes 

April 2012 Raises recycling rates by 0.17% 
Ensures consistency of provision to all but 
high rise and homes with no gardens 
Quick to implement 

Additional improvements in recycling 
would also need to be made in order to 
improve Plymouth’s comparative 
performance 

Set up costs 
£35k 
Operating 
costs £84k pa 

This option doesn’t provide for seasonal 
expansion. 
Discount as an option 

Extend 
garden waste 
to March and 
November 

November 
2011 

Raises recycling rates by 0.28%  
Covers more of the growing season 
Quick to implement 

Additional improvements in recycling 
would also need to be made in order to 
improve Plymouth’s comparative 
performance 

£96k per year This option doesn’t resolve the  inequality in the 
current service provision. 
Discount as an option 

Extend 
garden waste 
season and 
expand 
properties 
within the 
scheme 

November 
2011 and 
April 2012 

Raises recycling rates by 0.45% 
Ensures consistency of provision to all but 
high rise and homes with no gardens 
Covers more of the growing season 
Quick to implement 

Additional improvements in recycling 
would also need to be made in order to 
improve Plymouth’s comparative 
performance 

Set up costs 
£35k 
Operating 
costs £200kpa 
   Breakdown: 
   New homes 
= £84k 
   Season = 96k 
   Incremental 
cost of both = 
£20k 

This option doesn’t allow PCC to confirm the 
level of customer usage for the seasonal 
expansion. 
Discount as an option 

Extend 
garden waste 
for a trial 
month  and 
expand 
properties 
within the 
scheme 

November 
2011 and 
April 2012 

Raises recycling rates by 0.45%  (for 2012) 
Allows city to determine the benefits of 
extending the growing season to 
November without committing to the 
cost of providing this service ongoing 
Ensures consistency of provision to all but 
high rise and homes with no gardens 
Quick to implement 

Additional improvements in recycling 
would also need to be made in order to 
improve Plymouth’s comparative 
performance 

Set up costs 
£35k 
Operating 
costs £48k (for 
2011/12) + 
£84k (for 
2012/13) 

This option allows a trial for the season 
expansion to confirm customer need and 
addresses the inequality in the current service 
provision. 
This is the preferred option 

Do nothing n/a No additional cost 
No changes for customers 

Fails to address customer feedback on 
season extension 
Fails to address existing service 
inequality  

£0 Ruled out as an option as it fails to respond to 
important challenges  

P
age 88



Appendix 4 – Programme Governance Terms of Reference 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES PROGRAMME 
Programme Governance and Terms of Reference 
  

 

  
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Governance arrangements for the Environmental Services Programme are as follows: 

 

1.2 Environmental Services Programme Board 

1.2.1 The purpose of the Environmental Services Programme Board is to deliver the programme of 
projects in the Environmental Services portfolio. The projects currently in that portfolio 
comprise  

… Strategic MRF Replacement 

… Glass recycling pilot 

… Garden waste 

… Composting and wood chipping 

… Vehicle replacement 

… Long term service delivery 

… Depot strategy 

… Trade waste 

… Toilets 

… Bowling greens 

… Play spaces 

 and will include future projects included in the Programme by decision of the Leader, Cabinet 
or a Cabinet Member in accordance with the Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Executive 
Functions from time to time. 

1.2.2 Decisions required on each project will be referred up to the Environmental Services 
Programme Board by Project Teams/officers where a recommendation will be developed and 
subsequently discussed at the Environmental Services Executive Board. In accordance with the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Executive Functions, Cabinet has delegated the necessary 
authority (with the exception of:  

… Approval of the report into strategic glass recycling following the soft market testing  

… Award of contract for the strategic glass recycling solution 

Page 89



… Allocation of capital within the Capital Programme 

… Award of contract for any vehicles required to maintain service levels and reduce 
maintenance spend in waste collection 

… Approval of the depot strategy 

… Award of contract for toilet refurbishment and optionally maintenance)  
which facilitate the delivery of the projects in the Programme to the Chair of the Environmental 
Services Executive Board. Such decisions shall be taken in strict compliance with the Constitution of 
Plymouth City Council. Contract award decisions will be reserved to be made in accordance with the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Executive Functions from time to time. 

 

1.3 Environmental Services Executive Board  

1.3.1 The Environmental Services Executive Board shall be accountable to the City Council to 
oversee and direct the programme of works in the Environmental Services portfolio 

1.3.2 The Executive Board shall be chaired by Carole Burgoyne, Director of Community Services 

1.3.3 The Chair of the Executive Board shall have the authority to delegate day-to-day responsibility 
for managing the projects to officers who are member(s) of the Programme Board. This 
authority shall be exercised in accordance with Plymouth City Council’s Constitution.  

1.3.4 The Chair of the Environmental Services Executive Board shall act as the final arbiter for issues 
referred to it by the Project Managers/Leads through the Programme Director. 

1.3.5 Membership of the Environmental Services Executive Board shall be drawn from Plymouth City 
Council and other major stakeholders and may include others at the discretion of the Chair of 
the Executive Board,  as long as the total membership is kept to a workable level with the 
appropriate level of responsibility.  

1.3.6 The Chair of the Environmental Services Executive Board has the authority to further delegate 
decision making authority to the officer who is the Chair of the Environmental Services 
Programme Board and through to the Project Managers/Leads as they see fit. 

2. Responsibilities 

2.1 The responsibilities of the Boards throughout the Programme include: 

2.1.1 Ensuring that sufficient human, physical and financial resources to deliver the work streams are 
allocated to the projects throughout their development and procurement to allow the work 
stream teams to function effectively; 

2.1.2 Ensuring a robust quality management process is in place for the work streams contained in the 
Programme; 

2.1.3 Ensuring the following factors are identified, monitored and managed: 

… affordability; 
… value for money; 
… risks: to the project, the funding bodies and the City Council as a result of participating in 

the project; 

2.1.4 Reporting to Cabinet on progress, referring appropriate issues to the Cabinet for 
approval/validation as required; 

2.1.5 Owning the risk-register and considering the management of risk at appropriate stages; 

Page 90



2.1.6 Owning lessons learnt register and providing feedback to other projects across the Authority. 

2.1.7 Facilitating and managing all political issues and associated communications. 
2.18 Facilitate and manage all customer issues and associated communications. 

 

3. Process 

3.1 Each project in the Programme must have a brief produced and approved by Cabinet. The brief 
will clearly set out the basis of the project including, as a minimum, the following information: 

… Overview 
… Benefits Realisation 
… Procurement Route 
… Programme 
… Team Budget 
… Reporting arrangements 
… Major Decisions 
… Team – Roles & Responsibilities 
… Document Control & Storage 
… Confidentiality 
… Risks 
… Issues 
… Lessons Learned 
… Glossary 

3.2 The Programme and budgetary parameters of each project are to be clearly defined and these 
are to be set by the Leader, Cabinet or a Cabinet Member in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution and Scheme of Delegation for Executive Functions from time to time. 

3.3 Items added to the Risk Register, Issues Log and Lessons Learned Log are to be reported to 
the Boards. 

3.4 Each project will have a project team identified with a Project Manager/Lead responsible for 
reporting to the Programme Director and producing reports for the Environmental Services 
Programme Board. 

3.5 The Environmental Services Programme Board and the Environmental Services Executive Board 
will meet on a monthly basis. Project team meetings should be more frequent as dictated by the 
needs of the project. 

 

4. Decision-making 

4.1 The Boards shall operate strictly in accordance with the requirements of Plymouth City 
Council’s Constitution  

4.2 The Boards shall make all reasonable endeavours to comply, insofar as it is reasonably 
practicable to do so, with the relevant financial requirements of third party funding 
organisations wherein specific requirements apply to the expenditure of grants, etc.  

4.3 The Chair of the Environmental Services Executive Board  shall have delegated authority to 
exercise the executive functions and powers of the authority delegated in the Council’s Scheme 
of Delegation for Executive Functions as may be necessary, calculated to facilitate, incidental or 

Page 91



conducive to the discharge of the objective as set out in the respective Project Brief with the 
exception of decisions noted in 1.2.2 which shall be reserved to be made in accordance with 
the Council’s Scheme of Delegation for Executive Functions from time to time. 

4.4 All decisions will be made in consultation with the Board’s membership. 

4.5 Substitution of members at Board meetings shall not be accepted and apologies shall be 
submitted in advance of meetings. 

4.6 Where a member fails to attend three consecutive meetings, the Board shall consider replacing 
that member. 

4.7 The attendee list will be reviewed by the Chair at various stages throughout the project to 
ensure that appropriate participation from relevant stakeholders.  

 

5. Meeting Management 

5.1 The Boards will meet monthly. Extraordinary meetings shall be arranged by agreement when 
more immediate decisions are required, such as at key stages of the procurement process.  

5.2 Where appropriate, decisions can be made by the Chair of the Environmental Services 
Executive Board outside of the formal Board forum through consultation with all relevant 
parties. Such decisions will be reported to the subsequent round of Board meetings. 

5.3 Except in cases of extreme urgency, meetings shall be arranged with at least three working 
days’ notice. 

5.4 An agenda shall be produced and issued to all members at least three working days before the 
meeting. 

5.5 Minutes of each meeting, indicating action points and their owners, shall be circulated to all 
members no later than three days after each meeting. 

5.6 The Programme Manager will prepare and present a report to Cabinet on at least a quarterly 
basis that sets out the progress of the Programme. 

5.7 Except for unusual circumstances meeting dates shall be agreed for a period of six months in 
advance. 

5.8 The City Council shall provide sufficient secretarial support to organise and minute Board 
meetings through the project. 

Page 92



 MODEL PROJECT BRIEF TEMPLATE 

 

Page 93



Page 94



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



 

Page 96



Updated September 2011 

CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
  
Subject:    Safeguarding Children Corporate Policy  

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    13 September 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Sam Leaves 

CMT Member:   Director of Services for Children and Young People 

Author: Hannah Haines (Policy and Business Planning Officer) and 
Maureen Grimley (Safeguarding Manager)  

Contact:    Tel:  01752 307335 or 01752 306754 
    e-mail: Hannah.haines@plymouth.gov.uk  or 

     Maureen.grimley@plymouth.gov.uk 

Ref:    Safeguarding Children Corporate Policy 

Key Decision: No 
 
Part: I   
 
Executive Summary:  
 
The aim of this corporate policy is that all relevant Plymouth City Council employees are able to 
recognise any child where there is a safeguarding concern and respond appropriately and that all 
elected members and employees1 of the Council understand their responsibility where a safeguarding 
concern has been identified. They will be able to access and follow the agreed safeguarding 
procedures in order to protect that child and to fully comply with all aspects of their responsibility. A 
child is defined as anyone who has not yet reached their 18th birthday and includes unborn children. 
 
Adherence to this policy will contribute to providing every child and young person in Plymouth with 
a safe environment to live, grow, achieve and exceed in their hopes for the future, through: 
 
• the promotion of effective and efficient Safeguarding Services within all directorates of the 

Council, and  
 
• promoting effective single agency and multi agency safeguarding. 
 
This policy, combined with the associated procedures, provides guidance to all elected members and 
employees who may come across safeguarding concerns within the context of their work for the 
Council. The expectation of Plymouth City Council is that all elected members will participate in the 
appropriate training that is offered in relation to the safeguarding children as part of their 
responsibilities as corporate parents. 
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   

This policy directly contributes to reducing inequalities by helping children to have the best start to 
life. Keeping children safe is at the heart of everything we do.  
         

                                                
1 The term employee does not refer to the paid status of the person concerned but rather actions taken by them on behalf of 
Plymouth City Council, therefore unpaid workers, volunteers and agents may be included within this context. 

Agenda Item 11Page 97



Updated September 2011 

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
None that are bit already included in the Council’s budget and plans 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 
 

• Community Safety - preventing abuse and neglect 

• Health and Safety  - Promoting safeguarding and wellbeing 

• Risk Management - enable employees to identify risk of abuse or neglect. 

• Equalities Impact Assessment has been undertaken with no required actions. 

  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
Cabinet are requested to approve this corporate policy. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
N/A 
 
Background papers:   
Safeguarding Children Corporate Policy 
 
Sign off:   

 
Fin 5.7.11 

SA 
Leg 1.7.11 

LT 
HR 16.6.11 

JM 
Corp 
Prop 

N/A IT N/A Strat 
Proc 

N/A 

Originating SMT Member: Mairead MacNeil 
 
 

Page 98



 

DRAFT  Not protectively marked  

SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN 
CORPORATE POLICY
 

 
1. Aim of this Policy 
 
1.1 The aim of this corporate policy is that all Plymouth City Council employees are able to 

recognise any child where there is a safeguarding concern and respond appropriately and 
that all elected members and employees1 of the council understand their responsibility 
where a safeguarding concern has been identified. They will be able to access and follow 
the agreed safeguarding procedures in order to protect that child and to fully comply with 
all aspects of their responsibility. A child is defined as anyone who has not yet reached their 
18th birthday and includes unborn children. 

 
1.2 Adherence to this Policy will contribute to providing every child and young person in 

Plymouth with a safe environment to live, grow, achieve and exceed in their hopes for the 
future, through the promotion of effective and efficient safeguarding services within all 
directorates of the council, and through promoting effective single agency and multi agency 
safeguarding. 

 
1.3 This policy, combined with the associated procedures, provides guidance to all elected 

members and employees who may come across safeguarding concerns within the context 
of their work for the council. Plymouth City Council expects all elected members to 
participate in the appropriate training offered in relation to safeguarding children as part of 
their responsibilities as corporate parents. 

 
2. Safeguarding Children  
 
2.1 Plymouth City Council has a broad remit and a wide range of over 300 distinct services to 

our residents and the public. In this activity, as well as responding to immediate concerns, 
we will ensure that appropriate measures and practice to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children are in place and bring matters requiring attention to the relevant 
directorate, organisations and authorities. 

 
2.2 The council believes that it is always unacceptable for a child or young person to 

experience harm of any kind and recognises its responsibility to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of all children and young people by a commitment to practices which protect them.   

 
2.3 Legislation places an obligation on all Local Authorities to safeguard and promote the 

welfare of all children and young people under the age of 18 irrespective of age, ability, 
faith, religion, belief, gender, gender reassignment, race or sexual orientation. To meet this 
obligation Plymouth City Council must ensure adequate policies and procedures are in 
place to guide elected members and employees. 

 
2.4 This policy outlines the council’s expectations on each of its directorates to work together 

and in partnership with other organisations and agencies in order to fulfill their duties to 

                                            
1 The term employee does not refer to the paid status of the person concerned but rather actions taken by them on 
behalf of Plymouth City Council, therefore unpaid workers, volunteers and agents may be included within this context. 

Page 99



 

 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young people2, and provided that this is 
consistent with the child’s safety and welfare, to promote their upbringing by their families 
by providing services appropriate to the child’s needs. It is important that all council 
employees understand fully their responsibilities and duties as set out in primary legislation 
and associated regulations and guidance.  

 
2.5 What is abuse and neglect? Abuse and neglect are forms of maltreatment of a child. 

Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm, or by failing to act to prevent 
harm. Children may be abused in a family; in their home by others caring for them; in an 
institutional or community setting; by those known to them or, more rarely, by a stranger; 
for example via the internet. They may be abused by an adult or adults or another child or 
children.  Forms of abuse are3: 
   
• Physical Abuse: may involve hitting, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, 

drowning, suffocating or otherwise causing physical harm to a child; 
  
• Sexual Abuse: involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in 

sexual activities including prostitution whether or not the child is aware of what is 
happening. This includes exploitation and  the grooming of a child in preparation for 
abuse (including via the internet); 

  
• Neglect: Persistent failure to meet the child’s basic physical and/or psychological 

needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child’ health or development; 
and 

  
• Emotional Abuse: persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause 

severe and persistent adverse effect on the child’s emotional development. This 
includes a child who witnesses domestic violence, overhears domestic violence or an 
episode of adult abuse or is bullied (including cyber bullying). Also includes not giving 
the child and opportunity to express their views, overprotection and limitation of 
exploration and learning, or preventing the child’s participation in normal social activity. 

 
2.6 Any person appointed to a post that requires a Criminal Record Bureau (CRB) check will 

receive safeguarding training as part of their induction training and their continuous 
professional development. Employees are therefore expected to have a good understanding 
of safeguarding concerns, including potential abuse and neglect of children and young 
people, which may come to light. At whatever level employees identify risks they must 
highlight them and seek to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to safeguard the 
children concerned.  

 
2.7 For those appointed to posts not requiring a CRB check the South West Child 

Protection Procedures provide the necessary information for dealing with a concern 
and in particular how to make a referral because it is important that every employee knows 
how to seek advice and report any concerns about a child.  

 
2.8 The council will ensure that all elected members and employees and those who undertake 

work on our behalf maintain a proper focus on safeguarding children and young people and 
that this is reflected both in sound individual practice and our internal policies and guidance. 
All employees must: 

                                            
2 Section 11 of the Children Act 2004, and Section 157 or 175 of the Education Act 2002. 
3 Section 1.32 of  Working Together to Safeguard Children 2010 

Page 100



 

 

 
• Give highest priority to children’s welfare; 

 
• Recognise, identify and respond to signs of abuse, neglect and other safeguarding 
  concerns relating to children and young people; 

 
• Respond appropriately to disclosure by a child, or young person, of abuse; 
  
• Respond appropriately to allegations against staff, other adults, and against themselves; 
  
• Act appropriately during the work place and understand safe practice in carrying out 

duties in relation to their employment; 
  
• Be alert to the risks which abusers, or potential abusers, may pose; 
  
• Be aware of the importance of the role of the council in promoting the welfare of 

children; and 
  
• Contribute as necessary to all stages of Children’s Social Care safeguarding and 

protection processes. 
 
3. Statutory and Policy Framework  
 
 The key legislation, policy and guidance for the council to adhere to in relation to 

discharging its safeguarding children responsibilities is contained within: 
 

 Children Act 1989 and Children Act 2004 
 United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (ratified in UK in 1991) 
 The Protection of Children Act 1999 
 Care Standards Act 2000  
 What to do if you’re worried a child is being abused 2006 
 Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 
 Working Together to Safeguard Children 2010  
 Roles and Responsibilities of the Lead member for Children’s Services and the Director for 
Children’s Services (DCSF) 2009 
 South West Child Protection Procedures 
 Plymouth Children and Young People’s Plan 2011 – 2014 
 Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board Annual Business Plan 
 Common Assessment Framework  

  
 
4. Local Arrangements  
 
4.1 The council is a member of the Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board and the Children 

and Young People’s Trust. These partnerships are designed to make sure that agencies 
work together to ensure the safety and welfare of all children and young people in the city. 

 
4.2 Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board (PSCB) The Children Act 2004 required each 

Local Authority to establish a Local Safeguarding Children Board by 1 April 2006. Its 
functions are set out in primary legislation and regulations4. Its core objectives are to: 

                                            
4 Sections 14 and 14A of the Children Act 2004, and Local Safeguarding Children Regulations 2006, SI 2006/90. 

Page 101



 

 

  
• Co-ordinate what is done by each person or body represented on the Board for 

purposes of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children in the area of the 
authority; and 

  
• Ensure the effectiveness of what is done by each person or body for that purpose, 

through monitoring and evaluation. 
 
4.3 The Children and Young People’s Trust (Trust) is a partnership arrangement with 

responsibilities to improve outcomes for children and young people.  Local agencies in 
Plymouth have a duty to co-operate in these arrangements. These arrangements have been 
a success and a local decision for agencies and organisations to continue to cooperate in 
this way has been made by Plymouth 2020 Partnership.  Membership of the Trust includes 
all statutory, community and voluntary organisations and together a Children and Young 
People’s Plan for 2011 – 2014 has been produced. 

 
4.4 In consultation with the Plymouth Safeguarding Children’s Board, the council through the 

Trust agree: 
 

• Governance arrangements and systems to support commissioning of specialist services 
between relevant partners; 

  
• A strategic approach to understanding needs, including sophisticated analysis of data and 

effective engagement with children, young people and families; 
  
• A strategic approach to understanding the effectiveness of current services and 

identifying priorities for change, including where services need to be improved, 
reshaped or developed; 

  
• Integrated and effective arrangements for ensuring that priorities for change are 

delivered through a Children and Young People’s Plan; 
  
• Integrated and effective approaches to understanding the impact of specialist services 

on outcomes for children, young people and families, and using this understanding to 
constructively challenge progress and drive further improvement. 

 
4.5 In addition the council and its partners form one of 12 Local Authority areas who adhere 

to the same Child Protection Procedures. These can be found on the South West Child 
Protection Procedures Website.  

 
 
5. Policy Statements 
 

 In order to meet its safeguarding children obligations under the Children Act 2004 the 
council will: 
  
• Ensure lines of accountability are clear; 
 
• Adhere to safer recruitment and employment procedures and ensure all employees 

have appropriate and relevant training in relation to safeguarding children and are 
supported to keep up to date with changes in legislation and statutory requirements; 

 

Page 102



 

 

• Ensure there is effective multi-agency working to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children and young people; 

 
• Ensure that the sharing of information is efficient and effective as the law prescribes 

in respect of issues that may affect the safety and welfare of children; and 
 
• Appoint a Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) to manage allegations made 

against adults who work with children in the City of Plymouth. 
 
• Strive to ensure that all children in need of additional support receive the support 

they require in a timely manner.  
  

5.1 Accountability 
 
5.1.1 The council recognises that under the Children Act 2004 it has a statutory responsibility 

for making arrangements to ensure all its functions are discharged having regard to the 
need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in Plymouth. This includes all 
services directly provided and commissioned by the council. 

  
5.1.2 Where relevant all services, policies and procedures within the council are to take account 

of the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, this includes ensuring that 
services are provided safely and effectively, and are accessible. 

 
5.1.3 Within the council there are clear lines of accountability for work in relation to 

safeguarding children and young people and delegated decision-making. The Director of 
Services for Children and Young People has the statutory duty and accountability to ensure 
satisfactory arrangements are in place to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and 
young people in Plymouth. The Lead Member for Children’s Services (LM) is a local 
Councillor with delegated responsibility from the council, through the Leader, for local 
children, young people and families. Lead Members are politically accountable for ensuring 
that the local authority fulfils its legal responsibilities for safeguarding and promoting the 
welfare of children and young people, such as ensuring that the local authority fulfils its 
responsibilities to the children for which it is the corporate parent and as such Plymouth 
City Council expects all elected members to undertake corporate parent training. The 
Director for Services for Children and Young People and the Lead Member are to work 
together as a team, exchanging information and views and being open to challenge, so that 
they can fulfill their responsibilities effectively5. 

 
5.1.4 All employees who are employed by, or act on behalf of the council, and who have contact 

with children and/or families, are expected to have a clear understanding of the 
responsibilities for safeguarding children. This will ensure that issues about non-compliance 
with safeguarding procedures and policies can be raised by children, staff and other relevant 
people. If the issues are not dealt with effectively, a formal complaint can be made through 
the council’s Complaint Procedure. 

 
5.1.5 The council will ensure that there is appropriate support for its employees by providing 

regular supervision and professional development. 
 
5.2  Safer Recruitment, Employment and Training 

                                            
5 Roles and Responsibilities of the Lead member for Children’s Services and the Director for Children’s Services (DCSF) 2009 
 

Page 103



 

 

  
5.2.1 It is essential that the council make sure that the people who enter the recruitment 

process or who are employed and who come into contact with children, are safe to do so.  
The council strives to ensure that that our practices and standards are consistent across all 
services in recruitment and selection.  

 
5.2.2 The council has a Recruitment and Selection Policy in place to help prevent unsuitable 

people working with children. Safer Recruitment means: 
 

• Individual responsibilities for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children will be 
encompassed within relevant job descriptions and procedures; 

  
• Scrutinising information provided by applicants and referees; 
  
• Taking up and satisfactorily resolving any discrepancies or anomalies identified in the 

application process; 
  
• Verifying identity and any academic or vocational qualifications; 
  
• Obtaining independent professional and character references; 
  
• Checking previous employment history and  experience; 
  
• Checking that the applicant has the health and physical capacity for the job;  
  
• Carrying out a face to face interview that explores the candidate’s suitability to work 

with children as well as their suitability for the post; and 
  
• Checking the Independent Safeguarding Authority (ISA) scheme. This scheme makes 

requirements for people who want to work with children to be registered, providing 
confirmation that there is no known reason as to why the applicant should not work 
with children.   

 
5.2.3 All applicants who are offered employment with the council where the post holder will be 

working with or have contact with children will be subject to an Enhanced Criminal Record 
Bureau (CRB) disclosure, which are to be reviewed and updated as necessary. Until these 
checks have been completed satisfactorily, the applicant may either: 

 
• Not take up the post; or 
  
• Must not work alone with children but may work under the direct supervision of an 

existing employee who has undergone these checks. 
 
5.2.4 All UK nationals who apply for a general taxi licence are required to complete a Standard 

CRB disclosure in order to be considered by the licensing Committee for their licence. 
Those who also go on to apply for a School Contract Driver Badge are required to 
complete an Enhanced CRB disclosure as part of the vetting process. Foreign Nationals 
are, in addition to the above, required to obtain a ‘Certificate of Good Conduct’ from their 
home embassy. This is a criminal records check from their country of origin. They must 
provide a certificate with an official embassy stamp and also an English translation certified 
in the same way. 

 

Page 104



 

 

5.2.5 Managers who recruit employees who have contact with children will receive Safer 
Recruitment training.  

 
5.2.6 Employees who work or have contact with children, young people and their families will 

have undertaken: 
 

• The council’s Induction and Children’s Workforce Induction training.  
  

• Appropriate safeguarding and safe practice training consistent with their role and 
function;  

  
• Training that is approved by the Plymouth Local Safeguarding Children Board;  

 
5.3 Effective Multi Agency working 
 
 Strategically 
 
5.3.1  The responsibilities of the PSCB are complementary to those of the Trust – to promote 

co-operation to improve the wellbeing of children in Plymouth. 
 
5.3.2 The PSCB and the Trust have a protocol in place to ensure that the PSCB is able to 

challenge and scrutinise effectively the work of the Trust. 
 
 Operationally  
 
5.3.3 All employees will be expected to carry out the functions of their role in accordance with 

Working Together to Safeguard Children 2010. 
 
5.4 Information Sharing 
 
5.4.1 The council in collaboration with its partners, through the PSCB, will ensure information is 

shared efficiently and effectively as the law prescribes in respect of issues that may affect 
the safety and welfare of children. This includes: 

 
• Ensuring that concerns are shared early in order to prevent serious problems from 

developing, and that clear protocols are in place and understood by employees; 
  
• Promoting the welfare of children and young people to contribute towards achieving 

positive outcomes; 
  
• Promoting excellent interagency and multi-disciplinary working. 

 
5.4.2 In particular, the council will ensure that all employees know what to do and how best to 

share information in order to ensure a child and their family receives necessary services, 
especially when they are concerned that a child may be suffering, or at risk of suffering, 
harm. 

 
5.4.3 The council will also ensure that employees have access to support and appropriate expert 

advice.  
 
5.5 Managing Allegations 
 

Page 105



 

 

5.5.1 The council has appointed a Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) to manage 
allegations made against adults who work with children in the City of Plymouth. 

  
5.5.2 Allegations or concerns about staff are to be handled effectively and in accordance with 

 agreed guidance, including that provided by Plymouth Local Safeguarding Children Board. 
This includes that effective procedures are in place for sharing concerns about colleagues 
and other members of staff, and that there is a culture throughout the council which 
enables safeguarding issues to be addressed effectively.  

 
5.6 Children in Need 
 
5.6.1 The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) is a core element of the Every Child Matters 

Agenda. In Plymouth we are striving to ensure that all children in need of additional support 
receive the support they require in a timely manner. To facilitate this, the Children and 
Young People’s Trust have agreed that all partners, including the council, should use the 
CAF as the primary method of assessing needs and identifying when a multi-agency 
response is required. The CAF process enables practitioners from all agencies and the 
voluntary sector to work together to assess and meet the needs of children, young people 
and their families who require targeted, multi-agency support. 

 
 To support practitioners the Trust offers a comprehensive programme of training. The 

training is aimed at anyone working with children, young people and their families, who may 
be involved in carrying out CAF assessments and fulfilling the role of Lead Professional (Key 
Worker), their managers and those agencies which are likely to receive CAF assessments 
as part of their referral process. 

 
5.6.2 Under section 17 of the Children’s Act 1989 children in need are those whose vulnerability 

is such that they are unlikely to reach or maintain a satisfactory level of health or 
development, or their health and development will be significantly impaired without the 
provision of services.  

 
5.6.3 The Plymouth Local Authority Children's Social Care Service is the statutory service which 

can receive referrals from anyone who has an immediate concern about a child’s safety and 
welfare. 

 
6. Implementation, Monitoring and Review Arrangements 
 
6.1 The Safeguarding Manager will be responsible for the implementation and monitoring of this 

policy. 
 
6.2 The Safeguarding Policy will be reviewed bi-annually by the Safeguarding Manager, unless 

there are significant changes to the national legislative or statutory framework or local 
context, which would require an earlier review. 

Page 106



 

 

Appendix 1 – Useful Contacts 
 

Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) 

Location: Windsor House 

Contact: 01752 307144 

 

Plymouth Safeguarding Children Board (PSCB) 

Location: Windsor House 

Contact: 01752 307535 

  pscb@plymouth.gov.uk 

 

Common Assessment Framework (CAF co-ordinator) 

Location: Windsor 

Contact: 01752 307160 

  caf@plymouth.gov.uk  

 

Local Authority Advice and Assessment Service 

Location: Ballard House 

Contact: 01752 308600 

  Adviceandassessment@plymouth.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
���	
���
��	
	 	

�������	 	 	 ��������	
��
������������� �


���������		 	 �����
�	 	 �

������ � � ����
��
��
������� �


������	�������	 � ����������������
�	
�� �


��	�������	 	 ���
���������
�	��
������������
���������� ��
���
�

�������	 	 	 �����
�!��"�
#������
#��
��������
����������
�������$��� 
��


�������� � � %
�&���'(����'�)(� �

����	 	 	 ������*�)	

 �!	����"����� � +�� � �

�����	 �� ���
	
#$�����%�	
�����!�	 �
�
�����
��(�,��
������-�������������

��� #���
������"�� ����������������
�"����������
������
���
��
�&�
�

�.�� %�
��
�
	������������������
����
���
�����
���������������
������������
��
��
��
�������
��
�

��� ���
����
�� �"��������������
����
��
��
�� ���/
���������
�������
�������������	
��
�"��������
�
���
�����"���������������"��/��

�������
����
���/
���������
�������
�������
0�����
������������	
��
�
�
	
����
�"

��"����.�
�

�.� � %�
������
����
���
�����������������������
�����
�
�������������

�������
���
���������������
1����
0���
�2����� ��������/������
�!����
�����������

��� �������������.3�

�

�����
�������	
���� ���
	
��������������������������������
�������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*
�)����$���������.�4�"
	
�#�����
�� ���������������/��� ���������	
��
� �
���

������
�������
�3��
�
�	��
���
�����
��#��������*� 
��
����/� �����"����
����������
���
������
������
�
���	
��������
������������	
�������	��
����������
�"���
���
����������������
�����.�%�������������
�����������	����
�
�����
�.�
���������

��&�����	�'��	()**	+	()*,��
�
%��/��� ���������	
��
������

����
�����
��������
	
�����
��������
�����������������
�����������
�����
���������������������
��
��	
�
������
������
����
������������3���������������
��5��
����� �
��
0������
�.��6�������������������
������
�������
��7����� ��
���
3�����������*�).��
����������
��&'�������"	���	��-���	����	.�������'	�'��	��-	��"�����	��&'�������"�				�
���'�-��/	�������0	�����0	��	��-�'��-�
�
�
��	
�
������
�������������"�����
�
��
��
��"��������
������"�� ������
 �
�&�
�

•� ������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�)�18+�!9�8������������2�
•� -���������6��������������
 
�����*�(�1��
�!����
������2�
•� :��/�
���
��������
 
��
•� ������8�������������
 
�19
	�
"������������������ ��� 2�
•� 4����� �1��
�!����
������2�

Agenda Item 12Page 109



•� ����������
����������
�������
 
��
•� 4
���������:
���
�� ������
 
��

�
%�
���������	
��
�������������"�����
��
��	
�
�������
;����� ���� 
��������
�����
�����������
 ���
��
���������
��	
��� ���
����	
�������<������
 �
�.���
� ������
�����
������� �������
���������������"����
�
�����
��
��=�����
��
���
���
�����������8;
����	
�>�����������
��
�
	���������
������?����1�2.��
���
�����	��&'�������"�	�1/1	
�������!	
����!0	���'��	��-	
����!0	��"2	����/�����	��-	
#3��'��!0	��%��"��!	��-	
�������!	
���"�����
�
���80�����
�6���������
���
��������

�������
�
��������
���
������������
���������� ��
���
3��
���������*�).�
�
%�
����������������������
�����	
����
�����������
����
����
���������	
��
��������������
���
�������
��	
��
.�
�

��
��������-�����"	4	���"��"	���	��������-�-	��������
�
�.������
������
����������������	���������/��� ���������	
��
����������
��"��������
�������
���������� �
�
���
3�����������*�).��
�
�.������
�������	
����
�������
��������� 
��
��
��	
�
�����������	
����
�"���
�����������
�����.�
�
�.������
������
�
�	
������������
������������������� �
���������/��� ���������	
��
#��������� ���
�
������ ������������������
��*���
���
���
� � �� ����������
������������
����
.�
�
�'�������%�	�&����"	���"�-���-	��-	���"��"	���	��������-�-	��������
�
��@��������� 3���������������	����
� �	
����
����
������������3���������
�����
���
���
0������
�����������
���/��� ���������	
��
������

�����
�������
������
���������
�� ���� ��
����
����
�������
0������
��
������
����
.�6����
���� 
������
�������"����������
�����
�������������
����
�������/
�����=���
���������������"������
��	
��� ���
����
A��	�����.�%�
�����������
�����������"���
�"�����

�����"��/�
�� 
��
������
��	
���������� 
�.��
�
5��2/����-	&�&��"�	
�
��
������������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�)�
80�����
�6���������
���
�������������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�)�
�

�/�	����		�
�
-���
�

�����
)B*
�9�*
�.C.��	

�
 � �%���'�(� 49� � �����
�����

� 6%� � ������
�����

�

!�� ������ ��$%�$
��
��$���
���$��+
���
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 110



���2'��/	
��'-	��%���!	+	��2��/	��	�%��!���6"	��"���""	
�

�.�� %��/��� ���������	
��
������

�����
��
�������/

��������
�������
�����.�������
	
��!�
�
������������������������
���
���
�������
���������� ��
���
3��%���������������
��
���
�	��
����
��
���������������
�������
 ��� ������������ ��������������������
����
.�%��/��� ���������	
��
�
���
	
�
���
3�������
���������������
��
���������"
���
����
��
���	
�
����/�
���
�����
������
������������������	
��
.�

�
�.�� �����
���������
��
������	
����
��� �
���
	
��������������������
�����
�������
�������
������

���� ��
���
3�����������*�)�������/�
���������	
��
#�����"������������������
��#���/
����������
� 
��
� ���������
	
������"��
����������
� � 
��������
�������"��/������ 
���
�.��

�

�.�� �����
��(�,��
������-�������������

��� #���
������"�� ����������������
�"����������
������
���
��
�&�

1�2�� %�
��
�
	������������������
����
���
�����
���������������
������������
��
��
��
��
�����
���

��� ���
����
�� �"��������������
����
��
��
�� ���/
���������
�������
�����
��������	
��
�"��������
����
�����"���������������"��/��

�������
����
���/
�����
����
�������
�������
0�����
������������	
��
��
	
����
�"

��"����.�

�

1�2� %�
������
����
���
�����������������������
�����
�
�������������

�������
���
��
�������������1����
0���
�2����� ��������/������
�!����
�����������

��� �������������.3�

�
(1)	 ��-��"���-��/	���'-	&�%���!	

�.�� %�
�����
����������
0�
��
�������������	
��
#�������
������
������
�����
��#���
��������
�
���������
;.���������	
��
������������
�������
���
���������/�������

������
������
�*���������
�
������
����
�������#�
�	�����
������������������������������
0������
��������������� 
���
�����3���
	
����
�������������������
	
���������
������
��� ��
���
��������	�� ����
������
�

;�
��
��
�����������������
����������
�����/
����� ����
�.��

�.�� %�������
�������� ������������	
��
�����
��
��
�������
� �	
���
��3�������������������������	
��
�
�����
 
.�%�����
"����������������
���������
�3����� 
���
����
	
����
�������� �����
����
#�
�����
#�
��������������
����.�?������ ���������������������������������
�
��
����
	�
"���
�
-���/�-�
����$������>���������
��$�#����������
����
����������
����������������
����
�������
�
��
��������
��
�����
�#������
������������
������������
�3�����
������
�.���

�

71)	 ���	�����%�����"	"�	���	

�.�� 8;�
��
���"��/�������
��
��
�� ����
���/
�����������
����
#����������	�� ���������	
�����������
����
���� ���������	
��
.����
�
;����
��������
&���

�
•� ����������	
��� ���������
������"
����
� ����
�"

������
����"��� ����(�������
��D*

��>��8��1�������� �8� ���������$����2������
�������
���	
����������������
���
�
� ����������.�%�
��
��
��� 
����������
���������� ��� �����
	
������
	
����
������
��
�8���
��
����-������������� 
���������������	
�������(�E�������C����(FE��������.�

�
•� �
�	��
���
��	
�
�����
����
�-���������6��������������
 
���	
�����
��
���
�
������/
����

����������
�����������
����
.�G����������1��E2������
�GC.�����������
�
������/
�������
���C<���"�������������
�
����������;���
�������
��������
��������
���#��
���� ���

���
�
����	
�� 
�G)).�����"

/��
��
�����.�6�����������#�����������
���
��
�
�	
������
����
���������������

������
�
�������	��
#�"����"

/
�������
	
��� ��
�����������������

Page 111



���
���*��*�
��������
�������
����
���

���
�����������
������������
���
���
������
���
��������������� �� ���
������

.�

�

•� �����;����
�
���E����������
�3���
���
��
�����
����
��
�����
���������	���
��
����
���� ���������	
��
#�"������
����� �
��������
��
���	
����
��.���,���
���
������
���/
����	��
�����	��
�����������������
����
������
��� ������
������"��/#���������
���
���
�7����
���
��
������#��������
���/
������	��������
������A���/����"��/�
������������3����
����
����
������
�����"���
����� ��� ����/����"��/.�

•� �����������G))��������"���������
���"����
����"�����
��
�	��
���
��	
�
�����
����
�
-���������6��������������
 
H���������������
����������
"��
�������������
������
G���������������
����
���	
�.�

•� %�
����
�������������=
���������������
��������� ���
����
������������"�����
���
��
����
����������	
�������
��������
���������
�.�����
�$������������
����
�	
�������
��	
�������
������F��������
�.��

�
•� ���@!���!��3����
�
������

������
������
���������
������
���
;�
����������
�������

����
��������������/�� ��
���
���
������������
��������.��������
����#��
�
�����������
 �����
���/
�����	
� ��
�������
���������(E�����	
��C�E#��
���� �����"��
�������
�����
���
0������ ��
���
���
������������
������
.�

�
•� %�
�@���
����4��
3����=
��������

���
��	
�
�����F('�������
�������
����
��
���	
��

��
��������
����
������ ��������
�3���
���
����������
������"�����
����#������
�������
�
���
��
�	��
.��������
�������������
����	
�������
�
�	
�������������
����������������
���
�
������
����
.�

�
•� �����
������������
����
���	
�
����
�����
������
����������������������
��������
����

������.��%�
��������I����/� 
�����
�	��
��
����
�������	���� 
��
��� ��
���
�������
���
����	���
����

�"������������
�"��
��
����
����������.����
�����
����������������
��
��
������
��
������
��*
��

�#��
��
������������������������
���������������������
�"���
���/�����.�%�
�������
�3��J��	
����
����	��
��'*�)
�������"��������� 
����
;����� �����
����	���	
��
����� �����	���
������
;�
��
��
�.�����
�
���
	������������"��������
�� ����
��
�������
�3��J��	
����
��� ���������
������	
������������
�����
#�"��������
	
�
���
�� ���������
��
��
�����K

���� 
�������������������
��"������
��
��������
���������
�
"����������.��

�
•� ��� �
����������
������
����
�����
���
��

�� 
�����
������#��������� �@������������

��;3��������
�����
��
��� ��
����3���
;�����
�����������.�%�
����
��������������������"��
�������
�����A�����
������"�)).�<�������
���
��� 
���(*�'.�%�����
��
�������CE����� 
�
�����
����
���
����
�������CCB�*��� �
������������8� �����������
�������:
��.���

�
•� %�
�@���

�"��
3����=
�����
�����
��
��� ��
���
������� �����
���"��������
���������
�

����������
����	
����������	���
�������������������������
�/*������ .����
��������
������
�������
�
��� ��
���
��
���
���
���
����=
������"���

���	
��
�����������"���������
#�
������
����
���/
�
�������
����������.��

�
�.�� %�
�������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�)#�
�����
���
������
�����$���������#�������
��

��
�"��/�����
�	��
������������
���������� ��
���
�������
�������
���������� ��
���
3��
%������������
�����������	
��
.�6������������
�����
����
������������������� �����/������
���/��� ���������	
��
������
��
������
��
"����������������
�������
� �	
���
��3��������
��	
��
������
 
#�"���������������
����������������������� ���
�
�����������	�� �������
�3��
���
������
�.��

Page 112



�
�.�� %�
�������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�)����	��
�������������
������"���������
	
����

�����"���
����
#������*�� 
��
<�
�����
������
��	
�
�����#�����
�
�����
���
������
�.�%���������
�����

���
	
���
���
�/

����/
����
����������� ���������
�� 
���
��������
�	�������
�����
��������
��
����#�����������
�"������"���
����
���������#�"�����
��
��	
�
��������=��������
"�������
��/

������
 ����������������������� #�������������������������"��/�
���
��.�

�
�.)� ���
	�
"#����
���/
���
���
�������>�	
���
���>�����1$�
�����2#�������
����
�/

�

�������
�������������������������
���
���"�
�
���������	
��
����������
�
������
����� ���������
.�
%�
�
�������
����� ���
	
����������
 ����������
����������
�������� #���	�
"������������	
��
�
����������������� ���
�
����������
������
�#����"
����������� �
�
��
���
��
���������.�
��
���������
��
��
��������
��������
����
�.�%�
����������� ���������� ����
���������	��
��
�
���
���������������
������������
���������� ��
���
�����
����������
���������������
�����
��
������������������	
��
��
������������	�� ����"������
��
��� 
������"
�������	
������
����
���
�������/�
���������	
��
.��

�
�.(� ���
��*���
���
���
	
���"������/
�����
����!����
����������
����
���
����
�������
�������

����
����������������
����� ���������	
��
����������
����
����������
� 
���
������
���
��
	
���� ���� �
��.�%����"�������	��
����
;�
��
�������������
�����
�
��
���
��
������

� � 
�"����/

������
����������/
����
�������
�
������ ���
������
���������/��� �������
��	
��
.�%�
�������
�������������
���
���"�������������
������
�������������
	
����
������
��
����
3����������	
��
������
 
.�

�
,1)	 ��������-�����"	

1�2� �����
������
����������������	���������/��� ���������	
��
����������
��"��������
�
������
���������� ��
���
3�����������*�).��

1�2�� �����
�������	
����
�������
��������� 
��
��
��	
�
�����������	
����
�"���
������
�����
�����.�

1�2� �����
������
�
�	
������������
������������������� �
���������/��� ���������	
��
#�
�������� ���
������� ������������������
��*���
���
���
� � �� ����������
������������
�
���
.�

�
�

Page 113



�
���
��
�
��

��
	�



��
�



�

	

��
��
�

��
���
	

��
	�

�
���
�	
��
	�
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	�
�

��
�	
��
��
��

�
	

��
��
	�
��
	�
��	

�
��
�	
�

��
��
�	�
�
�
	�
	�
��
��
���
	��
��
�	
��
	


�
�	
�

�
�

�
	�
��

�
	�
��
	 
��
�
�
	�
��
	!
��
�"
��
��
	�
��

�
#

$
��
��
��
	%
��
��
"�

�
�	�
��

��
��
�

&
��
��
��
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
$
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	�



�

��
�	

�
�

	��
	

��
��

�
��
��
�	
"�
	'
��
	�
��
��
�

�	
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
�	

�
�

'�
��
��
��
��	
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��

�	
��
���

�
�	
��
�	

��
��
�	
��
��
��
(�	
��
��
�	�
��
���
�	
��
�	
���
��
��
��
	��
��
��
��
�#
	

$
��
��
��
	%
��
��
"�

�
�	�
��

��
��
�

�
��
�

�

�	
��
��
	��
��
�	�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�
�
�
	

��
	%
��

�
	

!
��

	

�
��
��
��
	�
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	�
�

�
�

'�
	

�'
��
�	
��
��	

��
��
�

��
�	
��
	�
��
��
"�

�

��
�	
���
'�
	�
��
	�
��
�


�
��

��
�	

"�

�
	

��
��
��
���
	�
��
	�
�

��
��
���
�

!
���
��
�
	!
��
'�
�	

��
�

��
��
�

��
��
)

*
��
�


�
'�
�	
�	
��

�
	�
��
�	
��
��	
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
	�
��
��
	

��
��



�	
��
�	
��
��

��
�	
'�
�	
��
��
	�
��
	"
�


�
�

�	

�
	"
�	

��
�

��
��
�	
�
�
�
��
	

��
	�
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	�



�

��
�

$
��
��
��
	%
��
��
"�

�
�	�
��

��
��
+

$
��

�

�
	�
��
	�
��

�
	��
��
�	�
��
��
��
��
	�
��
	��
��
��
�	
��
�

��
�	

"�
��
�	
�

��
	

��
	��
��

�
�

�

��
�	
��
	�
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	

��
��
��

�

�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
�
���
��
��
��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�
�

��
�	

�
�	

$
�
�

,�
	 
��
��	
-�

�
�	
.�
�

�	
/
	

0�
��
�	
0�
��
��
��
	

$
��
��

�
�(
�	

$
��
�
���
��
��
��

��
��
�

�

��
�

�	

�
�	

�

�
�

��
�	
��
	�
12
�)
�

	�
��
�	
��
�	
��

�
�

�	
��
	

�

��

�

�
	�

�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
	

��
	�

�
�
	
!
�

'�
��
��
��
�	

�


�

�
��
#

3
�

'	
4�
�'
�

�	

-�
��
��
��
	

&
��
��
��
�
��



��
��
�

5�
	�
��
��
"�

�

��
�	
�
�
�
	

��
	!
�

'�
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
0�
��
��
��
�	

5�
��
��
��
�	
�

��
��
�	�
��
�

���
	�
��
	

��
'�
�	

�
�	
'�
�	
"�



��

�
	


�
	��
��
	�
�

��

�
(	�
"�
��

�	

�
	�
��
��
�	
��
��
	6
��
��

�	

��
��
��
�
��

�	
��
�	
��
��
��
�	

�
��
�
�
��
��

��
��
	

�	

��
�

��
�	

�
���

4�
��
	%

�
��
�

��
�	,
�"
	

$
��



�	
��
��

$
��
��

�
�(
�	
7

��



��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�	�
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	�
�
�
��
	

��
��
��

	

�


�

�
��
��
	�
��
	

��
�
�	
�

��
��
	�
��
��
�	$
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	

�


�

�
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�	$
��
��
	�
��
�


�
	��
	�
�'
��
�
��
��
��
	

�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�

�	
��
��
�	
��

	
�
�

'�
��
��
��
��	
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�	
���
��
��
��
	��
��
��
��
��
	�
��
�	

��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
	�

�
	��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
	�
��
�	

-8
��
�

��
�	
�

�
��

7�
$

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

�

�
��
��

�

�
��
��
���
��
�

��

�
��
��
��
��
��

 
��
	�
��
�
!�
��
��
��
��
��

��
�

"
#$
��
��
��

��
�

��
��
��
	

��
	�
��
"�

	
��
	

��
���

�
�	
���
��
�	
��
	

�
�

'�
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��
#

3
�'
�	
��
���
	�
��
�


�
	

��
�

�"
��
�(
�	
"�
���
��
�#

Page 114



��
��
�

5�
	�
��
��
"�

�

��
�	
�
�
�
	

��
	!
�

'�
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
0�
��
��
��
�	

5�
��
��
��
�	
�

��
��
�	�
�

�"
���
�	
�	

�
�'
	�
��
	��
��
��
	�

�
��
	

�	

��
���
	�
��
�

�

��
�	
	�
��
	

��
'�
�	

�
�	
��
��
�

	�
�	�
��
��

�
	

��
��
��
�	
��
	"
�

�	
��
2�
�

'	
��
�	
�
�

'�
��
�	
��
�
���
��
�	�
��
	

�

��
��
�	

�
��
�
�
��
��

��
��
	

�	
��
��

�
	�
�

��

�
	�

�
	��
���
	

�"
��
	

�	
��
��
��
	��
	�
��
��
�
��
	��
��
�

,�
	 
��
"�
��
	%
��
��
�	

5�
��
��
��
�

��
��
)

-�
��
��
	�
�
�
	

��
	!
�

'�
��
��
��
�	
�

��
�	

�
	�

�
�
�

�	
��
��	

��
��
��
�
��

	
��
	�
	

��

�
	�
�

	�
�	�
��
�
��
��
�
��

	
��

	

��
�
���
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�#

3
�

'	
4�
�'
�

�	

-�
��
��
��
	

&
��
��
��
�
��



��
��
+

7�

�
��
�	
��
�
�
���
��
��
��
	�
��
	�

�
��

�
�
��

	
�

��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	

��
	�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�	
�
��
�

��
��
��
	�
�	�
	��
��
�	

�
�

'�
�

��

0�
��
�	
0�
��
��
��
	

$
��
��

�
�(
�	

$
��
�
���
��
��
��

��
��
�

-�
��

�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�	
��



��

�
	�
��
��
�

	�
���
�

��
�	
��
�	


�
��
��
���
�	
��
��

��
��
	

�	
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
�

��
��
�	

��
��
�

��
	"
�	
��
��
��
�	
"�
��
��

	�
��
��
��
#

,�
	 
��
"�
��
	%
��
��
�	

5�
��
��
��
�

��
��
�

�

��
�

�	
��
�

��
��
�	
��
��
��
	

�	
��
��
�

	�
��
	�
���

�
�"
��
	

��
��
��
�	
	��

	
��
�
���
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�	

�

�
��
�	

�
�	

��
��
�
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
�


�

�
��
�	�
�
�
	��
�

��
��
	�
��
���
�	

��

��
��
	��

	
��

�
�

	��
�
���
��
	

�	
��
�
"�

	
��
�

�

��
��
��
#

7�
$

��
��
�

��
��
��
	

��
	��
��
��
��
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
��
��
��	
��
��
��

	

��
��
�	
��
��
��
	�
��
	��
�
���
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
��
	

�

��
��
	

��
��
��
	

�	
��
��
	6
��
��

�	
��
��
�


�
�	
��
�	
��
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	
��
�	
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�	
��
�	
��
��
�


	
��

	

�
�	

�
��

	
��
��
�

�"
��
�

3
�


	
�
�


�



�	 
��
���
�

��
)�
�

�

��
��
��
�	
��
��
�

��
�	
��
��
�


	
��

	
��

�
�

�	

�
	�
��
��
��
	

��
��
	�
�

��

��
�	
�'
���
��

��
)�
�	

5�
�

��
��
�	
��
��
��
	

�	
��
��
�

��
�	�
��
�	
6�
��
�
�
	�
�

��
	�
��

�
	

��
��
�

��
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
	��
��
�	
��
	�
���
��
��

�
��
�	
�	

��
�

	�
��
��	

%�
��

�
	3
��

�

��
�	

�
	�
��
)	
*
��
��

�
��
	�

�
��

	
	�
��
�	

��



��
��
��
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
			
	

0�



��

	
�8
��
�

�	
��
��
��
�

��
�	
�
��
�	
��
	�
��

��
�	

�
�	

��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�
�	�
��
��

�
"�
�	
�

��
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�

��	


�
��
�

�

��
	�
�

5�
�

��
��
	

��
	�
��
"�

	
��
	�
��
��

�
�	
�
��
	�
��
��
��
	�
	�
��
�	
��
��
�	�
�	

��
��
��
��
��

	
��
�	
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
��
	"
�9

-�

�
�	
.�
�

�	

%


�

�
��
�	

��



��

�
��
�

:
���
��
	3
��
'�
��
��
�	

��
"�
��
	 
��
�
�
	/
	,�
	 
��
��	

-�

�
�	
.�
�

�

 
��
���
�	
%


�

�
��
�	

�

�
��

��
��
��
	

��
	��
�6
��
��

��
�	


�
�

	�
��
�	

�
�	
�
��

	

��
��

��
�	
��
��
�

	�
�	

��
���

�
�(
�	
���
�	
��
��
��
�#
	

��
)

-�

�
�	
.�
�

�	
0�
��
��

��
�	
%

��
�	
�

��
���
	�
�

�9
	:
��
��

	

��
��
	�
��
	�
��
�	
;	�
��
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�
���
	"
�	
�

�

�

�

�	

��

�

	

�
��	
<

5�
�

��
��
	��
	�
�

�'
�	
��
	�
��
��
��
�	
"�
��
�	
��

�
�

��
�	

�

��

�
�
�
��

5�
�

��
��
	=
	�
�


��
��
	�
��
�
��
	�
��
�>
"�



�

	"
�	
?
��

�
�

��
�

��
��
��
	�
��
���
�	

�
��

�
�	

��
���
	�
��
�


�
#

Page 115



��
)�
�	

-�
��

�
��
	�
��	
��
���

�
�	
��
��
	�
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�

��
�	
��
�	

��
��
��
��
	�
'�
���
	�
��
	�
��
��
�	�
��
	�
�
�

��
��
�	�
��
��
��
�
��

�	

�
�
�
	�
���
�

��
�	
��

�
�	
��

�

�
��

��
�	

�
	��
�

��
�	

��

�
��
��
�

��
)�
)	

7�

�
�

��
�	
��

�

�
��

��
��
	

�	

�
�	
�
��

	
��
��
�

�"
��
	

��
�
���
��
	�
��
	�
��

�
��
��
�	
��
�

��

�

��
)�
+	

:
��

�
��
��
�	
��
��

�
	��
�6
��
��

��
�	

�
�

	�
���
	��
��
�

	�
�	

��
���
@�	
��

�

	
��

�
���
�

��
�	�
��
��
��
�
��

9	
��	
�
�

�

��
�	

�
��

�
�	�
��
	�
��
���
��
	�
��
�
�
�	�
��	
��

�
�

��
	�
��

�
�	�
��
�
�
�	

���
�	�
��
	"
�


�
	�
��
��

�	
��
�	"

�
��

��
��
��
�

��
+�
�

5�
��

��
�	
��
�	
��
�

��
�	

�
�	
��
�	
��
	�
��
��



	�
�

��
��
�	
��

	

��
���

�
�	
��
�	
��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	�
��
��
	�

�
	�
"�
�	

�
	�
��
��
�

	

���
��
��
��
	�
��
�"
���

�
	�
��
��



	��
	�
��
��
��	
��
�	
�

��

	

��



��
��
�

A
�

�	%
�
��
��
��
	4
���
��
��
	

4�
�

��
��

��
+�
�

�

��
��
�	
��
��



��
�
�
��
	��

	
��
��
�	
��
��
��
	

�	
��
�

�	
��
�
	


�
	�
��
��
�	

�
��

	
���
��
��
�	

�

�
��
�	
��
��
��
	

�	
$

�
��

	

*
��
��
	�
��
'�
	�
�
�
��
	�
��
��
���

,�
	 
��
"�
��
	%
��
��
�	

5�
��
��
��
�

��
+�
�

-�
��
��
	�
�
�
	�

�
��

�
	�
��

�

	
��



��

�
	

�	
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��
�

��
�	
�
��
�	

�
	�
��
��
�

	��
��
��
��
�	�
��
�"
���

�
	�
��
���
��
	

��
	�
��
��
���

A
�

�	%
�
��
��
��
	4
���
��
��
	

4�
�

��
��

5�
�

��
�	
��
��
�	

��
��
��
(�	
��
��
"�
��

�	

�
	

�
��
��
�	
���
��
��
�	

��
��
�"
��

$
��
��

�
�(
�	
7

��



��
+

7�
$

5�
�

��
��
	�
��
"�

	
��
	�

��
	�
�

��

�
	�
��
��
�

Page 116



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 
  
Subject:    Local Sustainable Transport Fund Bid – Smart Ticketing  

Committee:    Cabinet 

Date:    13 September 2011 

Cabinet Member: Councillor Wigens 

CMT Member:   Director for Development and Regeneration 

Author: Andy Sharp, Public Transport Controller 

Contact:    Tel:  01752 304354 
    e-mail: Andy.Sharp@plymouth.gov.uk  

Ref:     

Key Decision: No   
 
Part: I    
 
Executive Summary:  
 
Following a successful bid through the Department for Transport’s (DfT) Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund (LSTF) Plymouth City Council (PCC) has been awarded £2.98 million to aid the transition to 
smart bus ticketing throughout the South West. PCC hosted the bid on behalf of 15 Local 
Authorities in the South West region. The bid was submitted under a Delegated Decision on 15 April 
2011 and the DfT announced on 5 July 2011 that PCC was successful. The £2.98 million is a mix of 
revenue and capital funding and will be delivered between 2011/12 and 2012/13.  
 
The bid enables a further phase to an existing project in the South West, which PCC are already 
working on to equip buses with smart ticketing equipment and the necessary back office systems. The 
existing project is a capital project within the Transport block. This award is a 3rd party funding 
arrangement and no further PCC funds are required to deliver the LSTF part of the overall project.  
 
The delivery body for this bid will be South West Smart Applications Ltd (SWSAL). SWSAL are a 
public private, not-for-profit company, limited by guarantee, established to deliver the DfT vision for 
Smart and Integrated Ticketing throughout the South West. The company was launched in October 
2010 by the Rt Hon Norman Baker MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for Transport, the 
company is hosted by the University of Plymouth. 
 
The owners of SWSAL are the 15 SW Unitary and County Highway Authorities in the South West, 
and the 15 major bus operators in the region.  The Company has four Local Authority and four Bus 
Operator Directors and an independent Chairman. Andy Sharp, an employee of Plymouth City 
Council is currently named as a deputy director.  
 
Approval is now sought from PCC’s Cabinet to accept the bid and proceed with this phase of the 
smart ticketing project. 
         
Corporate Plan 2011-2014:   
 
The overall smart ticketing project, of which this LSTF bid will contribute to, directly supports 
all four corporate priorities both locally within Plymouth and across the region: Delivering 
Growth, Reducing Inequalities, Raise Aspirations and Providing Value for Communities. In 
addition to these priorities is the central role this bid award places Plymouth regionally, which 

Agenda Item 13Page 117



is an excellent way of building upon the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise 
Partnership. 
 
Deliver Growth 

n Connectivity   
o The smart ticketing standard, ITSO, is an international specification which is an 

essential requirement in the future to allow interoperable travel between 
different modes and across transport provided by different companies. This is 
the standard which all 3000 buses in the region will be brought up to, even 
before major urban centres such as London and Manchester. It is a 
requirement of all new rail franchises. 

 
o Smart ticketing will significantly improve bus boarding times and significantly 

reduce the demand for cash fares which naturally take longer to process. 
 

n Economic growth 
o Commercial bus operators face difficult times ahead with reductions in 

concessionary travel reimbursement, increased fuel costs and a reduction in 
their fuel duty rebate from the DfT. This project will assist with funding to all 
bus companies in the region and in doing so will release not only an expected 
uplift in passenger numbers bringing greater revenue, reduced fuel costs 
through faster journey times but also a specific enhancement in the fuel duty 
rebate for running an ITSO ticketing scheme. 

 
n Improved road journey times 

o Speeding up bus boarding times will reduce any adverse affects of delays on the 
entire road network.  

 
n A sustainable environment 

o Significant emission savings are detailed in Annex A of the submitted bid which 
is attached as appendix A of this document. A highlight regionally is a total of 
nearly 13,000 tonnes of carbon saved over the next four years.  

 
o The simplicity of the new form of ticketing and the benefits of speeding up 

journey times are predicted to have a 2% uplift in bus patronage; reducing 
private car journeys.  

 
Reduce Inequalities 

n Movement across the City 
o The project will set the foundations in place for future interoperable tickets 

enabling easier travel across all areas of the City but specifically in this context 
between socially deprived areas of the City and those offering employment, 
leisure and health facilities. The scheme will assist with removing barriers to 
transport associated with the complexity of existing ticketing.  

 
Raise Aspirations 

n Increase number of people visiting the City 
o The project will enable easier travel both within the City and across the region. 

The ITSO ticketing standard as detailed below will eventually be available on 
trains which will provide unprecedented connectivity between transport 
modes. This improvement in using public transport will make Plymouth far 
easier to visit.  

 
 

Page 118



Provide Value for Communities 
n Reducing emissions 

o Smart ticketing will help to reduce the environmental impact of transport 
activities by encouraging a greater uptake of more sustainable travel, thereby 
assisting the viability of the city centre and local businesses. Modal switch to 
public transport travel will help to reduce congestion and the associated lost 
hours to businesses and services, thereby improving the local economy. 
Significant emission savings are detailed in Annex A of the submitted bid which 
is attached as appendix A of this document. 

 
n Value for money 

o This regional award of £2.98 million comes without any additional commitment 
for expenditure from PCC than is already committed and underway. The 
benefits to the economy, environment and opportunities for the people of the 
City are significant. By working as a region it has been possible to achieve 
benefits of scale without, without which would make the project unviable for at 
least the foreseeable future in Plymouth alone.  

          
Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:     
Including finance, human, IT and land 
 
The project value of £2.98 million is made up of £2.225 million revenue and £0.755 million capital. 
The project will be delivered over 2011/12 and 2012/13 fully financed from grant funding. 
 
Whilst SWSAL will be the delivery body for the LSTF bid PCC will remain the accountable body for 
the grant. PCC will ensure that liabilities under the grant conditions are appropriately shared by way 
of a legal agreement with the partner Local Authorities which form South West Smart Applications 
Limited. 
   
Other Implications: e.g. Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management and 
Equality, Diversity and Community Cohesion: 

 

As accountable body, PCC assumes the risks of grant clawback or ineligibility of spend.  In order to 
mitigate these risks, appropriate legal agreements will be put in place in line with the terms and 
conditions of the grant with the partner Local Authorities which form SWSAL. 
  
Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action: 
 
The cabinet are asked to approve acceptance of the grant and proceed with this phase of the smart 
ticketing project in Plymouth and the region. 
 
Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action: 
 
Cabinet could not approve the bid award from the DfT.  

n The £2.98 million would be lost to the region and recouped by the DfT’s LSTF fund and 
awarded to other Local Authorities.  

n The Smart Ticketing project would be partially delivered in the region meaning only partial 
benefits detailed against the Corporate Plan would be achieved. 

n Risk to reputational damage for PCC from the regional Local Authorites, Bus Operators, the 
University of Plymouth, the DfT and other stakeholders. 

  
 
 

Page 119



Background papers:   
 
Submitted LSTF Bid: Smart ticketing throughout all South West England, www.plymouth.gov.uk/lstf  
 
 
Sign off:   
 
Fin KFD

evF1
112
002
8 
18/0
8/11 

Leg 
 

MS/1
2620 

HR  Corp 
Prop 

 IT  Strat 
Proc 

 

Originating SMT Member Clive Perkin 
 

 
 

Page 120



1. Introduction 
1.1 Plymouth City Council was asked by SWSAL in March 2011 to be the host Local Authority for 
the regional submission of a bid through the Local Sustainable Transport Fund which will help enable 
smart ticketing on all bus services. The bid for £2.98 million was successful with notification from the 
Department for Transport (DfT) in July 2011. Although SWSAL will deliver the outputs of the bid the 
DfT has specified that the grant must be paid to and administered by Plymouth City Council. The 
grant enables a further phase to the existing project in the South West, as part of which PCC are 
working to equip buses with smart ticketing equipment as part of the existing £80k capital project 
within the Transport block. This existing project and associated spend has been used as matched 
funding to assist with securing the LSTF bid. However, no further PCC funds are required to deliver 
the LSTF part of the overall project. 
 

2. Background 
2.1 South West Smart Applications Ltd (SWSAL) is a public private, not-for-profit company, limited 
by guarantee, established to deliver the DfT vision for Smart and Integrated Ticketing throughout the 
South West.  Launched in October 2010 by the Rt Hon Norman Baker MP, Parliamentary Under 
Secretary of State for Transport, the company is hosted by the University of Plymouth. 
 
2.2 The owners of SWSAL are the 15 SW Unitary and County Highway Authorities in the South 
West, and the 15 major bus operators in the region.  SWSAL’s other key stakeholders include 
Passenger Focus,  Forum for the Future, Department for Transport Ticketing Division and the 
Confederation of Passenger Transport. The Company has four Local Authority and four Bus 
Operator Directors and an independent Chairman. An employee of Plymouth City Council is 
currently named as a deputy director.  
 
2.3 SWSAL has been highly successful in supporting its Local Authority and Bus Operator members 
through being awarded over £2m in grant funding from the South West Council. This previous award 
has been utilised by PCC to deliver the existing £80k capital project detailed above. More details 
about SWSAL can be found at www.SWSAL.co.uk.  

2.4 Match funding from existing committed regional funds, was used to support this bid to the LSTF 
on behalf of all South West Local Authorities. Therefore there is no additional spend required by 
Plymouth City Council. 

 

3. What the bid will deliver  
3.1 The bid supported the LSTF ‘essential criteria’ in supporting the local economy, reducing 
congestion, improving reliability, as well as reducing carbon emissions. It also satisfied the ‘desirable 
criteria’ by improvements to air-quality, accessibility, and wider environmental benefits. In summary, 
the bid will deliver:  
 

n The ITSO interoperable technical ticketing specification for smartcard ticketing on all 
registered local bus services in SW England; 

n Europe’s 1st regional open access pay-per-use ITSO Head Office Processing System (HOPS) 
and Card Management System, this the technical back office system required to process smart 
card data; 

n England’s 1st regional E-money transport ticketing platform. Electronic money is basically 
stored money on a smartcard which is deducted for basic purchases such as bus travel, news 
papers etc; 

n ITSO migration support for Community Transport and Community Rail Partnerships, which 
will facilitate improved integration with other transport forms in the future.  

 

 

Page 121



4. Hosting the LSTF Bid  
4.1 Plymouth City Council are pleased to have been invited by SWSAL to host the £2.98m LSTF 
submission, which follows in the tradition of previous partnership working by PCC with both the 
University, and the Regions Highway Authorities, such as the 1999 successful bid by PCC for funding 
Traveline in the SW.   
 
4.2 Role of SWSAL: 
 

n Prepare the bid application for PCC & obtain all letters of support before submission; 
n Manage all aspects of project delivery and delivery finance, overseen by the SWSAL Board; 
 

4.3 Role of Plymouth City Council: 
 

n Receive awarded funds from the DfT and transfer to the University for delivery; 
n Submit the claim forms and progress reports to DfT as required by the LSTF process 

(completed for PCC by SWSAL). 
n Appropriate indemnity and audit arrangements to be in place. 

 

5. Spend profile 
 

£K 2011/12 2012/13 Total 

Revenue  830 1395 2225 

Capital 305 450 755 

Total 1135 1845 2980 

 

6. Risk 

6.1 As Accountable Body, PCC assumes the risks of grant clawback or ineligibility of spend.  In order 
to mitigate these risks, appropriate legal agreements will be put in place in line with the terms and 
conditions of the grant with the partner Local Authorities which form SWSAL. 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 122



Agenda Item 15Page 123
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 Localities and Neighbourhood Working Review
	Localities and Neighbourhood Working task and finish group scrutiny report

	7 Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children and Young People in Care
	Unaccompanied_Asylum_Seeking_Children_and_Young_People_in_Care_Scrutiny_report
	Unaccompanied_Asylum_Seeking_Children_and_Young_People_in_Care_action_plan

	8 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD RECOMMENDATIONS OF 27 JULY 2011
	9 WASTE AND RECYCLING IMPROVEMENTS
	11 SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN CORPORATE POLICY
	Safeguarding Children Corporate Policy document

	12 CHILD POVERTY ACTION PLAN
	13 LOCAL SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT FUND BID: SMART TICKETING
	15 WASTE AND RECYCLING IMPROVEMENTS (E3)

